
 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 
 

 Thursday, 14th March 2013 
at 5.30 pm 
 
Council Chamber - Civic Centre 

 
This meeting is open to the public 

 
 Members 

 
 Councillor Moulton (Chair) 

Councillor Vinson (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Barnes-Andrews 
Councillor Chaloner 
Councillor Fitzhenry 
Councillor Hannides 
Councillor Lewzey 
Councillor McEwing 
Councillor Morrell 
Councillor Pope 
 

 Appointed Members 
 

 Mrs U Topp, (Roman Catholic Church) 
Mr T Blackshaw, The Church of England (Dioceses 
of Winchester & Portsmouth) 
Vacancies 

• Primary Parent Governors Representative; 
and  

• Parent Governor Representative 
 

 Contacts 
 

 Ed Grimshaw 
Democratic Support Officer 
Tel. 023 8083 2390 
Email: ed.grimshaw@southampton.gov.uk  

  
 Suki Sitaram 

Head of Communities, Change and Partnership 
Tel: 023 8083 2060 
Email: suki.sitaram@southampton.gov.uk  

 

Public Document Pack



 

 

PUBLIC INFORMATION 

Role of Overview and Scrutiny Smoking Policy 

Overview and Scrutiny includes the 
following three functions: 
 

The Council operates a no-smoking policy in all 
civic buildings. 

• Holding the Executive to account by 
questioning and evaluating the 
Executive’s actions, both before and 
after decisions taken.   

• Developing and reviewing Council 
policies, including the Policy 
Framework and Budget Strategy.   

• Making reports and recommendations 
on any aspect of Council business 
and other matters that affect the City 
and its citizens.   

 
Overview and Scrutiny can ask the 
Executive to reconsider a decision, but 
they do not have the power to change 
the decision themselves.  
 

Mobile Telephones 
 
Please turn off your mobile telephone whilst in 
the meeting.  
 
Fire Procedure 
 
In the event of a fire or other emergency a 
continuous alarm will sound and you will be 
advised by Council officers what action to take. 
 
Access  
 
Access is available for disabled people. Please 
contact the Democratic Support Officer who will 
help to make any necessary arrangements. 

Overview and Scrutiny Management 
Committee 
 

The Overview and Scrutiny Management 
Committee holds the Executive to 
account, exercises the call-in process, 
and sets and monitors standards for 
scrutiny.  It formulates a programme of 
scrutiny inquiries and appoints Scrutiny 
Panels to undertake them.  Members of 
the Executive cannot serve on this 
Committee. 
 
Southampton City Council’s Priorities 

• More jobs for local people  

•  More local people who are well 
education and skilled  

• A better and safer place in which to 
live and invest  

• Better protection for children and 
young people  

• Support for the most vulnerable 
people and families  

• Reducing health inequalities  

• Reshaping the Council for the future  
 

 

Dates of Meetings: Municipal Year 2012/13 
 
 

2012 2013 

12 July  24 January  

16 August 18 February 

13 September 14 March 

11 October 11 April  

8 November  

13 December   

 



 

 

CONDUCT OF MEETING 
 

TERMS OF REFERENCE  BUSINESS TO BE DISCUSSED 

The general role and terms of reference for 
the Overview and Scrutiny Management 
Committee, together with those for all 
Scrutiny Panels, are set out in Part 2 
(Article 6) of the Council’s Constitution, and 
their particular roles are set out in Part 4 
(Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules – 
paragraph 5) of the Constitution. 

Only those items listed on the attached 
agenda may be considered at this meeting. 

 

 

RULES OF PROCEDURE QUORUM 

The meeting is governed by the Council 
Procedure Rules and the Overview and 
Scrutiny Procedure Rules as set out in Part 
4 of the Constitution. 

The minimum number of appointed Members 
required to be in attendance to hold the 
meeting is 4. 

DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST 

Members are required to disclose, in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct, both 
the existence and nature of any “Disclosable Personal Interest” or “Other Interest”  they may 
have in relation to matters for consideration on this Agenda. 

DISCLOSABLE PERSONAL INTERESTS 

A Member must regard himself or herself as having a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any 
matter that they or their spouse, partner, a person they are living with as husband or wife, or 
a person with whom they are living as if they were a civil partner in relation to:  

(i) Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain. 
(ii) Sponsorship: 
Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from Southampton City 
Council) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any expense incurred by 
you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your election expenses. This includes 
any payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union 
and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992. 
(iii) Any contract which is made between you / your spouse etc (or a body in which the you / 
your spouse etc has a beneficial interest) and Southampton City Council under which goods 
or services are to be provided or works are to be executed, and which has not been fully 
discharged. 
(iv) Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of Southampton. 
(v) Any license (held alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of Southampton 
for a month or longer. 
(vi) Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) the landlord is Southampton City Council and 
the tenant is a body in which you / your spouse etc has a beneficial interests. 
(vii) Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where that body (to your knowledge) has a 
place of business or land in the area of Southampton, and either: 

a) the total nominal value fo the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that body, or 

b) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal value of 
the shares of any one class in which you / your spouse etc has a beneficial interest 
that exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class. 



 

Other Interests 
 
 

A Member must regard himself or herself as having a, ‘Other Interest’ in any membership of, 
or  occupation of a position of general control or management in: 

 
 
Any body to which they  have been appointed or nominated by Southampton City Council 
 
Any public authority or body exercising functions of a public nature 
 
Any body directed to charitable purposes 
 
Any body whose principal purpose includes the influence of public opinion or policy 
 

Principles of Decision Making 
 
All decisions of the Council will be made in accordance with the following principles:- 
 

• proportionality (i.e. the action must be proportionate to the desired outcome); 

• due consultation and the taking of professional advice from officers; 

• respect for human rights; 

• a presumption in favour of openness, accountability and transparency; 

• setting out what options have been considered; 

• setting out reasons for the decision; and 

• clarity of aims and desired outcomes. 
 

In exercising discretion, the decision maker must: 
 

• understand the law that regulates the decision making power and gives effect to it.  The 
decision-maker must direct itself properly in law; 

• take into account all relevant matters (those matters which the law requires the authority 
as a matter of legal obligation to take into account); 

• leave out of account irrelevant considerations; 

• act for a proper purpose, exercising its powers for the public good; 

• not reach a decision which no authority acting reasonably could reach, (also known as 
the “rationality” or “taking leave of your senses” principle); 

• comply with the rule that local government finance is to be conducted on an annual basis.  
Save to the extent authorised by Parliament, ‘live now, pay later’ and forward funding are 
unlawful; and 

• act with procedural propriety in accordance with the rules of fairness. 
 
 
 
 



 

 

AGENDA 

Agendas and papers are now available online via the Council’s Website 

 
1 APOLOGIES AND CHANGES IN PANEL MEMBERSHIP (IF ANY)  

 
 To note any changes in membership of the Panel made in accordance with Council 

Procedure Rule 4.3.  
 

2 DISCLOSURE OF PERSONAL AND PECUNIARY INTERESTS  
 

 In accordance with the Localism Act 2011, and the Council’s Code of Conduct, 
Members to disclose any personal or pecuniary interests in any matter included on the 
agenda for this meeting. 
 

NOTE:  Members are reminded that, where applicable, they must complete the 
appropriate form recording details of any such interests and hand it to the Democratic 
Support Officer.  

 
3 DECLARATIONS OF SCRUTINY INTEREST  

 
 Members are invited to declare any prior participation in any decision taken by a 

Committee, Sub-Committee, or Panel of the Council on the agenda and being 
scrutinised at this meeting.  
    
 

4 DECLARATION OF PARTY POLITICAL WHIP  
 

 Members are invited to declare the application of any party political whip on any matter 
on the agenda and being scrutinised at this meeting.  
 

5 STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIR  
 
 

6 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (INCLUDING MATTERS ARISING)  
 

 To approve and sign as a correct record the Minutes of the meetings held on the 18th 
and 19th February 2013 and to deal with any matters arising, attached.  
 

7 CITY DEAL  
 

 Report of the Head of Skills, Regeneration and Partnerships, setting out an update in 
relation to the City Deal process, attached.   
 

8 SOUTHAMPTON LOCAL SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN’S BOARD ANNUAL 
REPORT 2011-12   
 

 Report of the Independent Chair of the Local Safeguarding Children’s Board detailing 
the Annual Report 2011-12, attached.   
 



 

9 PROGRESS REPORT ON POST OFSTED ANNOUNCED INSPECTION PLAN   
 

 Report of Cabinet Member for Children’s Services and Director of Children’s Services 
and Learning detailing progress since November 2012 in addressing the areas for 
improvement recommended by Ofsted, attached.   
 

10 FORWARD PLAN  
 

 Report of the Head of Communities, Change and Partnership, detailing items 
requested for discussion from the current Forward Plan, attached.  
 

a) City Centre Action Plan and Master Plan  

 To consider a briefing paper outlining the forthcoming Cabinet decision – “City 
Centre Action Plan (Proposed Submission) and City Centre Master Plan (Final)”, 
attached.  
 

11 MONITORING SCRUTINY RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE EXECUTIVE  
 

 Report of the Head of Communities, Change and Partnership, detailing the actions of 
the executive and monitoring progress of the recommendations of the Committee, 
attached.   
 
 

Wednesday, 6 March 2013 Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services 
 



 

 

- 24 - 
 

SOUTHAMPTON CITY COUNCIL 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 18 FEBRUARY 2013 
 

 

Present: 
 

Councillors Moulton (Chair), Vinson (Vice-Chair), Barnes-Andrews, 
Hannides, Lewzey, McEwing, Morrell and Pope and Mr Blackshaw 
 

Apologies: Councillors Chaloner, Fitzhenry and Mrs U Topp 
 

Also in Attendance  Councillor Noon –   Cabinet Member for Efficiency and Improvement 
Councillor Payne – Cabinet Member for Housing Services  
 

 
52. DISCLOSURE OF PERSONAL AND PECUNIARY INTERESTS  

Councillors McEwing, Barnes-Andrews, Morrell, Pope, Lewzey and Moulton declared 
non-pecuniary interest in a number of the organisations that had applied for Grants 
from the Council and were listed in within Item 7a of the Agenda. 
 

53. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (INCLUDING MATTERS ARISING)  

RESOLVED: that the Minutes for the Committee meeting on 24th January 2013 be 
approved and signed as a correct record.  (Copy of the Minutes circulated with the 
agenda and appended to the signed Minutes). 
 
 

54. FORWARD PLAN  

The Committee considered the report of the Senior Manager – Customer and Business 
Improvement detailing items requested for discussion from the current Forward Plan 
(Copy of the report circulated with the agenda and appended to the signed minutes). 
 
Representative from City Eye, CLEAR, EU Welcome, Groundwork Solent, Hampshire 
Schools Sports Federation, Mount Pleasant Media Workshop, Soco Music Project, 
Society of St James, Solent Credit Union, Solent Sea Rescue Organisation, 
Southampton Nuffield Theatre Trust and Southampton School Sports Association were 
in attendance and, with the Consent of the Chair addressed the meeting.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 

(i) on consideration of the briefing paper relating to the forthcoming Cabinet 
Decision “Grants to Voluntary Organisations 2013/14 to 2015/16” the 
Committee recommended that: 
a. Cabinet assure themselves that adequate funding has been allocated to 

those organisations that:  

•  protect and support the most vulnerable and provide advice for those 
in need at a time of acute pressures; 

• compliment the Council’s substantial investment in promoting 
Southampton’s cultural offering and the related economic development 
opportunities; and 

• have the capacity to lever in additional investment into the city. 

Agenda Item 6



 

 

- 25 - 
 

b. the Cabinet Member for Efficiency and Improvement circulates to the 
Committee details of the cost of the grant assessment process; and  

c. the Cabinet Member for Efficiency and Improvement reconsiders 
proposed funding awards for those organisations that are able to fund 
initiatives from their own resources. 

 
(ii)  on consideration of the briefing paper relating to the forthcoming Cabinet 

Decision “Licensing Scheme for Houses in Multiple Occupation –Consultation 
Results And Final Approval” the Committee welcomed the introduction of the 
licensing scheme but, urged the Cabinet Member for Housing and Leisure 
Services to: 
a. involve all wards where the 10% threshold of Houses of Multiple 

Occupation has been reached  (including the Bassett ward) in initial the 
role out of the scheme; and 

b. ensure that the Council’s default position, subject to evaluation, is to roll 
out the scheme Citywide by 2016, and earlier if market distortion is 
detected.   

 
 

55. MONITORING SCRUTINY RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE EXECUTIVE  

The Committee noted the report of the Senior Manager – Communities, Change and 
Partnership detailing the actions of the executive and monitoring progress of the 
recommendations of the Committee. (Copy of the report circulated with the agenda and 
appended to the signed minutes). 



 

 

- 26 - 
 

 

SOUTHAMPTON CITY COUNCIL 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 19 FEBRUARY 2013 
 

 
 

Present: 
 

Councillors Moulton (Chair), Vinson (Vice-Chair), Barnes-Andrews, 
Chaloner, Claisse, Fitzhenry, Lewzey, McEwing, Morrell and Pope 
 

Apologies: Councillors Hannides, Mrs U Topp and Mr T Blackshaw 
 

Also in Attendance 
 

Councillor Stevens, Cabinet Member for Adult Services 

 
56. APOLOGIES AND CHANGES IN PANEL MEMBERSHIP (IF ANY)  

The Panel noted that Councillor Claisse was in attendance as a nominated substitute 
for Councillor Hannides in accordance with Procedure Rule 4.3. 
 
 

57. CALL IN OF EXECUTIVE DECISION - CAB 12/13 9136 - REVISIONS TO THE 
ADULT SOCIAL CARE NON-RESIDENTIAL SERVICES POLICY  

The Committee considered the report of the Chair of Overview and Scrutiny 
Management Committee, detailing the call in of the Executive Decision - Cab 12/13 
9136 - Revisions to the Adult Social Care Non-Residential Services Policy. (Copy of the 
report circulated with the agenda and appended to the signed minutes). 
 

Councillor White and representatives from:-  Carers Together, Choices Advocacy, 
Southampton Mencap and Spectrum Centre for Independent Living were in attendance 
and, with the consent of the Chair addressed the meeting.  

 
RESOLVED  
 
(i) that the decision be referred back to Cabinet for further consideration; and 
(ii) the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee recommended that Cabinet:- 
 

• defers the decision to enable further consideration and thorough consultation 
with all parties affected.  Should this impact on the Council’s Budget, funding 
should be drawn from reserves; 

• ensures, if the proposals are implemented, that by 31st December 2013 every 
carer and service user that requires a one to one assessment will receive one, 
and provides assurance that one to one advice will not be just through 
telephone advice; 

• evaluates the effectiveness of the People’s Panel in this process from the 
Council’s, facilitators’ and participants’ perspective; 

• explores ways to improve information provision for service users and carers on 
issues such as assessment of need and financial assessment; 

• have worked examples of the impact of the proposals on individuals in advance 
of the Cabinet meeting to ensure the decision is informed; 

• ensures future communications are sent to both service users and carers; 



 

 

- 27 - 
 

• monitors the impact of the proposals, if implemented, on admissions to Accident 
and Emergency within the City; 

• ensures that the advocacy groups are involved and fully engaged throughout 
the process;  

• Indentifies how, if changes proceed, the service will improve and how the future 
model will ensure rising standards and evidence improvements; and 

• monitor and review the impact of the charging proposals, if implemented, and 
report them to the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee within the 
first year of implementation. 

 



 

 1

DECISION-MAKER:  OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

SUBJECT: CITY DEAL 

DATE OF DECISION: 14 MARCH 2013 

REPORT OF: HEAD OF SKILLS, REGENERATION AND 
PARTNERSHIPS 

CONTACT DETAILS 

AUTHOR: Name:  Denise Edghill Tel: 023 8083 4095 

 E-mail: Denise.edghill@southampton.gov.uk 

Director Name:  Dawn Baxendale Tel: 023 8091 7713 

 E-mail: Dawn.baxendale@southampton.gov.uk 

 

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 

None 

BRIEF SUMMARY 

On 29 October 2012, the Deputy Prime Minister launched the second wave of City 
Deals to twenty cities in the country. Southampton and Portsmouth City Councils were 
the only authorities in the country that were jointly invited to bid, and submitted their 
expression of interest in January outlining ambitions to unlock local economic growth 
and jobs. Not only was the bid successful but it is among thirteen national bids to be 
fast tracked, negotiated and agreed with Government before the summer recess. This 
report provides an overview of the process, the ambitions of the local Deal, and next 
steps. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 (i) That the Committee notes the report. 

REASON FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. In response to a request from the Chair of the OSMC for this item to be 
discussed at 14th March 2013 meeting of this Committee. 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

2.  None. 

DETAIL (Including consultation carried out) 

3. The City Deal programme fits within a national cross-departmental agenda for 
economic growth through levering private sector investment, rebalancing the 
economy, boosting skills, jobs and infrastructure support. The Deals are 
bespoke arrangements designed to devolve power and responsibility to the 
city level in response to individual city circumstances and strong local 
governance, and they present cities with an opportunity to take greater control 
of policies that influence the growth of their economies. To date, City Deals 
have been struck with England’s eight ‘Core Cities’ (Birmingham, Bristol, 
Leeds, Liverpool, Newcastle, Nottingham, Sheffield and Manchester) through 
Wave 1 of the Deal. 

Agenda Item 7



 2

4. A key feature of the Wave 1 bids from the Core Cities was the breadth of 
issues that they covered. Each city specialised in a distinctive policy area, but 
a number of cities identified similar barriers to economic growth. In response 
to this, the Government proposed two elements to Wave 2 of City Deals: a 
bespoke element, reflecting specific city needs, backed up with a ‘Core 
Package’ of powers that will be offered to every city in recognition if the 
common challenges that most cities face when trying to support economic 
growth. 

5. The Southampton and Portsmouth City Deal submission was entitled ‘ A 
Second Wave for the Solent Maritime Economy’ and was supported by Solent 
Local Enterprise Partnership, Hampshire County Council, Isle of Wight 
Council, Hampshire District Councils, and a number of private sector partners 
including BAE Systems, Associated British Ports, Centros Delancy, Tipner 
Regeneration Company, Morgan Sindall, Hammerson and Southampton 
Football Club. 

6. The focus of the bespoke part of the Deal is on delivering enabling 
infrastructure and assembling land to bring forward the development of seven 
key sites around the Southampton/Portsmouth waterfronts (Royal Pier, Itchen 
Riverside, Marchwood, Watermark Westquay, the Portsmouth Naval Base, 
Tipner/Horsea Island and the Northern Quarter), supporting growth in the 
marine/maritime sectors and sub-sectors including transport and logistics, 
defence and advanced manufacturing, research and innovation. The bid 
outlines a series of ‘asks’ and ‘offers’ to facilitate this growth, including the 
creation of a single investment fund for economic growth to be underwritten 
by Government’s Infrastructure Guarantee, a single conversation with 
government departments regarding development proposals linked the Ports, 
the Portsmouth Naval Base and Marchwood, and the release of 
decommissioned Ministry of Defence sites back to the market. From 
Southampton’s perspective, this would kick-start the development of the 
whole waterfront and have a ‘domino effect’ to realise the wider masterplan 
vision for the City, creating thousands of jobs. In return, Southampton and 
Portsmouth will need to agree robust joint governance arrangements. 

7. In addition to the contents of the bespoke Deal, Southampton and Portsmouth 
have been invited to contribute to the development of the ‘Core Package’ 
which will be available to address shared barriers to economic growth, 
including economic development, planning and housing policy, skills and 
employment support, transport and business services. The spectrum of 
‘offers’ for the Core Package are being defined with government departments, 
ranging from powers to influence national policy through to removal of ring-
fencing of public sector funding and roll out of Whole Place Community 
Budgets. Across the packages, there is a general concept of the ‘recycling of 
the proceeds of growth’, through which places should be able to retain a 
proportion of any financial savings resulting in the co-ordination and 
consolidation of funds and programmes at the local level. 

 

 

 



 3

8. The Southampton and Portsmouth proposal will be presented by the local 
authority leaders to an Ad Hoc Ministerial Grouping chaired by the Deputy 
Prime Minster on 4 June 2013. This will follow from a presentation from the 
two cities to the Cities Minister in May. The discussions will focus on the 
specific challenges to be addressed, financial modelling, proposed use of the 
Core Package, and governance arrangements. Cabinet Office support has 
been identified to work with the two cities and partners to develop the 
proposals over the next two months. 

9. Implementation of the City Deal would commence from the summer. 

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Capital/Revenue  

10. There is no new funding for City Deals, but an intention to devolve national 
funds and policy direction to a local level, re-packaging and combining 
existing resources more efficiently. 

11. A primary objective of the Deal is to stimulate private sector investment.  The 
Royal Pier, Itchen Riverside and Watermark WestQuay developments would 
create over £550 million investment and more than 8,000 jobs. 

12. Full legal and financial implications, delegations and governance will be 
further addressed as the Deal is refined and negotiated with Government. 

Property/Other 

13. Full legal and financial implications, delegations and governance will be 
further addressed as the Deal is refined and negotiated with Government. 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:  

14. Full legal and financial implications, delegations and governance will be 
further addressed as the Deal is refined and negotiated with Government. 

Other Legal Implications:  

15. Full legal and financial implications, delegations and governance will be 
further addressed as the Deal is refined and negotiated with Government. 

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS 

16. This will be identified as the deal is refined and negotiated with Government. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 4

KEY DECISION?  No 

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: None directly as a result of this report 

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Appendices  

1. City Deal Expression of Interest (EOI) 

Documents In Members’ Rooms 

1. None 

Equality Impact Assessment  

Do the implications/subject of the report require an Equality Impact 
Assessment (EIA) to be carried out. 

Dependent upon 
forward plan item 

Other Background Documents 

Equality Impact Assessment and Other Background documents available for 
inspection at: 

Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the Access to 
Information Procedure Rules / Schedule 
12A allowing document to be 
Exempt/Confidential (if applicable) 

1. None  

 



City Deal EOI v.17 

 

1 

 

Section A: Summary information  

EOI  final version:  15 January 2013 

 
A1. Proposal title 

 

“The Portsmouth and Southampton City Deal: A second wave for the Solent Maritime economy” 

A2. Key partners involved in the proposal. 

• Portsmouth City Council 

• Southampton City Council 

• Solent Local Enterprise Partnership 

• Hampshire County Council 

• Isle of Wight County Council 

• District Councils including:  East Hampshire,  Eastleigh, Fareham, Gosport , Havant, 
New Forest, Test Valley and Winchester. 

• BAE Systems 

• Associated British Ports 

• Centros Delancy 

• Tipner Regeneration Company 

• Morgan Sindall 

• Hammerson  

• Southampton Football Club 

A3. Local point of contact. 

Anne-Marie Mountifield 

Chief Executive of the Solent LEP 

Email: anne-marie.mountifield@solentlep.org.uk 

DD 023 92 688921 

Mob 07540 238154 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



City Deal EOI v.17 

 

2 

 

Section B: Problem definition 

B1. What is the single economic challenge or opportunity that you want to address 

through a city deal? Why has this been chosen as the focus of your proposal?  

With a population of over 1.3 million and 50,000 businesses the Solent area is an internationally 
recognised key industrial hub, anchored around the two cities of Portsmouth and Southampton, the M27 
corridor and the Solent waterway. Southampton Airport links to 43 destinations in Europe with 1.76 
million passengers (2011) and 250 tonnes of cargo a year.  The economic and communications inter-
dependencies between the cities and the wider Solent area are crucial to a local economy that 
produces output of around £48.5bn (GVA £23.7bn) and supports around 485,000(FTE) jobs. The cities 
have a sub regional footprint and workers in the wider sub region tend to travel into the cities, so their 
prosperity is critical to the wider economy. 

Like many areas, our economy faces multiple challenges including the need to invest in education and 
skills to ensure that local residents are equipped to take up the jobs that are created, improving the 
strength of our business and housing stock, and supporting areas that are economically vulnerable in 
order to substantially reduce the high levels of welfare dependency. It is our expectation that these 
areas will be addressed in the Core Offer associated with the City Deal. 

The focus of our EOI is to address the challenge associated with facilitating the growth and 
diversification of our maritime sector, specifically our sub-sectors in transport and logistics, 
defence and advanced manufacturing, the visitor economy and the complex supply chains 
linked to  research and innovation.  The focus of the Portsmouth and Southampton City deal is  
to deliver enabling infrastructure and assemble land to bring forward the development of  seven  
key sites (Royal Pier, Itchen Riverside,  Marchwood, Watermark Westquay the Portsmouth Naval 
Base, Tipner/Horsea Island and the Northern Quarter) around the  Southampton/Portsmouth 
Waterfronts, allowing growth in this sector and the associated sub-clusters. 

The Solent is the heart of the UK maritime cluster, comprising 20.5% of the Solent's GVA, compared 
with just 3.5% across the UK.  It contributes 40,000 jobs and over 3,000 businesses in the wider supply 
chain. Whilst the outlook for this cluster is extremely positive, without galvanising decision-making and 
investment, the availability of timely land capacity and the right knowledge and skills is a significant 
constraint on future economic growth, as is the congestion on access routes across the wider inter 
urban network. With the focused support set out in Section C, we can unlock investment worth £1.5bn 
and significant growth linked to; 

Southampton Waterfront:  This is dominated by the Port of Southampton providing a wide range of 
passenger, freight and cargo functions. It has a sub-regional footprint providing, directly and indirectly, 
15,000 jobs1 in the Solent, contributing over £1.2bn of output per annum and it is one of the UK’s largest 
ports, an international gateway and a global import and export hub for the UK motor industry, exporting 
more vehicles than any other UK port2. It is the busiest cruise port in the UK showing a 380% increase 
in cruise passengers over the period 1998 to 20103. The container4 and Ro-Ro sectors are forecast to 
grow by an average annual rate of 3-4% and by 2020 the intensity of land use will have reached the 
limits of practical land use optimisation. We are seeking to facilitate the growth of the Port by supporting 
land assembly linked to the MOD site at Marchwood and optimise the land use linked to the Waterfront 
including Itchen Riverside, Royal Pier and Watermark Westquay.  

Portsmouth Waterfront: This is dominated by a defence cluster which is also very well represented 
right across the Solent area5. Portsmouth and the Royal Naval Base form the heart of this and the 
present day Base has three miles of waterfront. It provides, directly and indirectly, 20,000 jobs across 

                                                        
1
 Across the City of Southampton and surrounding areas including IOW and Districts in South Hampshire 

2
 700,000 vehicles in 2011 

3
 1,243,000 in 2010. This will increase to 2,000,000 by 2030 

4
 DP Container terminal sits on 210 acres with 1350m of continuous quay and handles 40 – 45% of UK deep sea 

trade. 
5
 Many of the largest suppliers to the MOD including BAE, Lockheed Martin, Northrup Grumman, QinetiQ, Serco and 

Rolls Royce  are located in the Solent 



City Deal EOI v.17 

 

3 

 

the sub region and contributes over £1.6bn of output. Currently it supports the RN surface fleet and 
there is a strong maritime services function offering an integrated ship support, complex software 
engineering and advanced manufacturing solutions, equipment management, training, estates and 
logistics service. We are seeking to facilitate the transformation of the Naval Base by accelerating 
planned infrastructure investment linked to the site and optimising the land use linked to the waterfront 
including the Tipner./Horsea Island bridge, the Tipner development  and the Northern Quarter 

The key to the success of the Solent economy will hinge on its ability to grow, evolve and adapt to 
changing trends in global trade, the evolution of complex warships which require high end advanced 
manufacturing and complex business engineering solutions,  new commercial and regulatory priorities 
(e.g. in renewables), changes in defence policy and shipping.  

In the period to 2030 the Port of Southampton forecasts an increase of 4000 jobs and an additional 
£0.5bn GVA output per annum and there is a lack of space for expansion along Southampton Water, 
which could be alleviated by access to land at Marchwood. 

 Going forward the vision is that the surface fleet will be managed from a Portsmouth hub (see point 3 
below) and there will be an increase in tonnage from 90,000 in 2012 to 240,000 by 2020. Ships will be 
highly complex and at least 150% larger, needing 300% more power with an overall increase in sailors 
(base ported in Portsmouth) of 2000.  

This growth is at risk and is being jeopardised due to: 

1. Complexities linked to multiple public agency involvement, land assembly and land 
remediation. Large sites with employment and housing potential exist, but, given the 
constraints over the use of land for environmental and policy reasons, they require concerted 
decision-making and significant investment to make them fit for purpose.  Long lead-in times 
and sequential rather than co-ordinated decision-making by central agencies in DEFRA, the 
MOD and HCA is suppressing private sector investment.  

2. Uncertainty linked to delivering infrastructure and development. Securing efficient 
delivery of infrastructure requires co-ordinated and timely decision making and an environment 
that gives confidence to investors.  A wide variety of issues contribute to this as detailed in 1. 
but some of the key problems include an unclear planning and consenting regime at a national 
level. Our unique coastal location is subject to the habitats directive. It is important that the 
sensitivity of environmentally important sites is respected, but there are issues linked to 
proportionality and there are many examples where protracted decision-making in relation to 
these directives has led to unnecessary costs and delays in the delivery of our key 
infrastructure projects.   

3. Uncertainty around land release and associated investment needed to facilitate this 
expansion.   Much of it is controlled by public agencies such as the MOD. For example, the 
port facility at Marchwood is located within the wider Port of Southampton area handling some 
100,000 tonnes of cargo per annum. The 2010 Strategic Defence Review concluded that this 
was surplus to MOD requirements and should be disposed of, but as yet its future has not 
been confirmed. Conversely, there is a lack of space for expansion along Southampton Water, 
which could be alleviated by access to land at Marchwood; it would also free up development 
opportunities linked to the Itchen riverside, including potential Southampton Football Club 
investment.  Another example is the Portsmouth Naval Base. There is a need to prepare for 
the arrival of the Queen Elizabeth Class aircraft carriers, which will be based in Portsmouth at 
the latest from 2017. The dockyard’s Victorian infrastructure, whilst historically important, will 
not meet the increased demand of supporting the surface fleet without ‘wrap-around’ 
investment in business critical infrastructure such as utilities and logistics. The MOD has a 
planned 10 year capital investment of £332m for the Base. This needs to be brought forward 
and aligned with infrastructure investment from the private sector and  local public sector 
investment  to bring forward the arrival of the QE Class carriers to 2015, thereby  safeguarding  
the maritime services operations and supporting the sustainable future operation of the Naval 
Base. 



City Deal EOI v.17 

 

4 

 

B2. Why can’t this be taken forward by the private sector or through existing policy 

tools?  

Given the history of the area it is unsurprising that some of the development sites have large upfront 
costs that render them initially unattractive, particularly where land remediation including de-
contaminating ex-military sites is needed and/or third party consents from statutory bodies are required.  
This inhibits private sector investment.  

The private sector is encountering blockages caused by over regulation and land assembly issues. 
Developments have experienced severe delays or are being mothballed until businesses (such as 
ABP, Morgan Sindall and BAE Systems) receive the permissions they need from key agencies such 
as the MMO and Natural England, or land acquisition from the MOD. In an area with a strong maritime 
core and a high concentration of MOD land this is a barrier to growth and there are long running issues 
particular to Portsmouth and Southampton linked to securing consents from the MMO for Port 
development and certainty from the MOD on land release/acquisition needed to create the space for the 
expansion along the Southampton Water and to safeguard the sustainable, maritime services side of 
operations at the Portsmouth Naval Base.  

Our local leaders (public and private) are committed to working together to effect long term economic 
change in both cities.  There is a willingness to use local funds to bring forward these sites working on a 
shared risk basis with government, but it will require the development of flexible financial frameworks 
and greater devolvement and co-ordination of decision-making.  Central government has a vital role to 
play through the City Deal to create the conditions needed for this economic transformation to take 
place, including a need to secure a special relationship with key government agencies (particularly 
the DEFRA family, MOD, HCA, Crown estates (TCE) and HA) to ensure that we all work together 
to meet shared goals. 

Section C: Broad approach 

C1. What broad approach do you intend to take to addressing the challenge or 

opportunity identified above?  

Our broad approach is to secure devolved and focussed support and decision making across local and 

central agencies to deliver a £1.5bn transformation of our waterfront sites underpinned by a new 
strategic Growth plan for the Solent area. The land, investors and schemes have been identified and 
commitment to this through the City Deal will give further confidence to the sector and the Solent area. 
It will focus on bringing into use land benefiting from existing port infrastructure of national significance 
and enhancing a global maritime cluster by strengthening the private sector business base in both 
cities.   

We will do this by: 

1. Preparing a high quality three year strategic plan to direct investment in the Solent area in to 
include transport, housing, schemes to get people back into work, skills, schemes to support 
business creation and growth and any additional local growth funding. This would combine with the 
local investment funds identified below. 

2. Committing significant local investment (£1.5bn) alongside a new strategic plan6 for local 
growth for the Solent area.  Recognising the scale and complexity of the challenges we face, the 
immediate threat of further economic shocks and more job losses including the Ford closure 
announcement, the Solent LEP will lead the development of a new three year strategic plan for the 
Solent area for completion in mid 2013. This plan will include coordination with on-going public 
programmes and private sector demand and will leverage funding, including from local authorities 

                                                        
6  and supporting investment framework, prioritising projects on an appraisal system that assesses impact on economic growth 



City Deal EOI v.17 

 

5 

 

and the wider public and private sector. Capacity is already in place to ensure that this can go 
forward with immediate effect.   

To support the delivery of this plan and to unlock over £1bn of private sector investment, we will 
create two distinct funds with a total of £500m directed specifically at unlocking growth. 

The first fund will be drawn from the significant temporary cash balances held in the earmarked 
reserves of the Local Authorities party to this Deal, and the Growing Places Fund.  Instead of 
investing these funds on the money markets, the Local Authorities are prepared to use them as 
development finance to potentially accelerate  the developments at Tipner, Itchen Riverside, Royal 
Pier, Watermark West Quay and Northern Quarter7 and to potentially make them more viable to 
unlock further private sector investment.  Such funds would be suited to these private sector 
developments as they have a relatively short payback and would be issued in the form of loan 
finance over a rolling 5 to 10 year period. Whilst the reserves are required in the future to meet 
known liabilities, there is a willingness to explore investing these funds into the core growth 
proposals in this Deal.  Of over-riding concern however, is the duty of Local Authorities and the 
Accountable Body for the Solent LEP to safeguard public funds and to not invest such funds at 
undue risk.   

The second fund would be created at the risk of the Local Authorities and sourced from Prudential 
Borrowing.  This fund would be used to support Public Sector infrastructure which is required as an 
enabler of development and which had no obvious private sector payback and would potentially  
include supporting the construction of the Tipner/Horsea Island Bridge and road/flood defence 
infrastructure in Portsmouth and Southampton8. The Local Authorities would be willing to borrow for 
investments that could be financed by additional NNDR receipts generated over a 20 year period or 
the life of the asset, whichever is the earlier.  Equally, the Authorities would undertake the 
necessary due diligence and business case modelling prior to awarding any investment.  This fund 
will be limited only by the likely payback in terms of NNDR receipts but could reasonably be 
expected to amount to c £200m. 

To do this our asks are that: 

i. Building on the creation of our local investment fund, the Solent will work with you to 
support the creation of a single pot for economic growth to be made available in  
2014, combining investment across government agencies and local investment funds. 
This should include a provision for the Solent to share in all revenues generated from 
local growth. 

ii. Our first investment fund is underwritten by the Government’s Infrastructure 
Guarantee under the Infrastructure (Financial Assistance) Act 2012. We would 
mitigate the risk by gaining all the normal charges, securities and guarantees from 
developers linked to the schemes at at Tipner, Itchen Riverside, Royal Pier, 
Watermark West Quayand Northern Quarter  and develop a business case, including 
associates risk event scenarios.  Utilising these temporary surplus funds would not 
require any additional borrowing on the part of the local authorities or on the national 
balance sheet.  We would ask that this Infrastructure Guarantee is used to underwrite 
any loss of principal and interest that may arise should there be a default on the loan 
for any reason.    

iii. Our agreed sites within our second investment fund are outside of the national 
reset proposals for NNDR. 

                                                        
7 subject to the preparation of a business case, including associate risk scenarios and use of the Infrastructure Guarantee is 

used to underwrite any loss of principal and interest that may arise should there be a default on the loan for any reason.    
8 subject to undertake the necessary due diligence and business case modelling prior to awarding any investment. and a case 

that demonstrated that that this  could be financed by additional NNDR receipts generated over a 20 year period or the life of 
the asset, whichever is the earlier.   



City Deal EOI v.17 

 

6 

 

iv. The Solent LEP nominate an infrastructure project funded under the new 
concessionary public works loan rate. 

 

3. Creating a favourable business environment and reducing regulation is critical to our success. 
We have agreed a sub-regional spatial strategy across ten local authorities to prioritise 
development and employment sites for our key sectors, and identified infrastructure needs.  Our 
local planning policies are aligned to this and, in addition to the Enterprise Zone, we will apply LDO 
arrangements in significant growth locations to facilitate the speedy development of individual sites 
such as Northern Quarter and Itchen Riverside. We will, as part of the City Deal, agree an 
investment framework9 that details the pipeline of projects we will implement over the 10 year 
period to 2023 (and as detailed in D1) and beyond to 2033 and this will be a material consideration 
in the determination of planning applications. This has and will continue to improve business 
confidence. To do this our asks are to: 

 
I. Simplify and speed-up planning procedures nationally within the Solent area and also to balance 

the influence of statutory consultees. We want to see reform to ensure that the statutory bodies’10 
working practices are improved to facilitate the delivery of timely, informed and proportionate 
responses to proposed development at the Port of Southampton and along the waterfront at Itchen 
Riverside and Royal Pier and similarly for Tipner and the Portsmouth Naval Base .  We would like 
to develop collaborative planning arrangements at a local level, including a local, time limited 
planning appeal process for major developments.  
 

II. Establish a single conversation and a direct dialogue with the MMO, Natural England, Environment 
Agency MOD and HCA to secure a positive and joined-up approach to development proposals 
linked to the Port, the Naval Base, Marchwood and other key strategic sites such as Tipner, Royal 
Pier, the Ford site and Itchen Waterside. Within this the Solent would be willing to pilot the creation 
of a jointly led (DEFRA/local area) problem solving unit to address blockages (linked to dredging, 
land remediation and development of the current ex-military/MOD sites of Tipner, Marchwood and 
the Naval Base) which are holding back projects of economic significance. In addition we need to 
secure an agreement to localised asset management bringing together local and national land 
assets and investment and the creation of a local delivery team made up of senior decision 
makers from the local authorities, the LEP, BIS, DFT DCLG (HCA). the DEFRA family , (the MMO, 
the Environment Agency and  Natural England) Crown Estates (TCE) and the MOD - all tasked 
with delivering these developments in a timely and responsive manner.   

III. Secure a responsive approach to the release of decommissioned MOD sites back to the 
market and a new approach to releasing economically important development land by the MOD, 
particularly in relation to the development of Marchwood and the Naval Base at Portsmouth where 
there is the potential to unlock further growth in maritime services and logistics.  

IV. There is also a need to enhance local influence over other national agencies in order to remove 
unnecessary and inefficient central control.  Local management of the network will help ensure 
transport into the sites is managed effectively, thereby increasing the viability of these sites.The 
South Hampshire highway network is dominated by the M27, which, whilst an important strategic 
road (particularly with regard to port traffic), also performs an significant local distributor function. 

This together with the M271, M275 are unusual in that c70% of the traffic they carry comprises 

local journeys.  The fragmented nature of the road network in this area means that different 
agencies are managing transport for different objectives some of which conflict with the economic 
growth of the cities and wider Solent area. In addition we are missing real opportunities to reduce 
costs by developing shared traffic management, procurement and land use strategies.  We also 
believe there is also a need to rebalance the HA priorities to be more supportive of economic 

                                                        
9 Aligning local funds, core economic funds from central government, ERDF and private sector investment 
10 From the DEFRA family – including MMO, Natural England and Environment Agency 



City Deal EOI v.17 

 

7 

 

growth.  To do this requires the establishment of a joint Management Board between the HA and 

the local highways authorities (HCC, PCC, SCC and IOW) and the development of a tailored 

Route Management strategy for the M27, M271 and M275 and the surrounding local road 
network. 

C2 How can this approach ‘do more with less’ by delivering greater efficiency in 

public spend or by leveraging new resources from the private sector?  

The overarching benefits are that it will: 

• Deliver significant  £1.5BN local co-investment from the private and public sectors in our key 
commercial locations, shortening the time horizon on which these developments can come forward 
as detailed in D1 

• Encourage a greater willingness in the Cities and the wider Solent to take on risks, adopting a 
risk sharing approach with Central Government when implementing projects to promote local 
growth. This is critical as many of our sites need de risking before we can unlock private sector 
investment. 

• Facilitate the preparation of joint investment plan across the two cities and Solent area, 
encouraging local authorities to collaborate in investment planning alongside the central 
government infrastructure guarantee facility and local business rate retention. 

§ Deliver rigor in determining the economic benefits from projects appraised under an agreed 
investment framework that assesses impact on economic growth 

§ Deliver greater efficiency in the management and operation of the transport network to underpin 
growth by better utilisation of existing capacity.  

C3 What local resources do you expect to invest in addressing this problem?  

We will invest  over £1.5bn of local funds under a risk sharing approach with the private sector, local 
government, Solent LEP and central government as follows: 

§ Creating  a revolving fund to support economic investment in the Solent area Two local 
investment funds comprising c£500m drawing on significant temporary cash balances in 
earmarked reserves within the two cities and the Solent LEP Growing Places fund and by pooling 
and applying prudential borrowing capacity across Solent local authorities to borrow against Local 
Authority-wide growth. 

§ £1bn private sector investment via ABP, Morgan Sindall (for Royal Pier), BAE Systems. Tipner 
Regeneration Company, Southampton FC and Centros Delancey. 

We will also align and invest our considerable local public/private partnerships, our local  skills and 
regeneration experience, extensive track record of collaborative working (Solent LEP, PUSH, TfSH) and 
our commitment to develop suitable combined authority governance arrangements to deliver the City 
Deal.  

We will also be bringing forward identified land which relates to a world trade gateway of national 
significance for high value added developments to support our key sectors.    

Section D: Expected benefits  

D1 How do you expect your proposal to have an impact on local jobs and growth, 

and at what scale?   

The City Deal focuses on a 10 year plan for the sites detailed below, as they have the greatest potential 
to transform our economy for the cities and wider Solent area,  as the two cities account  for 29% of 



City Deal EOI v.17 

 

8 

 

total private sector employment within the Solent  sub region11.  Based on independent analysis12 this  

could facilitate: 

§ The growth of Southampton Port over the period 2013 to 2023. 

§ The transformation of the Naval Base by 2015 to meet the increased demand for supporting the 
surface ships moving forward  

§ The delivery of the Northern Quarter by 2018  

§ The realisation of Watermark West Quay in Southampton by Hammerson by 2019 

§ The delivery of the Tipner and the Tipner/Horsea Island bridge by development by 2020  

§ The delivery of the Royal Pier by Morgan Sindall by 2023 

§ The delivery of the Itchen Riverside, with a timeline dependent on discussion regarding release of 
MOD sites 

This will unlock over £1 bn of private sector investment and in the period to 2023 will create 16,500 new 
jobs and safeguard 3900 existing jobs for residents across the Solent sub region. 

Section E: Governance  

E1. Over what geographical area will you address this problem? Why? 

The Solent area comprises two of the largest cities in the south east, Portsmouth and Southampton with 

the surrounding southern part of the County of Hampshire. The ‘urban core’ is made up of the two cities 
plus Eastleigh, Fareham, Gosport and Havant. The geography covered by the Solent LEP also includes 
the Isle of Wight and parts of the New Forest, Test Valley, Winchester and East Hampshire. There are 
significant economic interdependencies across the area; therefore the geographical focus for the bid will 
be the Solent LEP functional economic area. The County and district authorities have long recognised 
the need to promote a 'cities first' policy; there is an interdependency between the economies of the two 
cities and the surrounding area that requires the group of authorities comprising south Hampshire to 
work together across administrative boundaries.   

  

E2. What governance structures will ensure effective, binding and strategic 

decision-making across the relevant economic area? 

                                                        
11 Centre for Cities - 2011 

12 Socio – economic impact of the Port of Southampton – Atkins 2011 and the Socio economic impact of Portsmouth Naval 

Base – Portsmouth University - 2012 



City Deal EOI v.17 

 

9 

 

A formal protocol of collaboration already exists between the two city councils that has endured 

changes of political administration and chief executives. The formal creation of the Solent LEP, and the 

links between that and the existing sub sub-regional bodies, Partnership for Urban South Hampshire 
(PUSH) and Transport for South Hampshire (TfSH) has enhanced the existing local authority 

governance arrangements by bringing together not only the main business organisations but also a 
wide range of sector based organisations that provide a strong base on which to build and drive forward 

an economic strategy. This will ease the transition towards a combined arrangement. It has  also 
enabled the private sector, local authorities and higher education to work together under the Solent LEP 
and the relevant local authorities and others to work together effectively for eight years. All partnerships 

have been resilient to political change within the constituent authorities.   

The Southampton and Portsmouth City Deal provides an opportunity to build on these governance 
arrangements, as well as the expertise of others who have developed governance arrangements for 
their City Deals. This includes considering key advantages of a Combined Authority model as it is 
recognised that this delivers joint governance arrangements for transport, economic development and 
regeneration, which allow for strategic prioritisation across the area covered by the Combined Authority. 
It is intended to engage with core cities such as Leeds and Sheffield who are adopting a Combined 
Authority model and there is a commitment to undertake an options appraisal of a range of models, 
including existing Joint Committee structures, the Solent LEP governance structure and the Combined 
Authority model13. This will commence in March 2013 with an intention to conclude the appraisal by 
September 2013. This should ensure that we develop robust governance arrangements that build on 
our current strengths and which also meets the requirement to ensure effective, binding and strategic 
decision-making across the Solent LEP economic area. 

E3. How will you generate momentum in developing a workable city deal 

proposal?  

Considerable momentum has already been developed.  We are already building on strong existing 
relationships that have existed for a number of years through TfSH, PUSH and the Solent LEP.  A core 
team has come together from the local authorities and the Solent LEP to develop the City Deal.  All of 
the Council Leaders and Chief Executives of the local authorities in the Solent area have expressed 
their commitment to making the City Deal work. Together with the Solent LEP, we have commissioned 
the Centre for Cities to assist with our bid and are meeting regularly with Cities Unit and BIS Ministers 
and colleagues, including a series of workshops held with the county and district councils, the LEP, 
PUSH and TfSH to support the development of this bid.  
 
 Following the announcements in the Autumn Statement, Solent LEP will lead the development of a new 
three year strategic plan for the Solent area for completion in mid 2013, consulting with all relevant local 
partners, including City, District and County authorities, the local chambers of commerce and other 
business bodies. This plan will build on existing plans, include coordination with ongoing public 
programmes, and will seek to leverage funding, including from local authorities and the wider public and 
private sector. We are also committed to agreeing as part of the City Deal the creation of a local growth 
team comprising senior decision makers from the local authorities, the LEP, BIS, DFT DCLG (HCA) and 
the DEFRA family  (the MMO, the Environment Agency and  Natural England) and the MOD. They will 
be tasked with facilitating these developments, joining up local and central government, and delivering 
in a timely and responsive manner.  

                                                        
13 As agreed at  the City Deal workshop meeting on 8 January 2013 by all Local Authorities listed in  A2  and the Solent LEP 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 1

DECISION-MAKER:  OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

SUBJECT: SOUTHAMPTON LOCAL SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN 
BOARD ANNUAL REPORT 2011-12 

DATE OF DECISION: 14 MARCH 2013 

REPORT OF: INDEPENDENT CHAIR OF THE SOUTHAMPTON LOCAL 
SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN BOARD 

CONTACT DETAILS 

AUTHOR: Name: Donald McPhail Tel: 023 8083 2995 

 E-mail:Jane.evans@southampton.gov.uk 

 

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 

None 

BRIEF SUMMARY 

This report sets out the priorities and achievements of, and the challenges faced by 
Southampton Local Safeguarding Children Board (SLSCB). It provides an overview of 
safeguarding activities in Southampton for children and young people under the age 
of 18. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 (i) That Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee notes the 
2011/12 Annual Report of the Southampton Local Safeguarding 
Children Board. 

REASON FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. To inform the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee of the work of 
the Board. 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

2.  To not submit this report. This option was rejected, as it is inconsistent with 
good practice. 

DETAIL (Including consultation carried out) 

3. The 2011/12 Annual Report of the Southampton Local Safeguarding Children 
Board is attached. This is the third Annual Report of the Board since the 
requirement of the Apprenticeships, Skills, Children and Learning Act 2009 
and Working Together to Safeguard Children Statutory Guidance 2010 to 
submit an Annual Report to the Children’s Trust was introduced.  This report 
will be presented to Southampton Children and Young People’s Trust on 13th 
March 2013. 

4. The Annual Report was presented to the Southampton Local Safeguarding 
Children Board on 13th November 2012 for consultation whereby Members 
had the opportunity to comment on the document prior to submission to both 
the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee and Southampton’s 
Children and Young People’s Trust.  Comments made have been 
incorporated into the final document presented here. 

Agenda Item 8



 

 2

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Capital/Revenue  

5. None 

Property/Other 

6. None. 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:  

7. The Apprenticeships, Skills, Children and Learning Act 2009 and Working 
Together to Safeguard Children Statutory Guidance 2010. 

Other Legal Implications:  

8. None 

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS 

9. The work of the Southampton Local Safeguarding Children Board contributes 
to the outcomes of the Children and Young People’s Plan with particular 
responsibility for overseeing aspects of the plan that relate to the “Staying 
Safe” outcome of the Every Child Matters agenda. 

 

KEY DECISION?  No 

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: None 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Appendices  

1. Southampton Local Safeguarding Children Board Annual Report 2011-12 

Documents In Members’ Rooms 

 None 

Equality Impact Assessment  

Do the implications/subject of the report require an Equality Impact 
Assessment (EIA) to be carried out. 

No 

Other Background Documents 

Equality Impact Assessment and Other Background documents available for 
inspection at: 

Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the Access to 
Information Procedure Rules / Schedule 
12A allowing document to be 
Exempt/Confidential (if applicable) 

1. None  

 



 
1

   

 
 

S
o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
  

L
o
ca

l 
C
h
ild

re
n
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 B

o
a
rd

 
 

 
A
n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
1
1
-1

2
  

   

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



 
2

 C
o
n
te

n
ts

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 C

h
a

ir
s
 f

o
rw

a
rd

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
3

 

1
 

In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

4
 

2
S

o
u

th
a

m
p

to
n

 S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 C

h
il

d
re

n
 B

o
a

rd
  

 
 

 
 

5
 

 

3
  

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

n
d

 a
c
h

ie
v

e
m

e
n

ts
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n

 2
0

1
1

-1
4

  
 

1
2

 

4
 

S
u

b
 c

o
m

m
it

te
e

s
 a

c
ti

v
it

ie
s
 &

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s
 

 
 

 
1

5
 

 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 1
: 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 

S
o

u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 C
h

il
d

re
n

 
B

o
a

rd
  

2
4

 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

: 
a

tt
e

n
d

a
n

c
e

 a
t 

b
o

a
rd

 m
e

e
ti

n
g

s
 

 
 

 
 

 
2

6
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 

        



 
3

C
h
a
ir
’s

 f
o
rw

a
rd

 
 T
h
is

 2
0
1
1
-1

2
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt

 s
h
o
w

s 
e
v
id

e
n
ce

 o
f 
th

e
 B

o
a
rd

s 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

in
 b

o
th

 t
h
e
 r

a
n
g
e
 a

n
d
 d

e
p
th

 o
f 

it
s 

a
ct

iv
it
ie

s,
 a

n
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 d

e
g
re

e
 o

f 
it
s 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 e

m
b
e
d
d
in

g
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 l
o
ca

l 
co

n
te

x
t.

 T
h
is

 y
e
a
r 

h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 a

 b
u
sy

 o
n
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s 

o
u
tl
in

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
a
st

 A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt

 
b
e
in

g
 p

ro
g
re

ss
e
d
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
y
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

 T
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 d
e
m

o
n
st

ra
te

s 
th

e
 e

n
o
rm

o
u
s 

a
m

o
u
n
t 

o
f 

co
m

m
it
te

d
 h

a
rd

 w
o
rk

 b
y
 t

h
e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
p
ro

fe
ss

io
n
a
ls

 m
a
k
in

g
 u

p
 t

h
e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 m
u
lt
i 

d
is

ci
p
lin

a
ry

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
h
a
t 

is
 t

h
e
 S

o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 B
o
a
rd

 (
S
S
C
B
).

 T
h
e
 B

o
a
rd

 h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 a

ss
is

te
d
 t

h
is

 y
e
a
r 

b
y
 t

h
e
 i
n
cl

u
si

o
n
 

o
f 

a
 l
a
y
 m

e
m

b
e
r 

a
n
d
 i
t 

is
 h

o
p
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 r

e
cr

u
it
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
n
o
th

e
r 

la
y
 m

e
m

b
e
r 

w
ill

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

a
ss

is
t 

th
e
 B

o
a
rd

 i
n
 m

a
k
in

g
 s

tr
o
n
g
e
r 

lin
k
s 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 

co
m

m
u
n
it
y
. 
 

 A
s 

w
e
 a

re
 a

ll 
a
w

a
re

, 
e
ff
e
ct

iv
e
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
s 

a
 “

jo
in

e
d
 u

p
” 

a
p
p
ro

a
ch

, 
a
n
d
 i
t 

re
q
u
ir
e
s 

a
ll 

a
g
e
n
ci

e
s 

to
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 e

ff
e
ct

iv
e
ly

 p
ri
o
ri
ti
se

 a
n
d
 

to
 b

e
 p

ro
-a

ct
iv

e
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 r
is

k
s 

o
f 

n
e
g
le

ct
 o

r 
a
b
u
se

 t
o
 c

h
ild

re
n
. 
W

h
ils

t 
m

a
k
in

g
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s 

a
n
d
 b

u
d
g
e
ta

ry
 p

re
ss

u
re

s 
a
re

 a
n
 i
n
e
v
it
a
b
le

 a
sp

e
ct

 
o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
ce

ss
, 
th

e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 t

h
e
 S

S
C
B
 m

u
st

 r
e
m

a
in

 v
ig

ila
n
t 

to
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
se

 l
in

k
s,

 a
n
d
 a

 p
ro

-a
ct

iv
e
 c

u
lt
u
re

, 
co

n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
e
d
 

a
m

o
n
g
st

 t
h
e
 w

h
o
le

 w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
, 
in

 r
e
sp

e
ct

 o
f 
sa

fe
g
u
a
rd

in
g
 i
ss

u
e
s.

  
 U

n
d
e
rp

in
n
in

g
 a

ll 
o
f 

th
e
se

 c
h
a
n
g
e
s 

is
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
ts

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
, 
th

e
 M

u
n
ro

 R
e
v
ie

w
. 
T
h
is

 c
a
lls

 f
o
r 

a
 m

o
re

 
sy

st
e
m

ic
 a

p
p
ro

a
ch

 t
o
w

a
rd

s 
w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 f

a
m

ili
e
s.

 T
h
e
 M

u
n
ro

 R
e
v
ie

w
 h

a
s 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

 s
tr

o
n
g
e
r 

se
n
se

 o
f 

p
ro

fe
ss

io
n
a
l 
d
is

cr
e
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 j
u
d
g
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 s

o
ci

a
l 
w

o
rk

 a
n
d
 a

 m
o
re

 f
o
cu

ss
e
d
 e

m
p
h
a
si

s 
o
n
 a

ch
ie

v
in

g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s 

fo
r 

ch
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
ir
 f

a
m

ili
e
s 

a
s 

k
e
y
 a

re
a
s.

 T
h
e
re

 a
re

 a
ls

o
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s 

fo
r 

h
o
w

 S
e
ri
o
u
s 

C
a
se

 R
e
v
ie

w
s 

a
re

 c
o
n
d
u
ct

e
d
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e
 B

o
a
rd

 w
ill

 n
e
e
d
 t

o
 c

o
n
si

d
e
r.

 
  L
o
o
k
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 f
u
tu

re
, 
th

e
re

fo
re

, 
w

h
ils

t 
th

e
 S

o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 L

S
C
B
 i
s 

in
 a

 g
o
o
d
 p

o
si

ti
o
n
 t

o
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

it
s 

ro
le

s 
o
f 

co
-o

rd
in

a
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 a

ss
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 

sa
fe

ty
 o

f 
ch

ild
re

n
's

 a
n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

, 
th

e
re

 c
a
n
 b

e
 n

o
 c

o
m

p
la

ce
n
cy

, 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
re

 a
re

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

co
n
si

d
e
ra

b
le

 c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
s,

 a
n
d
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s 
a
h
e
a
d
, 
in

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
th

e
 f
e
e
d
b
a
ck

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 O

fs
te

d
 i
n
sp

e
ct

io
n
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 m

o
v
e
 t

o
 G

P
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o
n
in

g
. 

 T
h
e
 B

o
a
rd

 w
ill

 n
e
e
d
 t

o
 a

d
d
re

ss
 t

h
e
se

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s 
a
n
d
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
s 

in
 a

 f
o
rw

a
rd

 l
o
o
k
in

g
 w

a
y
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 n

e
x
t 

y
e
a
r,

 b
u
ild

in
g
 o

n
 t

h
e
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

 o
f 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s 
a
n
d
 f

o
rm

a
lis

in
g
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 k

e
y
 n

e
w

 g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
ce

 a
n
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
ta

k
in

g
 o

n
 b

o
a
rd

 
th

e
 f
u
ll 

im
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s 

o
f 

th
e
 n

e
w

 W
o
rk

in
g
 T

o
g
e
th

e
r 

2
0
1
2
 d

o
cu

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 w

h
e
n
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
. 

 

 
 D

o
n
a
ld

 M
cP

h
a
il 

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

C
h
a
ir
 o

f 
S
o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 C

h
ild

re
n
 B

o
a
rd

  



 
4

 1
   

I
n

tr
o

d
u

c
ti

o
n

  
 

T
h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 s
e
ts

 o
u
t 

th
e
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s 

a
n
d
 a

ch
ie

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f,
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
s 

fa
ce

d
, 
b
y
 S

o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 C

h
ild

re
n
 B

o
a
rd

 (
S
S
C
B
).

 
It

 p
ro

v
id

e
s 

a
n
 o

v
e
rv

ie
w

 o
f 

sa
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

ct
iv

it
ie

s 
in

 S
o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 f

o
r 

ch
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 a

g
e
 o

f 
1
8
. 
T
h
is

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
s 

a
 b

a
se

lin
e
 a

n
d
 a

 f
o
cu

s 
fo

r 
th

e
 b

u
si

n
e
ss

 p
la

n
 a

n
d
 a

ct
iv

it
ie

s 
fo

r 
2
0
1
2
-1

3
. 

 S
o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 C

h
ild

re
n
 B

o
a
rd

 i
s 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
ci

l.
 T

h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 A

ct
 2

0
0
4
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
s 

th
e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 
a
s 

a
 L

o
ca

l 
A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
o
 e

st
a
b
lis

h
 a

 L
o
ca

l 
S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 C

h
ild

re
n
 B

o
a
rd

. 
T
h
e
 D

ir
e
ct

o
r 

o
f 

C
h
ild

re
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s 

a
n
d
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 r

e
p
o
rt

s 
o
n
 t

h
e
 e

ff
e
ct

iv
e
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 o

f 
th

e
 S

o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 B
o
a
rd

 t
o
 t

h
e
 C

h
ie

f 
E
x
e
cu

ti
v
e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
ci

l.
 

 S
o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 C

h
ild

re
n
 B

o
a
rd

 h
a
s 

a
 c

h
a
ir
 t

h
a
t 

is
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 l
o
ca

l 
st

a
tu

to
ry

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s,

 s
o
 t

h
e
 B

o
a
rd

 c
a
n
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
 i
ts

 
lo

ca
l 
ch

a
lle

n
g
e
 f

u
n
ct

io
n
 m

o
re

 e
ff

e
ct

iv
e
ly

. 
S
o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 C

h
ild

re
n
 B

o
a
rd

 (
S
S
C
B
) 

is
 r

e
sp

o
n
si

b
le

 f
o
r 

ch
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 t

h
e
 

S
o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

’s
 T

ru
st

 a
n
d
 i
f 

th
e
re

 a
re

 c
o
n
ce

rn
s 

a
b
o
u
t 

a
g
e
n
ci

e
s 

a
n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

a
b
o
u
t 

k
e
e
p
in

g
 c

h
ild

re
n
 s

a
fe

. 
 

                    



 
5

 2
 

S
o

u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 C
h

il
d

re
n

 B
o

a
rd

  
 T
h
e
 F

u
ll 

B
o
a
rd

 m
e
t 

b
i-
m

o
n
th

ly
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

ch
a
ir
e
d
 b

y
 a

n
 I

n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

C
h
a
ir
 i
n
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
ce

 w
it
h
 W

o
rk

in
g
 T

o
g
e
th

e
r 

2
0
1
0
. 
T
h
e
 P

a
n
e
l 

h
a
s 

a
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 

st
ra

te
g
ic

 l
e
a
d
e
rs

 o
f 

a
g
e
n
ci

e
s 

a
ll 

w
it
h
 a

 r
e
sp

o
n
si

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

 c
h
ild

re
n
 (

se
e
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
).

 T
h
e
 s

co
p
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

B
o
a
rd

 i
n
cl

u
d
e
s 

sa
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

n
d
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 w

e
lf
a
re

 o
f 

ch
ild

re
n
 i
n
 t

h
re

e
 b

ro
a
d
 a

re
a
s 

o
f 

a
ct

iv
it
y
. 

 T
h
e
 E

x
e
cu

ti
v
e
 B

o
a
rd

 w
a
s 

e
st

a
b
lis

h
e
d
 o

n
 6

th
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
0
 a

n
d
 m

e
e
ts

 b
i-
m

o
n
th

ly
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 f

u
ll 

b
o
a
rd

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s.

 M
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 c
o
m

p
ri
se

s 
o
f:

 
 D

o
n
a
ld

 M
cP

h
a
il 

(S
S
C
B
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

C
h
a
ir
) 

S
S
C
B
 B

o
a
rd

 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

B
u
d
g
e
n
, 
F
e
lic

it
y
 (

C
h
ild

re
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s 

a
n
d
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
) 

A
lis

o
n
 A

le
x
a
n
d
e
r 

(C
h
ild

re
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s 

a
n
d
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
) 

 
L
e
sl

e
y
 H

o
b
b
s 

(P
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 I

n
cl

u
si

o
n
) 

Ja
so

n
 H

o
g
g
 (

H
a
m

p
sh

ir
e
 C

o
n
st

a
b
u
la

ry
) 

Ju
d
y
 G

ill
o
w

 (
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 H

o
sp

it
a
l 
T
ru

st
) 

S
u
sa

n
 L

a
w

e
s 

(S
H

IP
 P

C
T
 C

lu
st

e
r)

 
 T
h
e
 E

x
e
cu

ti
v
e
 w

ill
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 B

o
a
rd

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 h

ig
h
lig

h
ti
n
g
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 b

u
si

n
e
ss

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 a
n
d
 a

n
y
 a

re
a
s 

o
f 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

 
 T

h
e

 s
c
o
p

e
 o

f 
th

e
 B

o
a

rd
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 a

n
d

 p
ro

m
o
ti
n

g
 t

h
e
 w

e
lf
a

re
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 i
n

 t
h

re
e

 b
ro

a
d

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
: 

1
) 

A
ct

iv
it
y
 t

h
a
t 

a
ff

e
ct

s 
a
ll 

ch
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 a

im
s 

to
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
d
 p

re
v
e
n
t 

m
a
lt
re

a
tm

e
n
t,

 o
r 

im
p
a
ir
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

h
e
a
lt
h
 o

r 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,

 a
n
d
 e

n
su

re
 

ch
ild

re
n
 a

re
 g

ro
w

in
g
 u

p
 i
n
 c

ir
cu

m
st

a
n
ce

s 
co

n
si

st
e
n
t 

w
it
h
 s

a
fe

 a
n
d
 e

ff
e
ct

iv
e
 c

a
re

. 
F
o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

: 
 

•
m

e
ch

a
n
is

m
s 

to
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
b
u
se

 a
n
d
 n

e
g
le

ct
 w

h
e
re

v
e
r 

th
e
y
 m

a
y
 o

cc
u
r;

 
•

w
o
rk

 t
o
 i
n
cr

e
a
se

 u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
sa

fe
g
u
a
rd

in
g
 c

h
ild

re
n
 i
ss

u
e
s 

in
 t

h
e
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

n
a
l 
a
n
d
 w

id
e
r 

co
m

m
u
n
it
y
, 
p
ro

m
o
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 m

e
ss

a
g
e
 

th
a
t 

sa
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 i
s 

e
v
e
ry

b
o
d
y
’s

 r
e
sp

o
n
si

b
ili

ty
; 

•
w

o
rk

 t
o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
a
t 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s 

w
o
rk

in
g
 o

r 
in

 c
o
n
ta

ct
 w

it
h
 c

h
ild

re
n
, 
o
p
e
ra

te
 r

e
cr

u
it
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 h

u
m

a
n
 r

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

p
ra

ct
ic

e
s 

th
a
t 

ta
k
e
 a

cc
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

 a
n
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h
e
 w

e
lf
a
re

 o
f 

ch
ild

re
n
; 

•
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 e

ff
e
ct

iv
e
n
e
ss

 o
f 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s’

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 d

u
ti
e
s 

u
n
d
e
r 

se
ct

io
n
 1

1
 o

f 
th

e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 A

ct
 2

0
0
4
; 

   



 
6

2
) 

P
ro

a
ct

iv
e
 w

o
rk

 t
h
a
t 

a
im

s 
to

 t
a
rg

e
t 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
g
ro

u
p
s 

fo
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

: 
 

•
d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
/e

v
a
lu

a
ti
n
g
 t

h
re

sh
o
ld

s 
a
n
d
 p

ro
ce

d
u
re

s 
fo

r 
w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 

•
fa

m
ili

e
s 

w
h
e
re

 a
 c

h
ild

 h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

s 
‘in

 n
e
e
d
’ 
u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 A

ct
 1

9
8
9
, 
b
u
t 

w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
 c

h
ild

 i
s 

n
o
t 

su
ff

e
ri
n
g
 o

r 
lik

e
ly

 t
o
 

su
ff

e
r 

si
g
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

h
a
rm

; 
a
n
d
 w

o
rk

 t
o
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

 a
n
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h
e
 w

e
lf
a
re

 o
f 

g
ro

u
p
s 

o
f 

ch
ild

re
n
 w

h
o
 a

re
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 m
o
re

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 
th

a
n
 t

h
e
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
, 
fo

r 
e
x
a
m

p
le

 c
h
ild

re
n
 l
iv

in
g
 a

w
a
y
 f

ro
m

 h
o
m

e
, 
ch

ild
re

n
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 r

u
n
 a

w
a
y
 f

ro
m

 h
o
m

e
, 
ch

ild
re

n
 

m
is

si
n
g
 f

ro
m

 s
ch

o
o
l 
o
r 

ch
ild

ca
re

, 
ch

ild
re

n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 y

o
u
th

 j
u
st

ic
e
 s

y
st

e
m

, 
in

cl
u
d
in

g
 c

u
st

o
d
y
, 
d
is

a
b
le

d
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 a
ff

e
ct

e
d
 b

y
 g

a
n
g
s.

 

3
) 

R
e
sp

o
n
si

v
e
 w

o
rk

 t
o
 p

ro
te

ct
 c

h
ild

re
n
 w

h
o
 a

re
 s

u
ff

e
ri
n
g
, 
o
r 

a
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 s

u
ff

e
r 

si
g
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

h
a
rm

, 
in

cl
u
d
in

g
: 

 

•
ch

ild
re

n
 a

b
u
se

d
 a

n
d
 n

e
g
le

ct
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 f
a
m

ili
e
s,

 i
n
cl

u
d
in

g
 t

h
o
se

 h
a
rm

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
te

x
t 

o
f 

d
o
m

e
st

ic
 v

io
le

n
ce

 a
n
d
 a

s 
a
 c

o
n
se

q
u
e
n
ce

 
o
f 

th
e
 i
m

p
a
ct

 o
f 

su
b
st

a
n
ce

 m
is

u
se

, 
o
r 

o
f 

p
a
re

n
ta

l 
m

e
n
ta

l 
ill

 h
e
a
lt
h
; 

•
ch

ild
re

n
 a

b
u
se

d
 o

u
ts

id
e
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 f

a
m

ili
e
s 

b
y
 a

d
u
lt
s 

k
n
o
w

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
m

; 
ch

ild
re

n
 a

b
u
se

d
 a

n
d
 n

e
g
le

ct
e
d
 b

y
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

n
a
l 
ca

re
rs

, 
ch

ild
re

n
 

a
b
u
se

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 s

e
x
u
a
l 
e
x
p
lo

it
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 v

ic
ti
m

s 
o
f 

cr
im

e
. 



 
7

 
 D

ia
g

ra
m

 o
f 

th
e

 S
o

u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 C
h

il
d

re
n

 B
o

a
rd

 a
n

d
 S

u
b

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e
s
  

      

S
o

u
th

a
m

p
to

n
  

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 B
o

a
rd

 
 

(C
h

a
ir

 D
o

n
a

ld
 

M
c
P

h
a

il
) 

4
L
S

C
B

  
P

o
li

c
ie

s
 &

 
P

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
  

S
u

b
 c

o
m

m
it

te
e

 
 

(C
h

a
ir

 D
a

v
id

 
H

o
g

g
) 

4
L
S

C
B

 
C

h
il

d
 D

e
a

th
 

O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 P

a
n

e
l 

 
 (

C
h

a
ir

 D
r 

R
u

th
 

M
il

to
n

) 

 S
e

ri
o

u
s
 C

a
s
e

 
R

e
v
ie

w
  

S
u

b
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

 
 

(C
h

a
ir

 D
o

n
a

ld
 

M
c
P

h
a

il
) 

 
 

P
u

b
li

c
 E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 &

 
A

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
  

S
u

b
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

 
 

(C
h

a
ir

 V
a

c
a

n
t)

 

P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l 
Is

s
u

e
s
  

S
u

b
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

 
  

(C
h

a
ir

 T
ri

s
h

 
N

e
w

c
o

m
b

e
) 

E
x

e
c
u

ti
v
e

 
B

o
a

rd
 

 
(c

h
a

ir
 D

o
n

a
ld

 
M

c
P

h
a

il
 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 &
 

E
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
  

S
u

b
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

 
  

(C
h

a
ir

 S
a

m
 R

a
y
) 

 

4
L
S

C
B

 C
h

a
ir

s
 &

 
M

a
n

a
g

e
rs

 
  

(C
h

a
ir

 D
o

n
a

ld
 

M
c
P

h
a

il
) 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 L
e

a
rn

in
g

 
&

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

S
u

b
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

 
 

(C
h

a
ir

 A
n

n
ie

 
M

c
Iv

e
r)

 

 

 



 
8

C
le

a
r 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
  

 C
le

a
r 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 p

ro
ce

ss
e
s 

a
n
d
 r

o
b
u
st

 c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
s 

to
 t

h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

’s
 T

ru
st

 w
e
re

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 B

o
a
rd

’s
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

ch
a
ir
. 

T
h
e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

ch
a
ir
 i
s 

a
cc

o
u
n
ta

b
le

 t
o
 t

h
e
 D

ir
e
ct

o
r 

o
f 

C
h
ild

re
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s 

a
n
d
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

s 
to

 t
h
e
 L

o
ca

l 
A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 S
cr

u
ti
n
y
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
. 
A
tt

e
n
d
a
n
ce

 a
t 

th
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

’s
 T

ru
st

 b
y
 t

h
e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

ch
a
ir
 a

llo
w

s 
ro

b
u
st

 r
e
p
o
rt

in
g
 p

ro
ce

ss
e
s 

a
n
d
 

ch
a
lle

n
g
e
s.

 T
h
e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

ch
a
ir
 i
s 

re
sp

o
n
si

b
le

 f
o
r:

 
 

•
ch

a
ir
 t

h
e
 B

o
a
rd

’s
 b

i-
m

o
n
th

ly
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s 

 
•

ch
a
ir
 o

f 
th

e
 E

x
e
cu

ti
v
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

•
p
ro

v
id

e
 d

ir
e
ct

io
n
 o

n
 e

m
e
rg

in
g
 i
ss

u
e
s 

fr
o
m

 s
e
ri
o
u
s 

ca
se

 r
e
v
ie

w
s 

 
•

a
tt

e
n
d
 t

h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

’s
 T

ru
st

 B
o
a
rd

  
•

su
p
p
o
rt

 s
u
b
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
s 

ch
a
ir
s 

b
y
 r

e
g
u
la

r 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s 

to
 r

e
v
ie

w
 p

ro
g
re

ss
 o

n
 b

u
si

n
e
ss

 p
la

n
 

•
su

p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 S

o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 
sc

ru
ti
n
y
 f

u
n
ct

io
n
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

•
ch

a
ir
 t

h
e
 S

e
ri
o
u
s 

C
a
se

 R
e
v
ie

w
 s

u
b
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

 
Is

su
e
s 

to
 t

h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

’s
 T

ru
st

: 
 

•
T
h
e
 r

e
g
u
la

r 
re

v
ie

w
s 

o
f 

th
e
 c

a
p
a
ci

ty
 o

f 
a
g
e
n
ci

e
s 

w
o
rk

in
g
 t

o
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
s 

th
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le

’s
 T

ru
st

 o
f 

a
n
y
 c

o
n
ce

rn
s.

 

•
T
h
e
 B

o
a
rd

 h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 a

w
a
re

 o
f 

th
e
 s

u
st

a
in

e
d
 h

ig
h
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

d
e
m

a
n
d
 o

f 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

fo
r 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 t

h
is

 h
a
s 

p
ro

v
e
d
 

ch
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 f

o
r 

st
a
tu

to
ry

 a
g
e
n
ci

e
s,

 t
h
is

 h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

’s
 T

ru
st

 

•
T
h
e
 B

o
a
rd

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 c

la
ri
fi
ca

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
g
re

ss
 o

n
 m

u
lt
i 
a
g
e
n
cy

 t
ra

in
in

g
 i
n
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
  

•
T
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
 m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
cy

 t
ra

in
in

g
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 r

e
su

lt
e
d
 i
n
 a

 f
u
ll 

co
st

 r
e
co

v
e
ry

 m
o
d
e
l 
o
f 

tr
a
in

in
g
 b

e
in

g
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
. 
T
h
e
 

st
ra

te
g
ic

 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

su
b
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 f

o
r 

sa
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 r

e
p
o
rt

s 
to

 b
o
th

 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

’s
 T

ru
st

 a
n
d
 

S
o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 C

h
ild

re
n
 B

o
a
rd

. 
 

•
T
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

’s
 T

ru
st

 w
a
s 

a
w

a
re

 o
f 
re

so
u
rc

e
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s 

o
f 

th
e
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 W

o
rk

in
g
 T

o
g
e
th

e
r 

(2
0
1
0
) 

st
a
tu

to
ry

 
g
u
id

a
n
ce

 

•
T
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
g
u
id

a
n
ce

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
T
re

a
tm

e
n
t 

A
g
e
n
cy

 o
n
 t

h
e
 J

o
in

t 
G

u
id

a
n
ce

 o
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 l
o
ca

l 
p
ro

to
co

ls
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 d

ru
g
 a

n
d
 

a
lc

o
h
o
l 
tr

e
a
tm

e
n
t 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

a
n
d
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

n
d
 f

a
m

ily
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

w
a
s 

ta
k
e
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

’s
 T

ru
st

 
      



 
9

O
fs

te
d

 I
n

s
p

e
c
ti

o
n

 F
in

d
in

g
s
 d

u
ri

n
g

 2
0

1
1

/
1

2
  

 T
h
e
 S

o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 C

h
ild

re
n
 B

o
a
rd

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
jo

in
t 

in
sp

e
ct

io
n
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 b

y
 O

fs
te

d
. 
A
 f

u
ll 

re
p
o
rt

 c
a
n
 b

e
 

fo
u
n
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 l
in

k
: 

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.o

fs
te

d
.g

o
v
.u

k
/l
o
ca

l-
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s/

so
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
. 
T
h
e
 f

in
d
in

g
s 

o
f 

th
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 a
re

 a
s 

fo
llo

w
s:

 
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

 
H

o
w

 g
o

o
d

 a
re

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 f

o
r 

lo
o

k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
c
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 c

a
re

 l
e

a
v
e

rs
?
 

O
v
e
ra

ll 
e
ff

e
ct

iv
e
n
e
ss

  
a
d
e
q
u
a
te

  
 

B
e
in

g
 h

e
a
lt
h
y
  

g
o
o
d
  

C
a
p
a
ci

ty
 f

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

 
a
d
e
q
u
a
te

  
 

S
ta

y
in

g
 s

a
fe

  
a
d
e
q
u
a
te

  

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

c
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 

 
E
n
jo

y
in

g
 a

n
d
 a

ch
ie

v
in

g
 

a
d
e
q
u
a
te

 

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
re

 s
a
fe

 a
n
d
 

fe
e
l 
sa

fe
  

a
d
e
q
u
a
te

  
 

M
a
k
in

g
 a

 p
o
si

ti
v
e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
, 

in
cl

u
d
in

g
 u

se
r 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

 
a
d
e
q
u
a
te

  

Q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
  

in
a
d
e
q
u
a
te

  
 

E
co

n
o
m

ic
 w

e
ll-

b
e
in

g
  

in
a
d
e
q
u
a
te

  

T
h
e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 o

f 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a

g
e
n
ci

e
s 

to
 

k
e
e
p
in

g
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 s
a
fe

  
a
d
e
q
u
a
te

  
 

Q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
  

in
a
d
e
q
u
a
te

  

A
m

b
it
io

n
 a

n
d
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
sa

ti
o
n
  

a
d
e
q
u
a
te

  
 

A
m

b
it
io

n
 a

n
d
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
sa

ti
o
n
  

a
d
e
q
u
a
te

  

L
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

 
a
d
e
q
u
a
te

  
 

L
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

 
a
d
e
q
u
a
te

  

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 

a
ss

u
ra

n
ce

  
a
d
e
q
u
a
te

  
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

q
u
a
lit

y
 a

ss
u
ra

n
ce

  
a
d
e
q
u
a
te

  

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g
  

a
d
e
q
u
a
te

  
 

E
q
u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 d

iv
e
rs

it
y
  

a
d
e
q
u
a
te

  

E
q
u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 d

iv
e
rs

it
y
  

a
d
e
q
u
a
te

  
 

 
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f

o
r 

lo
o

k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
c
h

il
d

re
n

 
 

 
 

O
v
e
ra

ll 
e
ff

e
ct

iv
e
n
e
ss

  
a
d
e
q
u
a
te

  
 

 
 

C
a
p
a
ci

ty
 f

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

 
a
d
e
q
u
a
te

  
 

 
 

         



 
1
0

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 c

a
p

a
c
it

y
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 c
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
  

 S
o

u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 C
h

il
d

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

T
h
e
 c

a
p
a
ci

ty
 t

o
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

 c
h
ild

re
n
 h

a
s 

b
e
e
n
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

th
ro

u
g
h
 a

 m
o
n
th

ly
 l
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 r
e
p
o
rt

 w
ri
tt

e
n
 b

y
 t

h
e
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 
S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 w

h
ic

h
 f

o
cu

ss
e
d
 o

n
 c

a
p
a
ci

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 c

h
ild

re
n
’s

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s 

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
. 
 A

s 
a
 r

e
su

lt
 o

f 
T
e
rm

s 
a
n
d
 C

o
n
d
it
io

n
s 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 l
o
st

 a
 

th
ir
d
 o

f 
it
s 

fr
o
n
tl
in

e
 s

o
ci

a
l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 a
s 

w
e
ll 

a
s 

se
n
io

r 
p
ra

ct
it
io

n
e
rs

, 
te

a
m

 m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 a
n
d
 a

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
r.

  
T
h
e
 v

a
ca

n
ci

e
s 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

co
v
e
re

d
 b

y
 a

g
e
n
cy

 s
ta

ff
. 
 T

h
e
se

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 o

f 
v
a
ri
a
b
le

 q
u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
re

 h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 h

ig
h
 t

u
rn

o
v
e
r.

  
In

v
e
st

m
e
n
t 

in
 t

h
e
 S

o
ci

a
l 
C
a
re

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 

h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 a

 p
ri
o
ri
ty

 o
f 

S
o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
ci

l.
  

 Y
o

u
th

 O
ff

e
n

d
in

g
 T

e
a

m
 

T
h
e
 r

o
le

 o
f 

th
e
 Y

o
u
th

 O
ff

e
n
d
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 (

Y
O

S
) 

is
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
ce

 o
ff

e
n
d
in

g
 b

y
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 i
n
 c

o
n
fl
ic

t 
w

it
h
 t

h
e
 l
a
w

. 
V
o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 h
e
lp

 t
o
 d

o
 t

h
is

 
in

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

w
a
y
s.

 R
e
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 i
s 

a
n
 e

le
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

re
st

o
ra

ti
v
e
 j
u
st

ic
e
 a

n
d
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 a
re

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 i
n
te

ra
ct

, 
su

p
e
rv

is
e
 a

n
d
 e

n
co

u
ra

g
e
 t

h
e
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
rs

o
n
 t

o
 g

iv
e
 s

o
m

e
th

in
g
 b

a
ck

 t
o
 t

h
e
ir
 v

ic
ti
m

s 
o
r 

to
 t

h
e
ir
 l
o
ca

l 
co

m
m

u
n
it
y
. 
A
ls

o
, 
v
o
lu

n
te

e
r 

co
m

m
u
n
it
y
 p

a
n
e
l 
m

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
re

 
re

q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
rs

o
n
 t

o
 a

d
d
re

ss
 t

h
e
 r

e
a
so

n
s 

b
e
h
in

d
 t

h
e
ir
 o

ff
e
n
ce

. 
T
o
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 y

o
u
r 

p
a
n
e
l 
co

lle
a
g
u
e
 a

n
d
 a

 m
e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 Y

O
S
 t

e
a
m

 y
o
u
 w

ill
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
rs

o
n
, 
th

e
ir
 p

a
re

n
t/

ca
re

r 
to

 a
g
re

e
 a

 c
o
n
tr

a
ct

, 
d
e
ta

ili
n
g
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
rs

o
n
 w

ill
 m

a
k
e
 

a
m

e
n
d
s.

 
 H

a
m

p
s
h

ir
e

 P
ro

b
a

ti
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
  

S
o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 h

a
v
in

g
 a

 s
p
e
ci

fi
c 

te
a
m

 w
it
h
 a

 d
e
d
ic

a
te

d
 c

it
y
 w

id
e
 f

o
cu

s 
a
n
d
 a

n
y
 c

a
p
a
ci

ty
 i
ss

u
e
s 

a
re

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 B

o
a
rd

. 
It

s 
D

ir
e
ct

o
r 

is
 

a
ls

o
 t

h
e
 H

a
m

p
sh

ir
e
 P

ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 T

ru
st

 R
e
sp

o
n
si

b
le

 A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 l
e
a
d
 f

o
r 

M
A
P
P
A
 (

M
u
lt
i-
A
g
e
n
cy

 P
u
b
lic

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n
 A

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

).
 T

h
e
 D

ir
e
ct

o
r 

is
 

a
ls

o
 a

 m
e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 b

o
a
rd

, 
re

p
o
rt

in
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 B

o
a
rd

 o
n
 a

n
y
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 c

o
n
ce

rn
s 

a
n
d
 c

a
p
a
ci

ty
 i
ss

u
e
s.

 
 H

a
m

p
s
h

ir
e

 C
o

n
s
ta

b
u

la
ry

  
C
h
ild

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 c

it
y
 o

f 
S
o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 i
s 

n
o
w

 s
e
rv

ic
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 W

e
st

e
rn

 H
a
m

p
sh

ir
e
 P

u
b
lic

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n
 U

n
it
. 
T
h
is

 i
s 

a
 f

u
lly

 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 

u
n
it
 w

it
h
 r

e
sp

o
n
si

b
ili

ty
 f

o
r 

C
h
ild

 A
b
u
se

 I
n
v
e
st

ig
a
ti
o
n
s,

 A
d
u
lt
 A

b
u
se

 I
n
v
e
st

ig
a
ti
o
n
s,

 O
ff

e
n
d
e
r 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 (

in
cl

u
d
in

g
 

D
o
m

e
st

ic
 V

io
le

n
ce

, 
H

B
V
 a

n
d
 m

is
si

n
g
 p

e
rs

o
n
s)

. 
T
h
e
 W

e
st

e
rn

 C
h
ild

 A
b
u
se

 I
n
v
e
st

ig
a
ti
o
n
 t

e
a
m

 h
a
s 

m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 i
t'
s 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
ca

p
a
ci

ty
 a

n
d
 

is
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 f

u
lly

 s
ta

ff
e
d
. 
T
h
e
re

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
v
e
ra

l 
co

m
p
le

x
 a

n
d
 s

e
ri
o
u
s 

in
v
e
st

ig
a
ti
o
n
s 

th
is

 y
e
a
r 

th
a
t 

w
h
e
n
 a

d
d
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 v

o
lu

m
e
 

in
v
e
st

ig
a
ti
o
n
s 

h
a
v
e
 t

e
st

e
d
 t

h
e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
re

si
lie

n
ce

 o
f 

th
e
 u

n
it
. 
In

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 m

e
e
t 

d
e
m

a
n
d
 r

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

w
e
re

 d
ra

w
n
 f

ro
m

 o
th

e
r 

a
re

a
 b

a
se

d
 

P
u
b
lic

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n
 t

e
a
m

s.
 R

e
ce

n
t 

ch
a
n
g
e
s 

to
 t

h
e
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
g
ra

d
in

g
 a

n
d
 a

llo
ca

ti
o
n
 o

f 
ch

ild
 a

b
u
se

 i
n
v
e
st

ig
a
ti
o
n
s 

h
a
s 

le
d
 t

o
 a

n
 i
n
cr

e
a
se

 i
n
 

v
o
lu

m
e
 i
n
v
e
st

ig
a
ti
o
n
s 

b
e
in

g
 p

a
ss

e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

h
ild

 A
b
u
se

 I
n
v
e
st

ig
a
ti
o
n
 T

e
a
m

. 
T
h
is

 i
s 

b
e
in

g
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 a

s 
it
 i
s 

fe
lt
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 w

e
st

e
rn

 t
e
a
m

 i
n
 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
a
re

 n
o
w

 c
a
rr

y
in

g
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 h

ig
h
e
r 

w
o
rk

lo
a
d
 w

it
h
 n

o
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
re

so
u
rc

in
g
. 

   



 
1
1

N
H

S
 S

o
u

th
a

m
p

to
n

 
K
e
y
 t

h
e
m

e
s 

fo
r 

sa
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
: 

1
. 
Im

p
ro

v
e
 e

co
n
o
m

ic
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 

2
. 
Im

p
ro

v
e
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

3
. 
Im

p
ro

v
in

g
 e

a
rl
y
 y

e
a
rs

 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
ce

/b
e
tt

e
r 

p
a
re

n
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 f

a
m

ily
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 

4
. 
T
a
k
in

g
 r

e
sp

o
n
si

b
ili

ty
 f

o
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 

5
. 
L
iv

in
g
 w

it
h
 l
o
n
g
-t

e
rm

 c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s 

a
n
d
 m

a
x
im

is
in

g
 t

h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
 

6
. 
M

o
re

 p
e
o
p
le

 l
iv

in
g
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

7
. 
C
re

a
ti
n
g
 a

 h
e
a
lt
h
ie

r 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

8
. 
Im

p
ro

v
in

g
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 f

o
r 

ch
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s 

9
. 
P
ro

te
ct

in
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 f
ro

m
 t

h
re

a
ts

 t
o
 h

e
a
lt
h
 

 S
o

u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 H

o
s
p

it
a

l 
T

ru
s
t 

C
a
p
a
ci

ty
 t

o
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

 c
h
ild

re
n
 i
s 

k
e
p
t 

u
n
d
e
r 

re
g
u
la

r 
re

v
ie

w
 a

cr
o
ss

 U
H

S
. 
 T

h
e
 T

ru
st

 B
o
a
rd

 E
x
e
cu

ti
v
e
 L

e
a
d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 C

o
n
su

lt
a
n
t 

N
u
rs

e
 

C
P
/S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

re
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

L
S
C
B
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

 d
ir
e
ct

ly
 t

o
 L

S
C
B
. 
 T

h
e
 U

H
S
 C

P
/S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 m

o
d
e
l 
a
n
d
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 w

a
s 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
1
 a

s 
p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
cy

 r
e
v
ie

w
. 
 T

h
is

 r
e
su

lt
e
d
 i
n
 o

p
ti
m

a
l 
u
se

 b
e
in

g
 m

a
d
e
 o

f 
sk

ill
 m

ix
 a

n
d
 a

n
 i
n
cr

e
a
se

 i
n
 r

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

se
cu

re
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 C

P
/S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 t

e
a
m

 t
o
 m

e
e
t 

in
cr

e
a
se

d
 d

e
m

a
n
d
, 
to

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
 c

a
p
a
ci

ty
 t

o
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

, 
a
n
d
 t

o
 m

a
x
im

is
e
 t

h
e
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s 

fo
r 

ch
ild

re
n
. 

 S
o

u
th

e
rn

 H
e

a
lt

h
 N

H
S

 F
o

u
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 T

ru
s
t 

 
S
o
u
th

e
rn

 H
e
a
lt
h
 N

H
S
 F

o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T

ru
st

 h
a
s 

a
 s

p
e
ci

fi
c 

te
a
m

 w
it
h
 a

 d
e
d
ic

a
te

d
 f

o
cu

s 
o
n
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 c

h
ild

re
n
 w

it
h
in

 M
e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
, 

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 D

is
a
b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 S

u
b
st

a
n
ce

 M
is

u
se

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s.

  
C
a
p
a
ci

ty
 r

e
m

a
in

s 
st

a
b
le

 
 S

o
u

th
a

m
p

to
n

 S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 A

d
u

lt
s
 B

o
a

rd
 

A
 k

e
y
 o

b
je

ct
iv

e
 o

f 
th

e
 S

o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 A

d
u
lt
s 

B
o
a
rd

 (
S
S
A
B
) 

B
u
si

n
e
ss

 P
la

n
 i
s 

to
 c

o
n
so

lid
a
te

 l
in

k
s 

a
n
d
 j
o
in

t 
w

o
rk

in
g
 

re
la

ti
o
n
sh

ip
s 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 S

S
A
B
. 
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 i
s 

in
cl

u
d
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 S

S
A
B
 B

u
si

n
e
ss

 P
la

n
 r

e
fl
e
ct

in
g
 t

h
e
 

st
ra

te
g
ic

 l
in

k
s 

th
a
t 

e
x
is

t 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 t

w
o
 B

o
a
rd

s.
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 i
s 

a
ls

o
 i
n
cl

u
d
e
d
 i
n
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
g
u
id

a
n
ce

 a
n
d
 t

ra
in

in
g
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s 

in
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 r

a
is

e
 s

ta
ff

 a
w

a
re

n
e
ss

 o
f 

th
e
 d

u
ty

 t
o
 r

e
fe

r 
o
n
 a

n
y
 c

o
n
ce

rn
s 

a
b
o
u
t 

th
e
 s

a
fe

ty
 a

n
d
 w

e
lf
a
re

 o
f 

ch
ild

re
n
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 i
n
 

th
e
 c

o
n
te

x
t 

o
f 

a
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

d
u
lt
’s

 i
n
v
e
st

ig
a
ti
o
n
. 
 

 S
o

le
n

t 
N

H
S

  
S
o
le

n
t 

N
H

S
 T

ru
st

 h
a
s 

a
 r

o
b
u
st

 a
cc

o
u
n
ta

b
ili

ty
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 i
n
 p

la
ce

 w
h
ic

h
 e

n
su

re
s 

th
a
t 

th
e
 c

a
p
a
ci

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 i
s 

re
g
u
la

rl
y
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 

a
n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
. 
C
a
p
a
ci

ty
 h

a
s 

b
e
e
n
 i
n
cr

e
a
se

d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
e
a
m

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 a

d
v
ic

e
 t

o
 a

ll 
st

a
ff

 a
cr

o
ss

 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
. 

 



 
1
2

 3
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
 a

n
d

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

k
e

y
 p

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s
 f

ro
m

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n

 2
0

1
1

-1
4

  
 1

.
D

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g

 p
o

li
c
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 i

n
 l

in
e

 w
it

h
 W

o
rk

in
g

 T
o

g
e

th
e

r 
2

0
1

0
 t

o
 i

n
c
lu

d
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 p

la
n

s
 b

y
 e

a
c
h

 
a

g
e

n
c
y
 

A
cr

o
ss

 S
o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
ce

d
u
re

s 
a
re

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 o
n
lin

e
. 
A
g
e
n
ci

e
s 

h
a
v
e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

d
 t

o
 o

u
r 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
o
u
r 

u
p
d
a
te

s 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
ct

 t
h
is

 h
a
s 

h
a
d
 o

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e
ir
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s.

 W
e
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
a
t 

th
is

 h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 b

y
 o

u
r 

P
ro

fe
ss

io
n
a
l 
Is

su
e
s 

S
u
b
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 w

h
o
 h

a
s 

sa
ti
sf

ie
d
 t

h
e
m

se
lv

e
s 

w
it
h
 a

d
h
e
re

n
ce

 t
o
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
ce

 a
cr

o
ss

 a
g
e
n
ci

e
s 

w
it
h
in

 S
o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
. 

 
2

.
E

s
ta

b
li

s
h

in
g

 t
h

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 o
f 

a
u

d
it

s
 t

o
 i

n
c
lu

d
e

 s
in

g
le

 a
g

e
n

c
y
, 

m
u

lt
i-

a
g

e
n

c
y
 a

u
d

it
s
 

 T
h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 a

re
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

u
d
it
s 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
, 
in

 s
o
m

e
 c

a
se

s 
it
 w

a
s 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 f
o
r 

it
 t

o
 b

e
 s

in
g
le

 a
g
e
n
cy

, 
b
u
t 

in
 t

h
e
 m

a
in

 a
 m

u
lt
i 

a
g
e
n
cy

 a
p
p
ro

a
ch

 w
a
s 

u
se

d
, 
w

it
h
 a

ll 
b
e
in

g
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

a
ck

 t
o
 t

h
e
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 E

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 S

u
b
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

n
d
 i
n
co

rp
o
ra

te
d
 i
n
 a

 f
u
ll 

re
p
o
rt

 t
o
 t

h
e
 m

a
in

 b
o
a
rd

. 
 

 
•

H
e
a
lt
h
 V

is
it
o
r 

u
se

 o
f 

th
e
 F

a
m

ily
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a

ss
e
ss

m
e
n
t 

to
o
l 

•
L
ia

is
o
n
 H

e
a
lt
h
 V

is
it
o
r 

A
u
d
it
 o

f 
S
U

H
T
 E

D
 C

o
n
ce

rn
 F

o
rm

s 
•

M
id

w
if
e
ry

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 u

se
 o

f 
G

P
 f

o
rm

s,
 s

a
fe

r 
b
a
b
ie

s 
a
n
d
 d

o
m

e
st

ic
 v

io
le

n
ce

 
•

A
u
d
it
 o

f 
tr

a
n
sf

e
r 

o
f 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f

ro
m

 h
e
a
lt
h
 v

is
it
o
rs

 a
n
d
 s

ch
o
o
ls

 n
u
rs

e
s 

•
O

fs
te

d
 ‘
S
e
lf
 a

ss
e
ss

m
e
n
t‘
 a

u
d
it
s 

•
A
u
d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n
te

n
t 

o
f 

C
Y
P
’s

 

•
In

it
ia

l 
C
o
n
ta

ct
 t

o
 C

h
ild

re
n
 F

ir
st

 D
e
e
p
 D

iv
e
 a

u
d
it
 

•
Q

u
a
lit

y
 A

ss
u
ra

n
ce

 F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

- 
se

lf
 a

ss
e
ss

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 s

ch
e
d
u
le

s.
 R

e
q
u
e
st

 f
o
r 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s 

to
 s

u
b
m

it
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
. 

•
A
u
d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 u

se
 a

n
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
th

e
 U

n
b
o
rn

 B
a
b
y
 P

ro
to

co
l 

 In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 t

h
e
 S

o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 B
o
a
rd

 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

s 
in

 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n
 L

o
ca

l 
A
u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 A

u
d
it
 o

n
 a

 
m

o
n
th

ly
 b

a
si

s.
 

 
3

.
Im

p
le

m
e

n
ti

n
g

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 i

n
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 f
o

r 
c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e

rs
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 a

n
d

 v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 s
e

c
to

r 
 

T
h
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
sa

fe
g
u
a
rd

in
g
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s 
h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 a

d
d
re

ss
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 S
o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
. 
A
g
e
n
ci

e
s 

co
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 e

m
b
e
d
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s 
in

to
 

th
e
ir
 s

y
st

e
m

s,
 t

h
ir
ty

 a
g
e
n
ci

e
s 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 a

n
d
 u

p
 t

o
 f

if
te

e
n
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

st
a
n
d
a
rd

s 
a
re

 b
e
in

g
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
. 
T
h
e
 m

a
in

 
is

su
e
s 

fo
r 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

ro
u
n
d
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 s
e
v
e
n
 (

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

 S
e
v
e
n
: 

A
g
e
n
ci

e
s’

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t

o
 a

n
d
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 f

ro
m

 S
e
ri
o
u
s 

C
a
se

 
R
e
v
ie

w
s)

 w
h
ic

h
 i
s 

a
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
ct

o
r 

d
u
e
 t

o
 c

a
p
a
ci

ty
 o

f 
st

a
ff

. 
T
ra

in
in

g
 l
e
a
d
 h

a
s 

b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 w
it
h
 t

h
is

. 
 



 
1
3

4
.

L
is

te
n

in
g

 t
o

 t
h

e
 v

o
ic

e
s
 o

f 
c
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 t

o
 b

e
tt

e
r 

m
e

e
t 

th
e

ir
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 n
e

e
d

s
  

T
o
 p

ro
g
re

ss
 t

h
is

 t
h
e
m

e
, 
th

e
 b

o
a
rd

 m
a
n
a
g
e
r 

a
lo

n
g
 w

it
h
 v

a
ri
o
u
s 

a
g
e
n
ci

e
s 

h
a
d
 d

ir
e
ct

 d
is

cu
ss

io
n
s 

w
it
h
 c

lie
n
ts

 a
n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
in

 

th
e
ir
 a

g
e
n
ci

e
s 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 f

in
d
in

g
s 

b
e
in

g
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

a
ck

 t
o
 t

h
e
 m

a
in

 b
o
a
rd

, 
w

it
h
 r

e
co

m
m

e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s 

a
s 

to
 h

o
w

 b
e
st

 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s.

 I
n
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
 w

o
rk

 h
a
s 

b
e
g
u
n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 W

is
h
e
s 

a
n
d
 W

o
rr

ie
s 

p
ro

je
ct

 b
ri
e
f,
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 c

o
m

in
g
 y

e
a
r.

  

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

th
is

 p
ri
o
ri
ty

 h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 t

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
: 

•
E
-S

a
fe

ty
 p

ro
je

ct
: 

tr
a
in

in
g
 o

n
 t

h
e
 P

IC
S
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t

o
 C

h
ild

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n
 L

ia
is

o
n
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

. 
•

S
e
a
so

n
a
l 
C
a
m

p
a
ig

n
s 

i.
e
. 
F
ir
e
w

o
rk

s,
 S

a
fe

ty
 w

h
ile

 s
w

im
m

in
g
, 
S
tr

a
n
g
e
r 

D
a
n
g
e
r 

A
w

a
re

n
e
ss

. 

 

5
.

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 t
h

e
 t

h
e

m
e

s
 f

ro
m

 S
e

ri
o

u
s
 C

a
s
e

 R
e

v
ie

w
s
 a

n
d

 C
h

il
d

 D
e

a
th

 R
e

v
ie

w
s
 b

o
th

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 
lo

c
a

l 
 

S
o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 h

a
s 

sa
d
ly

 h
a
d
 t

w
o
 S

e
ri
o
u
s 

C
a
se

 R
e
v
ie

w
s 

th
is

 y
e
a
r.

 T
h
e
re

 w
a
s 

o
n
e
 c

h
ild

 d
e
a
th

 a
n
d
 
a
 c

a
se

 w
h
e
re

 a
 c

h
ild

 s
u
st

a
in

e
d
 a

 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 l
if
e
-t

h
re

a
te

n
in

g
 i

n
ju

ry
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 n

e
g
le

ct
 w

h
ic

h
 g

a
v
e
 r

is
e
 t

o
 c

o
n
ce

rn
s 

a
b
o
u
t 

th
e
 w

a
y
 i

n
 w

h
ic

h
 l

o
ca

l 
p
ro

fe
ss

io
n
a
ls

 a
n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

w
o
rk

e
d
 t

o
g
e
th

e
r 

to
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

 c
h
ild

re
n
. 
T
h
e
se

 S
e
ri
o
u
s 

C
a
se

 R
e
v
ie

w
s 

h
a
v
e
 f

o
cu

ss
e
d
 u

s 
to

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
 c

lo
se

r 
lia

is
o
n
s 

b
o
th

 a
cr

o
ss

 C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 

A
d
u
lt
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s.

 T
ra

in
in

g
 w

a
s 

ro
lle

d
 o

u
t 

a
cr

o
ss

 C
h
ild

re
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s 

b
y
 D

ru
g
 A

ct
io

n
 T

e
a
m

 a
n
d
 c

o
v
e
re

d
 t

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 a

re
a
s:

 

•
T
h
e
 i
m

p
a
ct

 o
f 

p
a
re

n
ta

l 
p
ro

b
le

m
 d

ru
g
 u

se
 o

n
 c

h
ild

re
n
 

•
T
h
e
 c

h
ild

's
 p

e
rs

p
e
ct

iv
e
 

•
L
is

te
n
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 v

o
ic

e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

h
ild

 
•

p
ro

te
ct

iv
e
 f

a
ct

o
rs

 
•

L
o
ca

l 
p
o
lic

y
 u

n
d
e
rp

in
n
in

g
 p

ra
ct

ic
e
 

•
T
h
e
 J

o
in

t 
W

o
rk

in
g
 P

ro
to

co
l 

•
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 S

h
a
ri
n
g
 

•
A
 p

a
re

n
t 

in
 P

ri
so

n
 s

ta
ti
st

ic
s 

 
F
u
rt

h
e
r 

le
a
rn

in
g
 w

a
s 

g
a
in

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 s

h
a
ri
n
g
/ 

re
p
ri
n
ti
n
g
 o

f 
th

e
 N

e
g
le

ct
 H

a
n
d
b
o
o
k
, 
w

h
ic

h
 f

o
cu

se
s 

o
n
 f

o
u
r 

d
o
m

a
in

s 
o
f 

ca
re

: 
P
h
y
si

ca
l,
 S

a
fe

ty
, 

A
ff

e
ct

io
n
 
/ 

L
o
v
e
, 

a
n
d
 
E
st

e
e
m

. 
T
h
e
 
to

o
l 

is
 
u
se

fu
l 

in
 
id

e
n
ti
fy

in
g
/ 

a
ss

is
ti
n
g
 
w

it
h
 
cl

a
ri
fy

in
g
 
a
re

a
s 

o
f 

co
n
ce

rn
 
fo

r 
p
ra

ct
it
io

n
e
r 

a
cr

o
ss

 
a
ll 

d
is

ci
p
lin

e
s.

 

6
.

W
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 a
d

u
lt

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

o
 i

m
p

ro
v
e

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 f

o
r 

c
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
  

 
W

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

 t
a
sk

 a
n
d
 f

in
is

h
 m

u
lt
ia

g
e
n
cy

 g
ro

u
p
 w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s 

ca
lle

d
 t

h
e
 T

o
x
ic

 T
ri
o
. 
T
h
e
 g

ro
u
p
 w

a
s 

re
p
re

se
n
te

d
 b

y
 D

ru
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s,

 M
e
n
ta

l 



 
1
4

H
e
a
lt
h
 &

 L
e
a
rn

in
g
 D

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s,

 D
o
m

e
st

ic
 A

b
u
se

 a
n
d
 C

h
ild

re
n
 S

o
ci

a
l 
C
a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s.

 T
h
e
y
 m

e
t 

to
 d

is
cu

ss
 h

o
w

: 
•

u
si

n
g
 t

h
e
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 a

n
d
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
ce

s 
o
f 

cu
rr

e
n
t 

p
ra

ct
ic

e
 a

n
d
 

•
le

a
rn

in
g
 f

ro
m

 s
e
ri
o
u
s 

ca
se

 r
e
v
ie

w
s 

 
co

u
ld

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 c

h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

w
it
h
 a

n
 a

d
u
lt
 f

o
cu

s.
 T

h
is

 g
ro

u
p
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
-1

3
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 f

o
cu

s 
a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

n
e
ss

 a
ro

u
n
d
 t

h
e
 t

o
x
ic

 t
ri
o
/h

id
d
e
n
 h

a
rm

 i
ss

u
e
s.

 
 T
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 c
lo

se
r 

lia
is

o
n
 w

it
h
 a

d
u
lt
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

a
 s

e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
r 

w
h
o
 i
s 

a
 m

e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 S

o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 A

d
u
lt
s 

B
o
a
rd

 i
s 

a
 

m
e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 S

o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 C

h
ild

re
n
 B

o
a
rd

. 
 

 7
.

U
s
in

g
 l

o
c
a

l 
d

a
ta

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 a
 c

le
a

r 
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 a

b
o

u
t 

s
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 n

e
e

d
s
 i

n
 S

o
u

th
a

m
p

to
n

  
T
h
e
 
L
e
a
d
 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

fo
r 

th
e
 
C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 
D

a
ta

 
T
e
a
m

 
fo

r 
S
o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 
C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 
S
e
rv

ic
e
s 

a
tt

e
n
d
s 

th
e
 
M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
E
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 
S
u
b
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 (

si
x
 w

e
e
k
ly

) 
re

p
o
rt

in
g
 h

e
r 

fi
n
d
in

g
s 

in
 r

e
sp

e
ct

 o
f 

th
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
: 

•
C
ri
ti
ca

l 
k
e
y
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
  

•
B
u
si

n
e
ss

 P
la

n
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 

•
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 p

ro
ce

ss
 d

a
ta

, 
w

h
ic

h
 e

n
co

m
p
a
ss

e
s:

 C
P
 V

is
it
s,

 C
o
re

 G
ro

u
p
 M

e
e
ti
n
g
s,

 C
h
ild

re
n
 L

o
o
k
e
d
 A

ft
e
r 

V
is

it
s 

a
n
d
 P

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
E
d
u
ca

ti
o
n
 

P
la

n
s.

 

•
P
a
th

w
a
y
 P

la
n
s 

•
T
ie

r 
3
/4

 C
P
 p

la
n
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

•
S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

ct
iv

it
y
 a

n
d
 s

ta
ff

in
g
 m

e
a
su

re
s 

•
M

e
a
su

re
s 

o
f 

C
h
ild

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n
 

•
C
h
ild

h
o
o
d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 R

e
se

a
rc

h
 C

e
n
tr

e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 

•
C
A
F
C
A
S
S
 d

a
ta

: 
C
a
re

 A
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s 

a
cr

o
ss

 4
L
S
C
B
. 

8
.

M
a

in
ta

in
in

g
 t

h
e

 e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 t
h

e
 B

o
a

rd
 a

n
d

 S
u

b
-C

o
m

m
it

te
e

s
  

 E
a
ch

 S
u
b
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 h

a
s 

p
ro

d
u
ce

d
 a

 b
u
si

n
e
ss

 p
la

n
 a

n
d
 h

a
s 

a
 T

e
rm

s 
o
f 

R
e
fe

re
n
ce

 a
g
re

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 S

o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 B

o
a
rd

. 
E
a
ch

 
S
u
b
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
’s

 B
u
si

n
e
ss

 P
la

n
 i
s 

su
b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 f

u
ll 

b
o
a
rd

 f
o
r 

ra
ti
fi
ca

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 d

ir
e
ct

io
n
. 

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
, 
e
a
ch

 s
u
b
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 h

a
s 

to
 

p
ro

d
u
ce

 a
 h

ig
h
lig

h
t 

re
p
o
rt

 m
o
n
th

ly
 i
n
d
ic

a
ti
n
g
 p

ro
g
re

ss
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 b

u
si

n
e
ss

 p
la

n
. 
 

     



 
1
5

 4
 

S
u

b
 c

o
m

m
it

te
e

s
 A

c
ti

v
it

ie
s
 

 4
.1

  
4

L
S

C
B

 P
o

li
c
y
 a

n
d

 P
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 s

u
b

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e
  

 T
h
e
 4

L
S
C
B
 P

o
lic

ie
s 

a
n
d
 P

ro
ce

d
u
re

s 
S
u
b
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 h

a
s 

m
e
t 

o
v
e
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

a
n
d
 c

o
n
si

d
e
re

d
 t

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 a

re
a
s 

a
n
d
 h

o
w

 b
e
st

 t
o
 

st
a
n
d
a
rd

is
e
 p

ra
ct

ic
e
 a

cr
o
ss

 t
h
e
 4

L
S
C
B
s:

 
 

•
S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 P

ro
ce

d
u
re

s 
U

p
d
a
te

s 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 p

ro
ce

ss
 o

f 
u
p
d
a
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 P

o
lic

ie
s 

a
n
d
 p

ro
ce

d
u
re

s.
 

•
E
x
p
lo

re
d
 t

h
e
 W

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r.

 
•

R
a
p
id

 R
e
sp

o
n
se

 P
ro

to
co

l 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 e

ff
e
ct

iv
e
n
e
ss

 o
f 

th
is

. 
 

•
D

o
m

e
st

ic
 A

b
u
se

 P
ra

ct
ic

e
 G

u
id

a
n
ce

. 
•

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 M

is
si

n
g
, 
E
x
p
lo

it
e
d
 a

n
d
 T

ra
ff

ic
k
e
d
 C

h
ild

re
n
 G

ro
u
p
. 

 4
.2

 
C

h
il

d
 D

e
a

th
 O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 P

a
n

e
l 

 
 T
h
e
 C

h
ild

 D
e
a
th

 O
v
e
rv

ie
w

 P
a
n
e
l 
m

e
e
ts

 7
 t

im
e
s 

p
e
r 

y
e
a
r.

 T
h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
s 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s 

w
ill

 n
o
t 

n
e
ce

ss
a
ri
ly

 b
e
 c

h
ild

 d
e
a
th

s 
th

a
t 

h
a
v
e
 o

cc
u
rr

e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
is

 p
e
ri
o
d
 o

f 
ti
m

e
. 
T
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 c

h
ild

 d
e
a
th

s 
in

 a
 r

o
b
u
st

 m
a
n
n
e
r,

 d
a
ta

 a
n
d
 i
n
v
e
st

ig
a
ti
o
n
s 

(s
u
ch

 a
s 

p
o
st

 
m

o
rt

e
m

s/
to

x
ic

o
lo

g
y
 r

e
su

lt
s)

 c
a
n
 t

a
k
e
 u

p
 s

e
v
e
ra

l 
m

o
n
th

s 
to

 b
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
. 
T
h
is

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

s 
th

e
 p

a
n
e
l 
in

 m
a
k
in

g
 a

 
re

co
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 c

a
te

g
o
ri
si

n
g
 t

h
e
 d

e
a
th

 o
f 

th
e
 c

h
ild

. 
T
h
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 r

e
v
ie

w
s 

ch
ild

 d
e
a
th

s 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

a
te

g
o
ri
se

d
 a

s 
lif

e
 l
im

it
in

g
 

co
n
d
it
io

n
s,

 c
a
rd

ia
c 

co
n
d
it
io

n
 a

n
d
 c

a
n
ce

rs
. 

 R
e

g
io

n
a

l 
Is

s
u

e
s
 

 T
h
e
 C

D
O

P
 s

ta
ff

 r
e
ce

n
tl
y
 h

e
lp

e
d
 o

rg
a
n
is

e
 t

h
e
 j
o
in

t 
C
D

O
P
 a

n
d
 F

o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 S

tu
d
y
 o

f 
In

fa
n
t 

D
e
a
th

s 
(F

S
ID

) 
tr

a
in

in
g
 e

v
e
n
ts

. 
F
u
n
d
e
d
 

b
y
 C

D
O

P
, 
th

e
 t

ra
in

in
g
 w

a
s 

b
a
se

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 l
o
ca

l 
‘E

v
e
ry

 S
le

e
p
 M

a
tt

e
rs

’ 
ca

m
p
a
ig

n
. 
T
h
e
 e

v
e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 a
 g

re
a
t 

su
cc

e
ss

 p
ro

v
id

in
g
 f

re
e
 t

ra
in

in
g
 f

o
r 

o
v
e
r 

3
0
0
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

n
a
ls

 i
n
cl

u
d
in

g
 h

e
a
lt
h
 v

is
it
o
rs

, 
m

id
w

iv
e
s,

 n
u
rs

e
s,

 c
h
ild

re
n
’s

 c
e
n
tr

e
 o

u
tr

e
a
ch

 w
o
rk

e
rs

, 
S
u
re

 S
ta

rt
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 a
n
d
 

co
o
rd

in
a
to

rs
. 
In

it
ia

l 
fe

e
d
b
a
ck

 h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 v

e
ry

 p
o
si

ti
v
e
. 

 T
h
e
 C

D
O

P
 o

ff
ic

e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s 

to
 l
ia

is
e
 w

it
h
 b

o
th

 n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 n

a
ti
o
n
w

id
e
 C

D
O

P
s 

to
 s

h
a
re

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
ca

se
s 

a
n
d
 m

a
k
e
 

u
se

 o
f 

th
e
ir
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
. 

   



 
1
6

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
Is

s
u

e
s
 

 T
h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
s 

e
x
tr

a
ct

e
d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
 D

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

fo
r 

E
d
u
ca

ti
o
n
 C

h
ild

 D
e
a
th

 O
v
e
rv

ie
w

 P
a
n
e
l 
b
u
lle

ti
n
; 

 
•

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
ce

iv
e
d
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

q
u
e
ri
e
s 

re
ce

n
tl
y
 a

b
o
u
t 

w
h
a
t 

th
e
 p

ro
to

co
l 
sh

o
u
ld

 b
e
 w

h
e
n
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 d

e
a
th

 o
f 

a
 c

h
ild

 w
h
o
 i
s 

n
o
rm

a
lly

 r
e
si

d
e
n
t 

in
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 w

h
ic

h
 o

cc
u
rr

e
d
 w

h
ile

 t
h
e
 c

h
ild

 w
a
s 

a
b
ro

a
d
. 
In

 t
h
e
se

 c
a
se

s 
th

e
 d

e
a
th

, 
in

cl
u
d
in

g
 t

h
o
se

 w
h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 
re

g
is

te
re

d
 a

b
ro

a
d
, 
sh

o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

s 
fu

lly
 a

s 
p
o
ss

ib
le

, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 w

e
 r

e
co

g
n
is

e
 t

h
a
t 

in
 s

o
m

e
 c

ir
cu

m
st

a
n
ce

s 
it
 m

a
y
 b

e
 d

if
fi
cu

lt
 t

o
 

g
a
th

e
r 

su
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 s

u
ch

 a
 r

e
v
ie

w
. 
T
h
e
se

 d
e
a
th

s 
sh

o
u
ld

 a
lw

a
y
s 

b
e
 d

is
cu

ss
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

D
O

P
. 
In

 s
o
m

e
 

ci
rc

u
m

st
a
n
ce

s 
th

e
 p

a
n
e
l 
m

a
y
 d

e
ci

d
e
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
re

 i
s 

in
su

ff
ic

ie
n
t 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 c

a
te

g
o
ri
se

 t
h
e
 d

e
a
th

 a
n
d
 m

a
y
 r

e
co

rd
 t

h
is

 
d
e
a
th

 a
s 

“I
n
a
d
e
q
u
a
te

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 u

p
o
n
 w

h
ic

h
 t

o
 m

a
ke

 a
 j
u
d
g
e
m

e
n
t”

 o
n
 F

o
rm

 C
. 

 
R
e
v
ie

w
s 

o
f 

th
e
 d

e
a
th

s 
o
f 

ch
ild

re
n
 w

h
o
 a

re
 n

o
rm

a
lly

 r
e
si

d
e
n
t 

in
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 w

h
ic

h
 o

cc
u
rr

e
d
 a

b
ro

a
d
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
co

rd
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
d
a
ta

 c
o
lle

ct
io

n
 f

o
rm

s 
a
n
d
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
co

rd
e
d
 i
n
 T

a
b
le

 1
4
 a

s 
h
a
v
in

g
 b

e
e
n
 a

b
ro

a
d
 a

t 
th

e
 t

im
e
 o

f 
th

e
 e

v
e
n
t 

o
r 

co
n
d
it
io

n
 

w
h
ic

h
 l
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 d

e
a
th

. 
 

S
e
ct

io
n
 7

.3
3
 -

7
.3

5
 o

f 
W

o
rk

in
g
 T

o
g
e
th

e
r 

co
n
ta

in
s 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

b
o
u
t 

re
v
ie

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 d

e
a
th

 o
f 

a
 c

h
ild

 w
h
o
 d

ie
s 

a
b
ro

a
d
. 
P
le

a
se

 
n
o
te

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
re

 i
s 

n
o
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

a
 d

e
a
th

 w
h
ic

h
 o

cc
u
rs

 a
b
ro

a
d
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
g
is

te
re

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 U

K
. 

 •
W

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 D

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

w
e
 a

re
 k

e
e
n
 t

o
 m

a
k
e
 b

e
st

 u
se

 o
f 

th
e
 v

a
lu

a
b
le

, 
a
n
d
 d

e
ta

ile
d
, 
d
a
ta

 c
o
lle

ct
e
d
 b

y
 C

D
O

P
s 

o
n
 a

ll 
ch

ild
 d

e
a
th

s.
 

W
e
 a

re
 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
ce

ss
 o

f 
in

v
e
st

ig
a
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 m

o
st

 e
ff

e
ct

iv
e
 w

a
y
s 

to
 s

h
a
re

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

, 
in

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
a
b
o
u
t 

th
e
 a

ct
io

n
s 

ta
k
e
n
 a

s 
a
 r

e
su

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
d
in

g
s 

a
ri
si

n
g
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
s.

 O
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 o

p
ti
o
n
s 

w
e
 w

ill
 i
n
v
e
st

ig
a
te

 w
ill

 b
e
 t

h
e
 p

o
ss

ib
ili

ty
 o

f 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
d
a
ta

b
a
se

, 
b
u
t 

g
iv

e
n
 t

h
e
 l
im

it
e
d
 r

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 c
e
n
tr

a
lly

 w
e
 a

ls
o
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 i
n
v
e
st

ig
a
te

 o
th

e
r 

co
st

 e
ff

e
ct

iv
e
 

o
p
ti
o
n
s 

b
e
fo

re
 d

e
ci

d
in

g
 o

n
 a

n
 a

p
p
ro

a
ch

. 
 

 4
.3

 
S

e
ri

o
u

s
 C

a
s
e

 R
e

v
ie

w
 s

u
b

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e
  

 T
h
e
 S

e
ri
o
u
s 

C
a
se

 R
e
v
ie

w
 S

u
b
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 h

a
s 

m
e
t 

o
n
 a

 m
o
n
th

ly
 b

a
si

s 
re

v
ie

w
in

g
 c

a
se

s 
th

a
t 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 b

ro
u
g
h
t 

to
 t

h
e
ir
 a

tt
e
n
ti
o
n
, 
o
r 

th
a
t 

th
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
q
u
e
st

e
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
. 
A
ll 

ca
se

s 
w

h
ic

h
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
 t

h
re

sh
o
ld

 f
o
r 

a
 S

e
ri
o
u
s 

C
a
se

 R
e
v
ie

w
 i
s 

fo
llo

w
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 w

it
h
 a

n
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

re
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 a

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 a

ct
io

n
 p

la
n
, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s 

m
o
n
it
o
re

d
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 S

u
b
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
, 
in

 r
e
sp

e
ct

 o
f 

p
ro

g
re

ss
. 
 

 4
.4

P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l 
Is

s
u

e
s
 S

u
b

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e
  

 T
h
e
 P

ro
fe

ss
io

n
a
l 
Is

su
e
s 

S
u
b
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 h

a
s 

co
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 t

o
 l
o
o
k
 a

t 
p
ra

ct
ic

e
 a

cr
o
ss

 a
ll 

a
g
e
n
ci

e
s 

a
n
d
 h

o
w

 b
e
st

 t
o
 b

ri
n
g
 t

h
e
m

 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 



 
1
7

g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

g
u
id

a
n
ce

. 
T
h
e
re

 h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

w
o
rk

 u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 M

u
sl

im
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 
o
f 

S
o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 a

n
d
 S

o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s.

 V
a
ri
o
u
s 

a
re

a
s 

th
a
t 

th
e
 g

ro
u
p
 c

o
v
e
re

d
 w

e
re

: 

•
V
e
ri
fi
ca

ti
o
n
 o

f 
P
o
lic

ie
s 

•
R
e
v
is

e
d
 P

o
lic

ie
s 

a
n
d
 P

ro
ce

d
u
re

s 
•

4
L
S
C
B
 S

e
x
u
a
l 
E
x
p
lo

it
a
ti
o
n
 G

ro
u
p
 

•
4
L
S
C
B
 G

o
o
g
le

 A
n
a
ly

ti
cs

 D
a
ta

 
•

H
o
m

e
 E

d
u
ca

te
d
 C

h
ild

re
n
 

•
R
e
so

u
rc

e
 I

m
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s 

•
S
o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o
n
in

g
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s 
 In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
 t

h
e
 P

ro
fe

ss
io

n
a
l 
Is

su
e
s 

S
u
b
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 h

a
s 

fo
llo

w
e
d
 t

h
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

u
si

n
e
ss

 p
la

n
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 f

u
ll 

b
o
a
rd

. 
 4

.5
 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 a
n

d
 E

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 s

u
b

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e
  

T
h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 i
s 

a
n
 o

u
tl
in

e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 t

h
is

 s
u
b
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
: 

 
�

A
n
 a

u
d
it
 c

a
le

n
d
a
r 

w
h
ic

h
 m

a
p
s 

th
e
 s

in
g
le

 a
g
e
n
cy

 a
n
d
 m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
cy

 a
u
d
it
s 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 a

n
d
 p

la
n
n
e
d
. 
 T

h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

s,
 

re
co

m
m

e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s 

a
n
d
 a

ct
io

n
s 

p
la

n
s 

a
re

 e
m

b
e
d
d
e
d
. 
  

 
�

A
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 d

a
ta

se
t 

b
a
se

d
 o

n
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
sa

fe
g
u
a
rd

in
g
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 t

o
 e

n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 B

o
a
rd

 t
o
 s

cr
u
ti
n
is

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 i
n
 k

e
y
 a

re
a
s.

  
 

�
H

ig
h
lig

h
t 

re
p
o
rt

s 
to

 S
C
S
B
 f

la
g
 u

p
 a

n
y
 d

a
ta

 o
r 

o
th

e
r 

is
su

e
s.

  
�

A
n
n
u
a
l 
u
p
d
a
te

 o
f 

th
e
 m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
cy

 s
e
lf
 a

ss
e
ss

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

o
b
se

rv
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
ra

ct
ic

e
, 
se

lf
-a

ss
e
ss

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 l
is

te
n
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 v

ie
w

s 
o
f 

se
rv

ic
e
 u

se
rs

 a
n
d
 s

ta
ff

 
�

M
u
lt
i 
a
g
e
n
cy

 a
u
d
it
 o

f 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

 t
h
a
t 

d
o
 n

o
t 

m
e
e
t 

so
ci

a
l 
ca

re
 t

h
re

sh
o
ld

s 
- 

a
ct

io
n
 p

la
n
 w

ill
 l
e
a
d
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s 

fo
r 

ch
ild

re
n
 

a
n
d
 f

a
m

ili
e
s.

 
 

A
n
 a

ct
io

n
 p

la
n
 h

a
s 

b
e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

s 
a
 r

e
su

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
co

m
m

e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 
co

n
ta

ct
s.

  
T
h
e
 a

ct
io

n
s 

w
ill

 l
e
a
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s 

fo
r 

ch
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 f

a
m

ili
e
s:

 
•

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 r

e
co

rd
in

g
 o

f 
ch

ild
re

n
 &

 p
a
re

n
ts

 e
th

n
ic

it
y
, 
re

lig
io

n
 &

 f
ir
st

 l
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
 t

o
 i
n
fo

rm
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 &

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
. 
  

•
Im

p
ro

v
e
d
 r

e
co

rd
in

g
 i
f 

a
 c

h
ild

 i
s 

d
is

a
b
le

d
 &

 o
n
 t

h
e
 d

is
a
b
ili

ty
 r

e
g
is

te
r 

to
 i
n
fo

rm
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 &

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
. 

•
Im

p
ro

v
e
d
 r

e
fe

rr
a
l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 b

e
in

g
 t

a
k
e
n
 a

n
d
 r

e
ce

iv
e
d
 l
e
a
d
in

g
 t

o
 c

le
a
re

r 
u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
a
 c

h
ild

’s
 c

ir
cu

m
st

a
n
ce

s 
a
n
d
 f

a
m

ily
 

co
m

p
o
si

ti
o
n
. 
 

•
G

o
o
d
 a

n
a
ly

si
s 

o
f 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s 

fo
r 

ch
ild

re
n
. 

•
R
e
fe

rr
e
rs

 b
e
in

g
 c

le
a
r 

w
h
y
 t

h
e
y
 a

re
 c

o
n
ta

ct
in

g
 C

h
ild

re
n
 F

ir
st

. 
•

P
ro

fe
ss

io
n
a
l 
re

fe
rr

e
rs

 h
a
v
in

g
 a

 c
le

a
r 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
T
ie

r 
3
 t

h
re

sh
o
ld

 f
o
r 

se
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 a

ls
o
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 t

h
re

sh
o
ld

 f
o
r 

C
A
F
 a

n
d
 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

a
t 

ti
e
r 

2
. 



 
1
8

•
E
m

b
e
d
 u

se
 o

f 
re

fe
rr

a
l 
fo

rm
 w

it
h
in

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
n
a
l 
n
e
tw

o
rk

 t
o
 e

n
su

re
 r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

 a
re

 p
u
t 

in
 w

ri
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 r

e
sp

o
n
d
e
d
 t

o
 .
  

•
H

e
a
lt
h
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s 

to
 r

e
v
ie

w
 m

e
th

o
d
s 

o
f 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 s

h
a
ri
n
g
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 h

e
a
lt
h
 d

is
ci

p
lin

e
s 

a
n
d
 w

it
h
 c

h
ild

re
n
’s

 s
o
ci

a
l 
ca

re
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 

co
n
si

st
e
n
cy

 a
n
d
 c

la
ri
ty

 f
o
r 

b
o
th

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
n
a
ls

 a
n
d
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 f

a
m

ili
e
s.

  

•
Im

p
ro

v
e
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 r

e
fe

rr
e
rs

 &
 f

a
m

ili
e
s 

k
e
p
t 

u
p
 t

o
 d

a
te

, 
fo

llo
w

in
g
 r

e
fe

rr
a
l 
to

 C
h
ild

re
n
 F

ir
st

. 
•

G
re

a
te

r 
u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 b

y
 h

e
a
lt
h
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

n
a
ls

 o
f 

a
ct

io
n
s 

th
a
t 

m
a
y
 b

e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 a
t 

T
ie

r 
2
, 
to

 s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

 c
h
ild

re
n
 (

e
a
rl
y
 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
).

 

•
W

o
rk

sh
o
p
 f

o
r 

G
P
s 

o
n
 t

h
e
 u

se
 o

f 
C
A
F
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 g

re
a
te

r 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

G
P
s 

w
it
h
 T

ie
r 

2
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s.

  
 

 In
 D

e
ce

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
 t

h
e
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

a
cc

e
p
te

d
 P

ro
fe

ss
o
r 

M
u
n
ro

’s
 r

e
co

m
m

e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

lo
ca

lly
 h

e
ld

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

s 
w

e
ll 

a
s 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 i
s 

a
n
 i
n
tr

in
si

c 
p
a
rt

 o
f 

lo
ca

l 
q
u
a
lit

y
 a

ss
u
ra

n
ce

. 
W

it
h
 O

fs
te

d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 A

ss
o
ci

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
D

ir
e
ct

o
rs

 o
f 
C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s 

(A
D

C
S
),

 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 k

e
y
 q

u
e
st

io
n
s 

fo
r 

a
ll 

a
re

a
s 

to
 c

o
n
si

d
e
r 

in
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

ss
u
ri
n
g
 h

o
w

 d
e
liv

e
ry

 i
n
 t

h
e
ir
 a

re
a
 h

e
lp

s 
im

p
ro

v
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s 

a
n
d
 a

re
 s

e
t 

to
 l
e
a
d
 a

 f
u
ll 

co
n
su

lt
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 a

 d
ra

ft
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 s

e
t.

 
 A
t 

th
is

 c
u
rr

e
n
t 

p
o
in

t 
th

e
re

 a
re

 t
h
re

e
 p

o
ss

ib
le

 d
a
ta

 s
e
ts

: 
• 

M
u
n
ro

 
• 

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

o
f 
E
d
u
ca

ti
o
n
 

• 
O

n
e
 u

se
d
 b

y
 O

fs
te

d
 f
o
r 

n
e
w

 I
n
sp

e
ct

io
n
s.

 
 R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
: 

S
S
C
B
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 d

a
ta

 s
e
t 

to
 b

e
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 c

o
m

in
g
 y

e
a
r 

in
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t’
s 

re
sp

o
n
se

. 
T
h
e
 r

e
m

it
 w

ill
 b

e
 t

o
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 m

u
lt
i�
a
g
e
n
cy

 a
u
d
it
s,

 t
h
e
m

a
ti
c 

re
v
ie

w
s 

a
n
d
 d

e
e
p
 d

iv
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
s 

w
it
h
 a

 c
le

a
re

r 
fo

cu
s 

o
n
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s 

fo
r 

ch
ild

re
n
. 
 

 4
.6

 
P

u
b

li
c
 E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 A
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 s

u
b

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e
  

T
h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
m

e
s 

w
e
re

 e
x
p
lo

re
d
 b

y
 P

u
b
lic

 E
d
u
ca

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 A

w
a
re

n
e
ss

 S
u
b
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

n
d
 s

o
m

e
 l
e
a
d
 t

o
 c

a
m

p
a
ig

n
s/

tr
a
in

in
g
: 

 
•

K
e
y
 m

e
ss

a
g
e
s 

a
n
d
 c

a
m

p
a
ig

n
s 

to
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 p

a
re

n
ts

 u
si

n
g
 l
o
ca

l 
d
a
ta

 i
n
cl

u
d
in

g
 J

S
N

A
 

•
P
u
b
lic

 a
w

a
re

n
e
ss

 c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
s 

fr
o
m

 4
L
S
C
B
 c

h
ild

 d
e
a
th

s 
a
n
d
 l
o
ca

l 
se

ri
o
u
s 

ca
se

 r
e
v
ie

w
s 

•
P
ro

v
id

e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 b

e
re

a
v
e
m

e
n
t 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

fo
r 

fa
m

ili
e
s 

in
 S

o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 

•
F
S
ID

 T
ra

in
in

g
 

•
C
a
p
tu

re
 t

h
e
 v

o
ic

e
 o

f 
ch

ild
re

n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 i
n
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 f

o
ru

m
s 

 
 4

.7
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 L
e

a
rn

in
g

 &
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

S
u

b
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

 (
th

is
 s

e
c

ti
o

n
 w

a
s

 m
is

s
in

g
) 

T
h
e
 p

ri
m

e
 p

u
rp

o
se

 o
f 

th
e
 g

ro
u
p
 i
s 

to
 g

iv
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 d
ir
e
ct

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n
te

r-
a
g
e
n
cy

 s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 t

ra
in

in
g
 a

cr
o
ss

 S
o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
. 
 T

h
is

 f
o
ru

m
 

d
e
a
ls

 w
it
h
 a

 c
o
m

b
in

e
d
 a

g
e
n
d
a
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 m

e
ch

a
n
is

m
 t

o
 b

o
th

 t
h
e
 C

h
il

d
re

n
’s

 T
ru

s
t 

a
n
d
 S

o
u

th
a

m
p

to
n

 S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 C

h
il

d
re

n
 

B
o

a
rd

. 
T
h
e
 c

h
a
ir
 o

f 
th

e
 f

o
ru

m
 r

e
p
o
rt

s 
to

 b
o
th

 t
h
e
 T

ru
st

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 B

o
a
rd

. 
 



 
1
9

 T
h
e
 g

ro
u
p
 e

n
su

re
s 

th
a
t 

si
n
g
le

 a
g
e
n
cy

 w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s 
a
re

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
, 
in

 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 W

o
rk

in
g
 T

o
g
e
th

e
r 

2
0
1
0
. 
 T

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 t

ra
in

in
g
 

n
e
e
d
s 

a
n
a
ly

si
s 

to
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s 

a
n
d
 a

 t
ra

in
in

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t

o
 t

a
k
e
 a

cc
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

lo
ca

l 
a
n
d
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s.

  
T
h
is

 i
n
cl

u
d
e
s 

si
n
g
le

 a
g
e
n
cy

 
a
n
d
 i
n
te

r-
a
g
e
n
cy

 t
ra

in
in

g
. 
T
h
e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o

f 
w

h
o
 i
s 

b
e
in

g
 t

ra
in

e
d
, 
to

 w
h
a
t 

st
a
n
d
a
rd

, 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 i
s 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

S
o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 B
o
a
rd

. 
 M

u
lt

ia
g

e
n

c
y
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 t
ra

in
in

g
 1

 A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
1

 –
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

2
 

T
h
e
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

S
u
b
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 T
ru

st
 h

a
s 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 t

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r

e
sp

e
ct

 o
f 

M
u
lt
ia

g
e
n
cy

 
S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 T

ra
in

in
g
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
. 

 T
it

le
 o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g

 
T

ra
in

in
g

 p
ro

v
id

e
r 

T
a

rg
e

t 
a

u
d

ie
n

c
e

 
N

o
. 

o
f 

a
tt

e
n

d
e

e
s
 

C
o

u
rs

e
 

d
u

ra
ti

o
n

 
A

g
e

n
c
y
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 
o

f 
a

tt
e

n
d

e
e

s
 

B
ru

is
in

g
 A

n
d

 N
o

n
-

A
c
c
id

e
n

ta
l 

In
ju

ri
e

s
 I

n
 

Y
o

u
n

g
 C

h
il

d
re

n
 

S
o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 S

o
le

n
t 

 

T
h
o
se

 w
h
o
 h

a
v
e
 a

 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
re

sp
o
n
si

b
ili

ty
 

fo
r 

sa
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

ch
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 
3
3
 

1
/2

 d
a
y
 

C
S
L
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 

S
ch

o
o
l 

P
o
lic

e
 

O
th

e
r 

4
5
 

2
3
 

9
 

 2
3
 

C
h

il
d

 P
ro

te
c
ti

o
n

 L
e

a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

T
ra

in
in

g
 

In
sp

ir
e
 

T
h
o
se

 i
n
 r

e
g
u
la

r 
co

n
ta

ct
 w

it
h
 c

h
ild

re
n
 

a
n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 

w
o
u
ld

 t
a
k
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 r

o
le

 
o
f 

L
e
a
d
 P

ro
fe

ss
io

n
a
l 
 

5
8
 

1
 d

a
y
 

C
S
L
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 

S
ch

o
o
l 

P
o
lic

e
 

O
th

e
r 

1
0
0
 

C
re

a
ti

n
g

 A
n

 A
n

ti
 B

u
ll

y
in

g
 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

C
h
ild

re
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s 

a
n
d
 

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

T
e
a
m

 
A
n
y
 e

a
rl
y
 y

e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 

ch
ild

 c
a
re

 p
ra

ct
it
io

n
e
rs

 
1
8
 

3
 x

 1
/2

 
d
a
y
 

C
S
L
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 

S
ch

o
o
l 

P
o
lic

e
 

O
th

e
r 

6
 

 6
 

 8
8
 

D
o

m
e

s
ti

c
 a

b
u

s
e

 a
n

d
 i

t'
s
 

im
p

a
c
t 

o
n

 c
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 

S
o
le

n
t 

H
e
a
lt
h
ca

re
 

a
n
d
 C

h
ild

re
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s 

a
n
d
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
  
 

A
n
y
 e

a
rl
y
 y

e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 

ch
ild

 c
a
re

 p
ra

ct
it
io

n
e
rs

 
3
0
 

1
/2

 d
a
y
 

C
S
L
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 

S
ch

o
o
l 

P
o
lic

e
 

O
th

e
r 

6
3
 

3
 

1
0
 

 2
4
 



 
2
0

T
it

le
 o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g

 
T

ra
in

in
g

 p
ro

v
id

e
r 

T
a

rg
e

t 
a

u
d

ie
n

c
e

 
N

o
. 

o
f 

a
tt

e
n

d
e

e
s
 

C
o

u
rs

e
 

d
u

ra
ti

o
n

 
A

g
e

n
c
y
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 
o

f 
a

tt
e

n
d

e
e

s
 

E
n

h
a

n
c
in

g
 I

n
te

ra
g

e
n

c
y
 

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 A

n
d

 C
h

il
d

 
P

ro
te

c
ti

o
n

 P
ra

c
ti

c
e

 

C
h
ild

re
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s 

a
n
d
 

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

T
e
a
m

 

T
h
o
se

 w
h
o
 h

a
v
e
 a

 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
re

sp
o
n
si

b
ili

ty
 

fo
r 

sa
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

ch
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 
6
0
 

2
 d

a
y
s 

C
S
L
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 

S
ch

o
o
l 

P
o
lic

e
 

O
th

e
r 

 4
5
 

1
2
 

1
2
 

 3
1
 

H
id

d
e

n
 H

a
rm

 

S
o
le

n
t 

H
e
a
lt
h
ca

re
 

a
n
d
 D

ru
g
 A

ct
io

n
 

T
e
a
m

 

T
h
o
se

 w
h
o
 h

a
v
e
 a

 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
re

sp
o
n
si

b
ili

ty
 

fo
r 

sa
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

ch
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 
6
4
 

1
 d

a
y
 

C
S
L
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 

S
ch

o
o
l 

P
o
lic

e
 

O
th

e
r 

4
5
 

2
 

1
6
 

 3
3
 

H
o

n
o

u
r 

B
a

s
e

d
 V

io
le

n
c
e

 
T

ra
in

in
g

 
H

a
m

p
sh

ir
e
 

C
o
n
st

a
b
u
la

ry
 

T
h
o
se

 w
h
o
 h

a
v
e
 a

 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
re

sp
o
n
si

b
ili

ty
 

fo
r 

sa
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

ch
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 
9
 

1
/2

 d
a
y
 

C
S
L
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 

S
ch

o
o
l 

P
o
lic

e
 

O
th

e
r 

5
5
 

1
1
 

1
1
 

 2
3
 

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 c

h
il

d
re

n
 

a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 

a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 

C
h
ild

re
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s 

a
n
d
 

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

T
e
a
m

 

T
h
o
se

 i
n
 r

e
g
u
la

r 
co

n
ta

ct
 w

it
h
 c

h
ild

re
n
 

a
n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 

n
e
e
d
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
ct

o
ry

 
tr

a
in

in
g
 o

n
 h

o
w

 t
o
 w

o
rk

 
to

g
e
th

e
r 

to
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

 
a
n
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h
e
 

w
e
lf
a
re

 o
f 

ch
ild

re
n
 

5
0
 

1
/2

 d
a
y
 

C
S
L
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 

S
ch

o
o
l 

P
o
lic

e
 

O
th

e
r 

2
6
 

6
 

1
8
 

 5
0
 

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 C

h
il

d
re

n
 

F
o

r 
E

a
rl

y
 Y

e
a

rs
 A

n
d

 P
la

y
 

P
ra

c
ti

ti
o

n
e

rs
 

C
h
ild

re
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s 

a
n
d
 

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

T
e
a
m

 

T
h
o
se

 i
n
 l
e
a
d
 o

r 
d
e
p
u
ty

 
le

a
d
 f

ra
ct

io
n
e
d
 r

o
le

, 
d
e
si

g
n
a
te

d
 

sa
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 
a
n
d
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 l
e
a
d
 

co
m

m
it
te

e
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 
2
5
 

1
 d

a
y
 

C
S
L
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 

S
ch

o
o
l 

P
o
lic

e
 

O
th

e
r 

1
0
0
 



 
2
1

T
it

le
 o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g

 
T

ra
in

in
g

 p
ro

v
id

e
r 

T
a

rg
e

t 
a

u
d

ie
n

c
e

 
N

o
. 

o
f 

a
tt

e
n

d
e

e
s
 

C
o

u
rs

e
 

d
u

ra
ti

o
n

 
A

g
e

n
c
y
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 
o

f 
a

tt
e

n
d

e
e

s
 

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 F

o
r 

C
h

il
d

m
in

d
e

rs
 

C
h
ild

re
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s 

a
n
d
 

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

T
e
a
m

 

S
p
e
ci

fi
ca

lly
 f

o
r 

h
o
m

e
 

b
a
se

d
 c

h
ild

ca
re

rs
 a

n
d
 

ch
ild

 m
in

d
e
rs

 
2
7
 

1
 d

a
y
 

C
S
L
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 

S
ch

o
o
l 

P
o
lic

e
 

O
th

e
r 

1
0
0
 

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 c

h
il

d
re

n
 

a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 

tr
a

in
in

g
 f

o
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 

C
h
ild

re
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s 

a
n
d
 

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

T
e
a
m

 

T
h
o
se

 r
e
sp

o
n
si

b
le

 f
o
r 

su
p
e
rv

is
in

g
 a

n
d
 

m
a
n
a
g
in

g
 s

ta
ff

 w
o
rk

in
g
 

w
it
h
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 
9
 

 

C
S
L
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 

S
ch

o
o
l 

P
o
lic

e
 

O
th

e
r 

2
3
 

   7
7
 

S
a

fe
r 

R
e

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 

C
h
ild

re
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s 

a
n
d
 

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

T
e
a
m

 

T
h
o
se

 w
it
h
 a

 
re

sp
o
n
si

b
ili

ty
 r

e
cr

u
it
in

g
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

st
a
ff

 
1
2
 

 

C
S
L
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 

S
ch

o
o
l 

P
o
lic

e
 

O
th

e
r 

1
6
 

8
 

4
2
 

 3
2
 

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 W

o
rk

s
h

o
p

 
F
o

r 
S

c
h

o
o

ls
 

C
h
ild

re
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s 

a
n
d
 

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

T
e
a
m

 

a
ll 

te
a
ch

in
g
 a

n
d
 n

o
n
 

te
a
ch

in
g
 s

ta
ff

 a
t 

S
t 

G
e
o
rg

e
s 

 
8
1
 

1
/2

 d
a
y
 

C
S
L
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 

S
ch

o
o
l 

P
o
lic

e
 

O
th

e
r 

1
0
0
 

C
o

m
m

o
n

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 L
e

a
d

 P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l 
in

 
P

ra
c
ti

c
e

 

C
h
ild

re
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s 

a
n
d
 

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

T
e
a
m

 

T
h
o
se

 w
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 

ch
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 i
n
 u

n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
a
n
d
 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

1
3
 

1
 d

a
y
 

C
S
L
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 

S
ch

o
o
l 

P
o
lic

e
 

O
th

e
r 

3
0
 

 3
0
 

 4
0
 



 
2
2

T
it

le
 o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g

 
T

ra
in

in
g

 p
ro

v
id

e
r 

T
a

rg
e

t 
a

u
d

ie
n

c
e

 
N

o
. 

o
f 

a
tt

e
n

d
e

e
s
 

C
o

u
rs

e
 

d
u

ra
ti

o
n

 
A

g
e

n
c
y
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 
o

f 
a

tt
e

n
d

e
e

s
 

R
is

k
 T

a
k

in
g

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 
P

e
o

p
le

 L
e

v
e

l 
1

 
S
M

A
S
H

 

T
h
o
se

 w
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 

ch
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

  
fr

o
m

 u
n
iv

e
rs

a
l 

a
n
d
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

4
1
 

1
 d

a
y
 

C
S
L
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 

S
ch

o
o
l 

P
o
lic

e
 

O
th

e
r 

2
9
 

1
0
 

  6
1
 

L
e

v
e

l 
2

 S
u

b
s
ta

n
c
e

 
m

is
u

s
e

 
S
M

A
S
H

 

T
h
o
se

 w
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 

ch
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

  
fr

o
m

 u
n
iv

e
rs

a
l 

a
n
d
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

2
5
 

2
 d

a
y
s 

C
S
L
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 

S
ch

o
o
l 

P
o
lic

e
 

O
th

e
r 

8
 

4
 

  8
8
 

L
e

v
e

l 
2

 S
e

x
u

a
l 

H
e

a
lt

h
 

a
n

d
 R

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 

S
M

A
S
H

 

T
h
o
se

 w
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 

ch
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

  
fr

o
m

 u
n
iv

e
rs

a
l 

a
n
d
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

5
8
 

1
 d

a
y
 

C
S
L
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 

S
ch

o
o
l 

P
o
lic

e
 

O
th

e
r 

3
3
 

3
 

3
 

 6
1
 

H
id

d
e

n
 S

e
n

te
n

c
e

 

C
h
ild

re
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s 

a
n
d
 

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

T
e
a
m

 

T
h
o
se

 w
o
rk

in
g
 i
n
 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

w
h
e
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 

u
se

rs
 m

a
 b

e
 a

ff
e
ct

e
d
 

b
y
 i
m

p
ri
so

n
m

e
n
t 

o
r 

cr
im

in
a
l 
co

n
v
ic

ti
o
n
 

2
8
 

1
 d

a
y
 

C
S
L
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 

S
ch

o
o
l 

P
o
lic

e
 

O
th

e
r 

6
4
 

4
 

1
1
 

 2
1
 

In
s
e

t 
S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 
a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 

C
h
ild

re
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s 

a
n
d
 

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

T
e
a
m

 

T
h
o
se

 w
o
rk

in
g
 d

ir
e
ct

ly
 

a
n
d
 i
n
d
ir
e
ct

ly
 w

it
h
 

in
te

n
se

 c
o
n
ta

ct
 w

it
h
 

ch
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 
1
9
9
 

1
/2

 d
a
y
 

C
S
L
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 

S
ch

o
o
l 

P
o
lic

e
 

O
th

e
r 

3
7
 

 6
3
 



 
2
3

T
it

le
 o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g

 
T

ra
in

in
g

 p
ro

v
id

e
r 

T
a

rg
e

t 
a

u
d

ie
n

c
e

 
N

o
. 

o
f 

a
tt

e
n

d
e

e
s
 

C
o

u
rs

e
 

d
u

ra
ti

o
n

 
A

g
e

n
c
y
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 
o

f 
a

tt
e

n
d

e
e

s
 

O
n

li
n

e
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 

C
h
ild

re
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s 

a
n
d
 

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

T
e
a
m

 

T
h
o
se

 w
o
rk

in
g
 d

ir
e
ct

ly
 

o
r 

in
d
ir
e
ct

ly
 o

r 
w

it
h
 

in
fr

e
q
u
e
n
t 

b
u
t 

in
te

n
si

v
e
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 

ch
ild

re
n
 o

r 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 

3
5
 

u
se

rn
a
m

e
s 

a
ss

ig
n
e
d
 

N
A
 

C
S
L
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 

S
ch

o
o
l 

P
o
lic

e
 

O
th

e
r 

2
0
 

  1
4
 

 6
6
 

  4
.8

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

  
 C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s 

to
 t

h
e
 2

0
1
1
/2

0
1
2
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

w
e
re

 r
e
ce

iv
e
d
 a

s 
fo

llo
w

s:
 

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 c
a

re
 t

ru
s
t 

£
3

1
,4

2
6
 

P
o

lic
e

 
£

1
2

,5
3

3
 

H
a

m
p

s
h

ir
e

 P
ro

b
a

ti
o
n

 
£

2
,5

0
4

 

C
A

F
C

A
S

S
 

£
5

5
0

 

S
o

u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

£
7

3
,7

5
6
 

C
W

D
C

 
£

1
9

,3
5

8
 

A
re

a
 B

a
s
e

d
 g

ra
n

t 
(C

D
O

P
) 

£
1

5
,3

0
0
 

           



 
2
4

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 M
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 

th
e

 S
o

u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 C
h

il
d

re
n

 B
o

a
rd

  

 D
o
n
a
ld

 M
cP

h
a
il 

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

C
h
a
ir

 

F
e
lic

it
y
 B

u
d
g
e
n
 

V
ic

e
 C

h
a
ir
 o

f 
S
o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 C

h
ild

re
n
 B

o
a
rd

, 
H

e
a
d
 o

f 
S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
, 
C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s 

a
n
d
 

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 

C
liv

e
 W

e
b
st

e
r 

E
x
e
cu

ti
v
e
 D

ir
e
ct

o
r 

o
f 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s 

a
n
d
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 

A
lis

o
n
 A

le
x
a
n
d
e
r 

A
ss

is
ta

n
t 

D
ir
e
ct

o
r,

 C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s 

a
n
d
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 

S
h
e
la

g
h
 B

u
tl
e
r 

C
A
F
C
A
S
S
 

Ja
so

n
 H

o
g
g
 

H
a
m

p
sh

ir
e
 C

o
n
st

a
b
u
la

ry
 

S
u
sa

n
 L

a
w

e
s 

S
H

IP
 P

C
T
 

D
r 

H
ila

ry
 S

m
it
h
 

D
e
si

g
n
a
te

d
 D

o
ct

o
r,

 S
H

IP
 P

C
T
 

L
in

d
sa

y
 V

o
ss

 
D

e
si

g
n
a
te

d
 N

u
rs

e
, 
S
H

IP
 P

C
T
 

A
ile

e
n
 P

a
tt

e
rs

o
n
 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s,

 S
o
le

n
t 

H
e
a
lt
h
ca

re
 

T
ri
sh

 N
e
w

co
m

b
e
 

C
h
a
ir
 o

f 
P
ro

fe
ss

io
n
a
l 
Is

su
e
s 

S
u
b
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 (

N
a
m

e
s 

N
u
rs

e
, 
S
o
le

n
t 

H
e
a
lt
h
ca

re
) 

Ju
d
y
 G

ill
o
w

 
D

ir
e
ct

o
r 

o
f 

N
u
rs

in
g
, 
S
U

H
T
 

D
r 

S
a
ra

h
 S

te
e
le

 
N

a
m

e
d
 N

u
rs

e
 f

o
r 

C
h
ild

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n
, 
S
U

H
T
 

N
ic

k
 C

ro
ss

 
H

o
u
si

n
g
, 
S
o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 

L
e
sl

e
y
 H

o
b
b
s 

 
P
ri
n
ci

p
le

 O
ff

ic
e
r,

 P
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 I

n
cl

u
si

o
n
, 
S
o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 

M
a
ri
a
 G

a
lo

v
ic

s 
H

a
m

p
sh

ir
e
 P

ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 T

ru
st

 



 
2
5

G
e
ri
d
a
 M

o
n
ta

g
u
-M

u
n
so

n
 

P
ri
m

a
ry

 H
e
a
d
te

a
ch

e
r 

Jo
 L

a
p
p
in

 
H

e
a
d
 o

f 
S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
, 

S
o
u
th

e
rn

 H
e
a
lt
h
ca

re
 

D
r 

A
li 

R
o
b
in

s 
 

N
a
m

e
d
 G

P
 l
e
a
d
 f

o
r 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

A
n
n
ie

 M
cI

v
e
r 

C
h
a
ir
 o

f 
In

te
ra

g
e
n
cy

 S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 &

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 G
ro

u
p
 (

P
ri
n
ci

p
a
l 
O

ff
ic

e
r,

 S
o
ci

a
l 
C
a
re

, 

S
o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
ci

l)
 

C
a
ro

l 
V
a
le

n
ti
n
e
 

S
e
n
io

r 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

A
d
u
lt
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 S

o
ci

a
l 
C
a
re

, 
a
n
d
 m

e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

S
o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 A

d
u
lt
s 

B
o
a
rd

 

C
h
ri
s 

E
th

ri
d
g
e
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 m

a
te

rn
it
y
 L

e
a
d
, 
N

H
S
 S

o
u
th

 C
e
n
tr

a
l 

C
llr

 S
a
ra

h
 B

o
g
le

 
E
x
e
cu

ti
v
e
 M

e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s 

a
n
d
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 

R
ic

h
a
rd

 I
v
o
ry

  
S
o
lic

it
o
r 

to
 t

h
e
 B

o
a
rd

, 
S
o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 

S
a
m

 R
a
y
 

C
h
a
ir
 o

f 
th

e
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 E

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 S

u
b
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 (

C
o
m

m
is

si
o
n
in

g
 L

e
a
d
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
, 
C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s 

a
n
d
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
) 

Jo
 A

sh
  

 
S
o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s 

T
o
n
y
 H

e
se

lt
o
n
 

S
o
u
th

 C
e
n
tr

a
l 
A
m

b
u
la

n
ce

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 

V
a
n
e
ss

a
 C

a
ss

  
F
u
rt

h
e
r 

E
d
u
ca

ti
o
n
 C

o
lle

g
e
 

C
liv

e
 C

lif
fo

rd
 

L
a
y
 M

e
m

b
e
r 

Je
n
n
ie

 H
a
rm

st
o
m

 
 

B
o
a
rd

 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

S
o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 

L
e
g
a
l 
A
d
v
is

o
r 

W
h
e
n
 r

e
q
u
e
st

e
d
 b

y
 C

h
a
ir
 o

n
ly

 

   



 
2
6

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 3

 
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
h

ip
 a

n
d

 a
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 b
o

a
rd

 m
e

e
ti

n
g

s
 d

u
ri

n
g

 2
0

1
1

-2
0

1
2

  
S
S
C
B
 m

e
e
t 

b
i-
m

o
n
th

ly
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s 

a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
d
 b

y
 S

o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 
D

e
m

o
cr

a
ti
c 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s.

 D
u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
0
-1

1
 t

h
e
re

 w
a
s 

a
 

v
a
ca

n
cy

 f
o
r 

th
e
 b

o
a
rd

 m
a
n
a
g
e
r 

ro
le

 a
n
d
 a

n
 i
n
te

ri
m

 m
a
n
a
g
e
r 

w
a
s 

a
p
p
o
in

te
d
. 
A
 m

a
n
a
g
e
r 

w
a
s 

a
p
p
o
in

te
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 A

u
g
u
st

 2
0
1
0
. 

 M
e

m
b

e
r 

a
g

e
n

c
y
/

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
  

M
e

e
ti

n
g

s
 a

tt
e

n
d

e
d

/
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 a
tt

e
n

d
 

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

C
h
a
ir
  

6
/6

  

V
ic

e
 C

h
a
ir
 (

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
, 
C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s 

a
n
d
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
) 

 6
/6

  

D
ir
e
ct

o
r 

o
f 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s 

a
n
d
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 

1
/6

  

B
o
a
rd

 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

 
5
/6

  

C
h
a
ir
 o

f 
S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 L
e
a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

G
ro

u
p
  

0
/6

  

C
h
a
ir
 o

f 
M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 &

 E
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 s

u
b
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

2
/6

  

C
h
a
ir
 o

f 
P
ro

fe
ss

io
n
a
l 
Is

su
e
s 

su
b
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

5
/6

  

C
h
a
ir
 o

f 
P
u
b
lic

 E
d
u
ca

ti
o
n
 &

 A
w

a
re

n
e
ss

 s
u
b
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

5
/6

  

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 &

 V
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
ct

o
r 

 
5
/6

  

C
A
F
C
A
S
S
 

4
/6

  

H
a
m

p
sh

ir
e
 C

o
n
st

a
b
u
la

ry
  

6
/6

  

Y
o
u
th

 O
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 T

e
a
m

 
4
/6

  

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
P
ro

b
a
ti
o
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 –

 H
a
m

p
sh

ir
e
 B

ra
n
ch

  
6
/6

  

D
e
si

g
n
a
te

d
 D

o
ct

o
r,

 N
H

S
 S

o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 

3
/6

  

D
e
si

g
n
a
te

d
 N

u
rs

e
, 

N
H

S
 S

o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 

6
/6

  

N
H

S
 S

o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 

6
/6

  

S
o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 H

o
sp

it
a
l 
T
ru

st
  

6
/6

  

S
o
u
th

e
rn

 H
e
a
lt
h
 

4
/6

  

S
o
le

n
t 

H
e
a
lt
h
 

6
/6

  

G
P
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 L

e
a
d
 

0
/6

  

S
o
u
th

 C
e
n
tr

a
l 
A
m

b
u
la

n
ce

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 

3
/6

  

P
ri
m

a
ry

 H
e
a
d
 t

e
a
ch

e
r 

 
1
/6

  
 

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

E
d
u
ca

ti
o
n
 C

o
lle

g
e
  

4
/6

  

S
o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 
H

o
u
si

n
g
  

6
/6

  

S
o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 A

d
u
lt
s 

B
o
a
rd

 
1
/1

 

E
x
e
cu

ti
v
e
 M

e
m

b
e
r,

 C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s 

a
n
d
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 

3
/6

  

L
a
y
 M

e
m

b
e
r 

2
/2

  

 



 

 1

DECISION-MAKER:  OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

SUBJECT: PROGRESS REPORT ON POST OFSTED ANNOUNCED 
INSPECTION ACTION PLAN 

DATE OF DECISION: 14 MARCH 2013 

REPORT OF: CABINET MEMBER FOR CHILDREN’S SERVICES & 
DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN’S SERVICES AND LEARNING 

 

CONTACT DETAILS 

AUTHOR: Name:  Felicity Budgen Tel: 023 8083 3021 

 E-mail: Felicity.budgen@southampton.gov.uk 

Director Name:  Clive Webster Tel: 023 8083 2771 

 E-mail: Clive.webster@southampton.gov.uk 

 

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 

None 

BRIEF SUMMARY 

An ‘Announced’ inspection of Safeguarding and Children Looked After services by 
OfSTED took place during 23 April to 4 May 2012.  The inspection report was 
published by OfSTED on 13 June 2012.  Key issues arising from the Inspection were 
reported to Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee in July 2012 and 
November 2012. 

The OfSTED report recommended that the Council work with its partners to address 
17 areas for improvement to improve the effectiveness of the local safeguarding 
arrangements and services to Children Looked After. 

This report provides members with an update on progress since November 2012 in 
addressing the areas for improvement recommended by OfSTED. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 (i) That the Committee note on comment on the progress made to deliver 
a stable and improving Safeguarding service. 

REASON FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. To ensure a continued focus upon the areas of improvement identified by 
OfSTED on Southampton’s Safeguarding and Children Looked After services, 
May 2012. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 9



 

 2

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

2.  To not respond to the considered views of the national regulatory service for 
inspecting the collective effectiveness of safeguarding and children looked 
after services would potentially put the Local Authority and its partners at risk 
of failing to meet the safeguarding needs of vulnerable local children and 
young people.  Not responding to areas for improvement identified by 
OfSTED would also have significant reputational consequences for the 
council when its safeguarding arrangements are next assessed by OfSTED. 

DETAIL (Including consultation carried out) 

3. Following the OfSTED Inspection, May 2012, the service responded with a 
detailed action plan, see appendix 1.  This plan is monitored, at a senior level, 
at the services monthly quality assurance meeting.  The plan is RAG rated. 

4. To date 4 actions are green, 31 amber and 3 red.  The key outstanding area 
of limited progress that continues to provide the greatest challenge to the 
council relates to the Council’s success in achieving a stable workforce with 
the balance of skills and experience to deliver practice of consistent quality. 

5. Overall service effectiveness will improve significantly when we have a stable 
and permanent workforce that can take full advantage of all of the other 
system improvements and investments that have been made. In progressing 
towards this the Council has:  

• Made significant progress in recruiting competent and able newly qualified 
social workers (NQSWs) following its proactive early recruitment fair for 
Social Work graduates in July 2012. This will provide a core for its future 
workforce. 

• Implemented a retention payment that was agreed by the council in 
December 2012 to assist in attracting and retaining more experienced 
social workers.  Whilst this has not delivered an immediate improvement in 
workforce stability it is too early to gauge what the impact of this will be. 
The initiative is being used monthly as part of our ongoing campaign to 
recruit experienced social workers and senior practitioners.   

• Actively pursued a recruitment campaign from overseas and we are in 
discussions with a specialist recruitment agency to specifically find and 
recruit first line managers and experienced social workers.  If successful it 
is anticipated that these actions will fill our vacancies by July. 

• Put in place a workforce strategy to develop both our new and existing 
social care workforce.  This involves joint working with health colleagues 
who have recruited additional newly qualified health visitors. 

6. Since the November 2012 report to OSMC the Council’s Management Team 
have: 

• received a presentation on performance, strengths and challenges on 12 

February 2013.  The report proposed short and long term solutions.  
These are currently being drawn into detailed proposals.   

•  appointed a Change Team to inform the successful development of the 
People Directorate.  The transformation of Children’s Services is an 
essential workstream of this initiative.  This work is being actively 
developed with our partners in Health and across the City Council.  



 3

Felicity Budgen, Head of Safeguarding Service and Donna Chapman, 
Associate Director - Maternity and Child Health Commissioning, are 
leading this workstream.  Staff from both agencies are working on a new 
Children’s Services design.  Taking a “whole child, whole family” and all 
agency approach to resolving issues earlier and thereby preventing high 
demand.  Teams and agencies will work together effectively to identify 
solutions both for children, their families, staff and agencies.  The model 
will promote self-reliance. 

7. In February, the Council took part in a Peer Challenge.  Peer Challenges are 
organised by the Children’s Improvement Board.  The CIB was established 
by the DfE and is established in all nine regions. The Board undertakes a 
range of functions, but in South East the 19 Local Authorities committed to 
having one Peer Challenge in all authorities.  In Southampton a Peer 
Challenge took place on progress against our Ofsted action plan.  The Peer 
Challenge process specifically does not result in the production of a written 
report.  The observations and feedback offered by the team are limited by 
the modest amount of time any team has in its fieldwork to triangulate and 
establish firm conclusions about a service and are therefore offered 
informally and un-triangulated.  The Southampton Peer Challenge team 
comprises a mixture of professionals from the other 18 South East Local 
Authorities.  Feedback on the team’s reflections about the Council’s progress 
against its action plan will be shared orally. 

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Capital/Revenue  

8. There are no capital implications as a direct result of this report. 

9. In order to respond to a large number of the recommendations revenue 
resources will be found within the existing Children’s Services and Learning 
budgets.  Where additional resources are needed these will be supported by 
a business case and progressed through normal corporate resourcing 
processes. 

Property/Other 

10. None. 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:  

11. This report has not had the benefit of Legal Services input. 

Other Legal Implications:  

12. This report has not had the benefit of Legal Services input. 

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS 

13. None. 

 

 

 

 



 4

KEY DECISION?  No 

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: All 

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Appendices  

1. Post OfSTED Integrated Safeguarding Improvement Plan 

Documents In Members’ Rooms 

 None 

Equality Impact Assessment  

Do the implications/subject of the report require an Equality Impact 
Assessment (EIA) to be carried out. 

No 

Other Background Documents 

Equality Impact Assessment and Other Background documents available for 
inspection at: 

Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the Access to 
Information Procedure Rules / Schedule 
12A allowing document to be 
Exempt/Confidential (if applicable) 

1. None  

 



O
fS

T
E

D
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 R

e
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
C

h
il
d

re
n

's
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 C
ll
r 

B
o

g
le

, 
C

a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r
V

e
rs

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

o
l:

 V
ic

k
y
 H

e
a

th
 -

 w
o

rk
in

g
 t

o
 T

im
 D

a
v
is

jjj

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 -
 S

o
u

th
a

m
p

to
n

 O
fs

te
d

/C
Q

C
 P

o
s

t-
In

s
p

e
c

ti
o

n
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1

2
V

e
rs

io
n

 1
4

L
a

s
t 

u
p

d
a

te
d

: 
5

th
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3

N
o

.
R

e
c

.
A

c
ti

o
n

P
ro

g
re

s
s

Im
p

a
c

t
W

h
a

t 
d

o
 w

e
 s

ti
ll
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 d

o
W

h
e

re
 w

e
 a

im
 t

o
 b

e
 b

y
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0

1
3

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 R

A
G

 R
a

ti
n

g
)

C
o

s
t

L
e

a
d

 p
e

rs
o

n
 

re
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

Q
U

A
L

IT
Y

 O
F

 W
O

R
K

 T
O

 S
A

F
E

G
U

A
R

D
 C

H
IL

D
R

E
N

1

1
.1

S
e
c
u
re

 a
 p

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 w

it
h
 s

u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 s

k
ill

s
 t
o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 t
h
e
 f
u
ll 

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 w

o
rk

.

F
u
n
d
in

g
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 f
o
r 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 

o
v
e
r 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
o
n
 a

 t
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 b

a
s
is

 t
o
 a

llo
w

 f
o
r 

s
a
fe

 

a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 w
h
ils

t 
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 a
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 s

ta
b
ili

s
e
 t
h
e
 

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
. 
R

e
te

n
ti
o
n
 P

o
lic

y 
a
n
d
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 f
in

a
n
c
e
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 

o
n
 2

1
/1

2
/1

2
. 
C

u
rr

e
n
tl
y 

o
n
e
-t

h
ir
d
 o

f 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 a

s
 a

g
e
n
c
y 

s
ta

ff
 

a
n
d
 a

n
o
th

e
r 

th
ir
d
 a

re
 n

e
w

ly
-q

u
a
lif

ie
d
.

A
ll 

c
h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 c

a
s
e
s
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 a

n
d
 r

o
b
u
s
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
v
e
rs

ig
h
t 
in

 p
la

c
e
 o

n
 t
h
e
 t
o
ta

lit
y 

o
f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

. 
 1

6
 s

o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 

a
p
p
o
in

te
d
 a

n
d
 i
n
 p

o
s
t 
b
y 

3
1
s
t 
O

c
to

b
e
r.

1
. 
C

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 a

p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t 
to

 a
ll 

v
a
c
a
n
t 
p
o
s
ts

.

2
. 
R

e
d
u
c
e
 a

g
e
n
c
y 

s
ta

ff
. 
C

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 a

d
v
e
rt

is
e
 f
o
r 

fr
o
n
tl
in

e
 s

o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 a
n
d
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 r
e
te

n
ti
o
n
 p

o
lic

y.

3
. 
R

e
c
ru

it
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 f
ro

m
 o

v
e
rs

e
a
s
.

4
. 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 a

 r
e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
c
o
m

p
a
n
y 

to
 f
in

d
 f
ro

n
t-

lin
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

.

•S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
n
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
y 

u
p
o
n
 a

g
e
n
c
y 

s
ta

ff
 a

s
 a

 s
h
a
re

 o
f 

o
u
r 

fr
o
n
t 
lin

e
 C

h
ild

re
n
's

 S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
. 
T

h
e
 r

e
te

n
ti
o
n
 p

o
lic

y 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

a
g
re

e
d
 a

n
d
 i
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
in

g
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
. 

E
a
rl
y 

in
d
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
a
re

 n
o
t 
p
ro

m
is

in
g
.

• 
1
6
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
n
e
w

ly
-q

u
a
lif

ie
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 

w
o
rk

e
rs

 w
e
re

 r
e
c
ru

it
e
d
 a

n
d
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 b

y 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

c
£
1
.7

m
 i
n
 

b
a
s
e
lin

e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

1
3
/0

2
/1

3
.

F
e
lic

it
y 

B
u
d
g
e
n

1
.2

T
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 h

a
s
 s

u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 s

k
ill

s
 t
o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 t
h
e
 f
u
ll 

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 w

o
rk

.

In
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 'g

ro
u
p
 i
n
te

rv
ie

w
' p

ilo
t 
to

 t
e
s
t 
a
g
a
in

s
t 
k
e
y 

c
o
m

p
e
te

n
c
ie

s
. 
 A

g
re

e
d
 t
h
e
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
-M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
. 
T

h
is

 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 O

fS
T

E
D

 f
in

d
in

g
s
, 
n
e
w

 l
e
g
is

la
ti
v
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 

a
n
d
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 f
ro

m
 S

C
R

 a
n
d
 I
M

R
s
. 
 R

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 t
h
e
 m

o
d
e
l 
fo

r 
th

e
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 f
ro

m
 C

a
p
it
a
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 t
h
e
 

re
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
te

a
m

/ 
C

a
p
it
a
 

a
n
d
 c

h
ild

re
n
's

 s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 a
s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
rs

 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 a

s
s
u
re

 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

. 
T

h
e
 d

ra
ft
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

ig
n
e
d
 o

ff
 b

y 
S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
T

e
a
m

 a
n
d
 w

a
s
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

s
ta

ff
 c

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
. 
 W

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 

C
a
p
it
a
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 c

le
a
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 p

a
th

w
a
y 

fo
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 S
o
c
ia

l 

C
a
re

 a
n
d
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 t
ra

in
in

g
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
 -

 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
.

•S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
h
ig

h
 c

a
lib

re
 a

p
p
lic

a
n
ts

 a
p
p
o
in

te
d
. 
 

W
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 a

lig
n
e
d
 t
o
 a

g
re

e
d
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
. 
 

C
le

a
r 

o
n
-g

o
in

g
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 p

la
c
e

1
. 
T

h
e
 S

e
n
io

r 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

w
ill

 b
e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 a

n
d
 a

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 o

n
 

c
o
u
rs

e
s
. 

2
. 
S

ta
ff
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 a
n
d
 w

id
e
r 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 w

ill
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 b

y 
a
tt
e
n
d
in

g
 c

o
u
rs

e
s
 a

n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
.

3
. 
R

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 R

e
te

n
ti
o
n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y 

to
 b

o
o
s
t 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 
q
u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 p

ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs

4
. 
D

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

s
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 v
ia

 

C
a
p
it
a
 a

n
d
 m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y 

tr
a
in

in
g
.

•R
e
v
ie

w
e
d
 t
h
e
 m

o
d
e
l 
fo

r 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

o
f 
w

o
rk

 f
ro

m
 C

a
p
it
a
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 t
h
e
 

re
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
te

a
m

/ 
C

a
p
it
a
 a

n
d
 c

h
ild

re
n
's

 

s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 a
s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
rs

 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 

a
s
s
u
re

 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

.

• 
It
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 t
o
 r

e
c
ru

it
 a

n
o
th

e
r 

1
0
 

s
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 U

S
A

. 

W
it
h
in

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

M
a
rk

 J
o
w

e
tt
 

1
.3

•R
e
v
is

e
 t
h
e
 Q

u
a
lit

y 
A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
  
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 

•I
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

•E
n
s
u
re

 r
o
b
u
s
t 
Q

A
 a

n
d
 a

u
d
it
 s

ys
te

m
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e

•D
e
v
is

e
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s

P
ra

c
ti
c
e
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 
 T

h
e
 Q

u
a
lit

y 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 w
a
s
 s

e
n
t 
o
u
t 
fo

r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
3
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 f
in

a
lis

e
d
 v

e
rs

io
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y 

0
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
3
. 
 T

h
e
m

a
ti
c
 a

u
d
it
in

g
 h

a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 

s
ix

 m
o
n
th

s
 a

n
d
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
'B

a
s
e
lin

e
 A

u
d
ti
n
g
' w

a
s
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 i
n
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
3
 w

it
h
 3

0
0
 P

A
C

T
 c

a
s
e
s
 s

c
ru

ti
n
is

e
d
. 

T
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 f
ro

m
 t
h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 b
y 

2
7
/0

2
/2

0
1
3
.

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 q
u
a
lit

y 
o
f 
fr

o
n
tl
in

e
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

L
a
u
n
c
h
 t
h
e
 Q

u
a
lit

y 
A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 -
 3

1
/0

3
/2

0
1
3
 a

n
d
 f
u
lly

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 

th
e
 a

u
d
it
in

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
.

A
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 Q

A
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 t
o
 b

e
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 b

y 

3
1
/3

/1
3
. 

W
it
h
in

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

M
a
rk

 J
o
w

e
tt
 

2

2
.1

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y 

o
f 
s
u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 c

o
m

p
lie

s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

S
u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 P

o
lic

y.
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y 
re

g
u
la

r 
h
ig

h
 

q
u
a
lit

y 
s
u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 (

g
re

a
te

r 
fo

c
u
s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 c

h
ild

; 

m
o
re

 c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 o

f 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
)

T
a
s
k
 g

ro
u
p
 h

a
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 f
in

d
in

g
s
, 
d
ra

ft
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
is

e
d
 w

e
re

 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
. 

A
u
d
it
n
g
 o

f 
s
u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 f
ile

s
 i
n
 I
A

T
, 
P

A
C

T
 E

a
s
t 
a
n
d
 P

A
C

T
 

W
e
s
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 a

n
d
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

s
 a

n
d
 a

re
a
s
 f
o
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
id

e
n
d
if
ie

d
. 
A

u
d
it
in

g
 o

f 
s
u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 f
ile

s
 w

ill
 

b
e
c
o
m

e
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 r

e
g
u
la

r 
a
u
d
it
in

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
.

M
u
c
h
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 f
re

q
u
e
n
c
y 

a
n
d
 q

u
a
lit

y 
o
f 
s
u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
.

1
. 
S

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 p

o
lic

y 
a
n
d
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e

2
. 
A

c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 i
s
s
u
e
s
 r

a
is

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

u
d
it
 a

n
d
 d

ri
v
e
 u

p
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
.

R
e
v
is

e
d
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 p

o
lic

y 
a
n
d
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 i
n
 

p
la

c
e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y 

e
x
is

ts
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 

a
u
d
it
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

. 
A

u
d
it
s
 a

re
 t
a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
 

re
g
u
la

rl
y.

W
it
h
in

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

M
a
rk

 J
o
w

e
tt

Im
m

e
d

ia
te

ly

E
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 q

u
a
li
ty

 o
f 

s
o

c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 t
o

 s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

 

c
h

il
d

re
n

 i
s
 o

f 
a
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n

tl
y
 h

ig
h

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

 

T
h

e
 q

u
a
li
ty

 o
f 

w
o

rk
 t

o
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

 c
h

il
d

re
n

 i
s
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
y
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
h

ig
h

 q
u

a
li
ty

 s
u

p
e
rv

is
io

n
 b

y
 

m
a
n

a
g

e
rs

P
a

g
e

 1
O

S
M

C
 O

fS
T

E
D

 M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 R

e
p

o
rt

 v
2

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



N
o

.
R

e
c

.
A

c
ti

o
n

P
ro

g
re

s
s

Im
p

a
c

t
W

h
a

t 
d

o
 w

e
 s

ti
ll
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 d

o
W

h
e

re
 w

e
 a

im
 t

o
 b

e
 b

y
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0

1
3

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 R

A
G

 R
a

ti
n

g
)

C
o

s
t

L
e

a
d

 p
e

rs
o

n
 

re
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

2
.2

•A
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 t
o
 

in
c
lu

d
e
: 
E

v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 b

e
in

g
 t
ra

c
k
e
d
 

fr
o
m

 o
n
e
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 t
o
 a

n
o
th

e
r

•E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

c
h
ild

/f
a
m

ily
 o

f 
th

e
 s

o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
.

•E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
"s

to
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 c

h
ild

" 
a
re

 c
o
h
e
re

n
t 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 n

o
te

s
.

•E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
re

fl
e
c
ti
v
e
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
.

•E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 m

e
t.

•E
x
p
e
c
te

d
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

re
it
e
ra

te
d
 i
n
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 f
o
ru

m
s
.

•S
u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 a

u
d
it
s
 o

f 
IA

T
/P

A
C

T
 E

/P
A

C
T

 W
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 

w
ill

 b
e
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
o
n
g
o
in

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
a
u
d
it
in

g
. 
 I
A

T
 l
e
s
s
 a

re
a
s
 

o
f 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

 t
h
a
n
 P

A
C

T
. 
S

W
 s

u
rv

e
y 

o
f 
s
u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
.

•A
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
fr

o
n
tl
in

e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 

s
u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 t
ra

in
in

g
.

•A
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
W

iF
i 
in

 M
a
rl
a
n
d
 H

o
u
s
e

M
u
c
h
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
, 
re

fl
e
c
ti
v
e
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 a

n
d
 b

e
tt
e
r 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
in

g

•R
e
s
o
lv

e
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 S

e
n
io

r 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r,

 I
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
, 
th

e
 i
s
s
u
e
 o

f 
h
a
v
in

g
 s

u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 

d
e
d
ic

a
te

d
 r

o
o
m

s
 w

it
h
 P

A
R

IS
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 I
T

 k
it
. 
 I
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
, 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 f
re

q
u
e
n
c
y 

o
f 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 t
o
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

.

•O
n
g
o
in

g
 a

u
d
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 w

o
rk

 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 r

e
fl
e
c
ti
v
e
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 

R
e
p
o
rt

 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 S

W
 s

u
rv

e
y 

o
n
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y 
2
6
/0

2
/1

3
 

w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 h

e
lp

 i
n
fo

rm
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 i
n
 t
h
iis

 a
re

a
.

•S
u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 a

u
d
it
 (

2
3
/0

8
/1

2
).

 

• 
T

h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 

s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
s
u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 t
ra

in
in

g
.

W
it
h
in

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

M
a
rk

 J
o
w

e
tt

2
.3

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
- 

e
n
a
b
le

 

u
s
e
 o

f 
w

ir
e
le

s
s
 c

o
n
n
e
c
ti
v
it
y 

fo
r 

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

te
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y 

a
n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 q

u
a
lit

y 
a
n
d
 a

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 

o
f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 s

p
a
c
e
 f
o
r 

s
u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
.

•W
ir
e
le

s
s
 i
n
 M

a
rl
a
n
d
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 f
o
r 

F
lo

o
rs

 7
 a

n
d
 8

; 

th
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y 

fo
r 

th
e
 r

e
s
t.

•C
S

L
 I
C

T
 h

a
s
 c

o
s
te

d
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

, 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

y 

D
C

S

•S
M

 (
C

S
L
 I
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
) 

h
a
s
 a

g
re

e
d

G
re

a
te

r 
w

o
rk

 f
le

x
ib

ili
ty

 o
n
c
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
K

a
rl
 L

im
b
e
rt

 i
s
 t
a
k
in

g
 t
h
is

 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
B

o
a
rd

 t
o
 c

la
ri
fy

. 
F

u
n
d
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

•T
e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 t
o
 w

ir
e
le

s
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 b

y 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
, 
to

g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 m

o
v
e
s
 o

f 
m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 t
o
 c

re
a
te

 a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

s
u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 s

p
a
c
e
 i
n
 M

a
rl
a
n
d
s
. 

C
o
s
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

a
g
re

e
d
 b

y 
D

C
S

F
e
lic

it
y 

B
u
d
g
e
n

2
.4

A
p
p
o
in

t/
d
e
s
ig

n
a
te

 P
ri
n
c
ip

a
l 
S

o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

e
r 

in
 

lin
e
 w

it
h
 M

u
n
ro

 R
e
v
ie

w
.

P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 f
o
r 

a
 d

e
d
ic

a
te

d
 p

o
s
t 
w

e
re

 w
it
h
d
ra

w
n
 b

u
t 
a
re

 n
o
w

 

u
n
d
e
r 

c
o
n
d
is

e
ra

ti
o
n
.

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 w

it
h
d
ra

w
a
l 
o
f 
th

is
 p

o
s
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

h
o
w

 e
ls

e
 s

ys
te

m
ic

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 

p
o
s
t 
M

u
n
ro

 e
x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
re

g
u
la

to
ry

 a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
.

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
p
re

s
s
u
re

s
 i
n
 2

0
1
3
, 
th

e
 S

a
fe

g
a
u
rd

in
g
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
T

e
a
m

 

w
ill

 w
o
rk

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 
C

h
ild

re
n
's

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
 

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 m

o
d
e
l 
o
f 
le

a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 f
o
r 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 b

y 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
.

C
le

a
r 

p
o
s
it
io

n
 o

n
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

.
F

e
lic

it
y 

B
u
d
g
e
n
. 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 

lin
k
e
d
 t
o
 S

M
 p

o
s
t.
 

T
B

A

2
.5

A
ll 

w
o
rk

 i
s
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 o

n
 P

A
R

IS
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 

re
c
o
rd

in
g
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

 a
n
d
 a

ll 
s
ta

ff
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 t
im

e
ly

 

P
A

R
IS

 t
ra

in
in

g
.

•P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
s
ta

ff
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

•A
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f
o
r 

p
e
e
r 

a
n
d
 t
e
m

p
o
rr

y 
s
ta

ff
 t
o
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
is

 o
n
 a

n
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 b

a
s
is

•M
u
c
h
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 a

c
c
u
ra

te
 a

n
d
 u

p
 t
o
 d

a
te

 r
e
c
o
rd

in
g

•A
g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f
o
r 

p
e
e
r 

a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

s
ta

ff
.

1
. 
M

a
in

ta
in

 t
ra

in
in

g
 u

n
ti
l 
1
0
0
%

 o
f 
s
ta

ff
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
. 
M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 t
a
k
e
-u

p
 o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 b

y 
s
ta

ff
 i
n
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 r

o
le

s
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
. 
P

u
ll 

le
a
rn

in
g
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 r

e
c
o
rd

in
g
 f
ro

m
 r

e
c
e
n
t 
'B

a
s
e
lin

e
 A

u
d
it
in

g
'.

4
. 
A

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
p
o
lic

ie
s
 a

re
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d
 k

e
p
t 
u
p
-t

o
-

d
a
te

.

T
h
e
re

 w
ill

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
tr

a
in

in
g
 i
n
 

th
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 

m
a
te

ri
a
ls

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
ll 

s
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 i
n
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 r
e
c
o
rd

in
g
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

th
is

 

to
 b

e
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 b

y 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
. 

M
a
rk

 J
o
w

e
tt

2
.6

Im
p
ro

v
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 t
o
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
.

T
h
e
 C

h
ild

 C
e
n
tr

e
d
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 (

C
C

P
) 

to
o
l 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 a

n
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 h

a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
. 
N

u
m

e
ro

u
s
 

p
o
lic

ie
s
  
a
n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 u

p
lo

a
d
e
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 w
o
rk

 

w
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
ll 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 i
s
 

tr
a
n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 o

n
to

 C
C

P
 a

n
d
 n

e
w

 p
o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 

w
ri
tt
e
n
. 
A

n
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 i
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 p
ri
o
ri
ty

 

w
o
rk

 i
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 f
o
rw

a
rd

. 
 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

b
o
u
t 
th

e
 C

C
P

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

d
 t
o
 a

ll 
s
ta

ff
 a

t 
S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 s

ta
ff
 c

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 i
n
  

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 a

n
d
 F

e
b
 2

0
1
3
 a

n
d
 a

 d
e
d
ic

te
d
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 t
h
e
 a

g
e
n
d
a
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 a
n
d
 l
ia

is
e
 w

it
h
 f
ro

n
t 
lin

e
 

s
ta

ff
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 e
v
e
ry

o
n
e
 h

a
s
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

ys
te

m
 a

n
d
 u

s
e
s
 i
t 

• 
A

ll 
s
ta

ff
 h

a
v
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 u

p
-t

o
-d

a
te

 p
o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
.

• 
S

ta
ff
 i
n
fo

rm
 p

o
lic

y 
a
n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
ra

l 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 

1
. 
C

o
m

p
le

te
 t
h
e
 r

e
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
in

d
iv

id
u
a
l 
p
o
lic

y 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 e

m
b
e
d
 t
h
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

re
v
is

io
n
 a

n
d
 d

ra
ft
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
. 
 E

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 M

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 i
n
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 

p
o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 k

e
e
in

g
 t
h
e
m

 u
p
-t

o
-d

a
te

. 
 

A
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 7

0
%

 o
f 
p
o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

p
lo

a
d
e
d
 o

n
to

 C
C

P
 b

y 

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
. 
T

h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
1
0
0
%

 

tr
a
n
s
fe

r 
o
f 
u
p
-t

o
-d

a
te

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 i
s
 

e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t
o
 b

e
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
3

A
n
n
u
a
l 

s
u
b
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

C
C

P
 o

f 
a
b
o
u
t 

£
4
k
. 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

th
e
 s

ys
te

m
 c

o
s
ts

 

a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 

0
.5

 f
te

 f
ro

m
 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 s

ta
ff
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
.

G
ill

 H
o
rr

o
b
in

3
C

o
re

 g
ro

u
p

s
 a

re
 h

e
ld

 r
e
g

u
la

rl
y
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 

a
c
ti

v
e
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
a
ll
 r

e
le

v
a
n

t 
a
g

e
n

c
ie

s
 a

n
d

 

th
a
t 

th
e
y
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 t

h
e
 c

h
il
d

 

p
ro

te
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 i
t 

is
 e

ff
e
c
ti

v
e
.

P
a

g
e

 2
O

S
M

C
 O

fS
T

E
D

 M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 R

e
p

o
rt

 v
2



N
o

.
R

e
c

.
A

c
ti

o
n

P
ro

g
re

s
s

Im
p

a
c

t
W

h
a

t 
d

o
 w

e
 s

ti
ll
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 d

o
W

h
e

re
 w

e
 a

im
 t

o
 b

e
 b

y
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0

1
3

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 R

A
G

 R
a

ti
n

g
)

C
o

s
t

L
e

a
d

 p
e

rs
o

n
 

re
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

3
.1

Im
p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 r

e
g
u
la

ri
ty

 a
n
d
 m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y 

a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
a
ll 

a
s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 
C

o
re

 G
ro

u
p
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
: 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
, 
a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 n

o
te

 t
a
k
in

g
 

a
n
d
 p

a
re

n
ta

l 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

. 

•C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
a
ll 

c
h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

n
e
w

 r
e
c
o
rd

in
g
 f
o
rm

a
t 
fo

r 
c
o
re

 g
ro

u
p
s
 d

e
v
is

e
d

•S
e
c
u
re

d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
 t
o
 m

in
u
te

 a
ll 

in
it
ia

l 
c
o
re

 

g
ro

u
p
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s

•A
ll 

in
it
ia

l 
c
o
re

 g
ro

u
p
s
 t
o
 b

e
 c

h
a
ir
e
d
 b

y 
s
e
n
io

r 
p
ra

c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs

•N
e
w

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 -

 i
n
 d

ra
ft
 f
o
rm

 

•P
a
p
e
rw

o
rk

 a
g
re

e
d
, 
tr

a
in

in
g
 i
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
, 
it
 i
s
 s

ig
n
e
d
 o

ff
 a

n
d
 

w
a
s
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 o

n
 2

6
th

 S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

a
t 
s
ta

ff
 c

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
.

•4
9
%

 r
e
g
u
la

ri
ty

•T
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y 
o
f 
in

ti
a
l 
c
o
re

 g
ro

u
p
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

u
d
it
e
d
 a

s
 b

e
tt
e
r 

th
a
n
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
. 

•C
o
re

 G
ro

u
p
 t
ra

in
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t
o
 a

ll 
s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 

a
n
d
 s

e
n
io

r 
p
ra

c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs

 o
n
 2

0
th

 a
n
d
 2

4
th

 S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
.

• 
C

o
re

 G
ro

u
p
 t
ra

in
in

g
  
d
e
liv

e
re

d
 t
o
 a

ll 
s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 s

o
c
ia

l 

w
o
rk

e
rs

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 a

n
d
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
.

• 
M

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y 

C
o
re

 g
ro

u
p
 t
ra

in
in

g
 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t
o
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

a
n
d
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r.

 

T
h
e
 t
im

e
lin

e
s
s
 a

n
d
 q

u
a
lit

y 
o
f 
s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

, 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 v

is
it
s
 w

ill
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 w

it
h
 a

 s
ta

b
le

 w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

a
n
d
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
c
h
a
ir
in

g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

C
h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 

c
o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
s
. 
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 o

n
 t
h
is

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 c

lo
s
e
ly

 m
o
n
it
o
re

d
 b

y 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
T

e
a
m

 a
n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 

b
o
d
ie

s
 s

c
ru

ti
n
is

in
g
 t
h
is

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
O

S
M

C
, 
L
S

C
B

, 
C

S
L
M

T
, 

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 T
ru

s
t.

1
. 
P

ro
v
id

e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

re
v
ie

w
 c

o
re

 g
ro

u
p
s
.

2
. 
P

ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs

 n
o
ti
fi
e
d
 o

n
 a

p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
n
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
, 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
 s

ys
te

m
s
 i
n
 

te
a
m

s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 S
P

 s
ig

n
 o

ff
 o

f 
C

o
re

 G
ro

u
p
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s

 S
e
n
io

r 
P

ra
c
ti
o
n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 

n
o
w

 c
h
a
ir
 a

n
d
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
C

o
re

 G
ro

u
p
s
. 

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
o
f 
b
o
th

 s
e
n
io

r 

p
ra

c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

a
ll 

C
o
re

 G
ro

u
p
s
 i
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
.

F
ro

m
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

in
 s

a
v
in

g
s

M
a
rk

 J
o
w

e
tt

3
.2

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

 w
it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 
th

e
ir
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 t
o
 a

tt
e
n
d
 C

o
re

 G
ro

u
p
 M

e
e
ti
n
g
s
.

1
. 
A

 l
e
tt
e
r 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
is

e
d
, 
to

 b
e
 s

e
n
t 
to

 e
a
c
h
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 

fr
o
m

 a
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
y 

w
h
o
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 
a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 a

 C
o
re

 G
ro

u
p
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
. 
A

 c
o
p
y 

w
ill

 b
e
 s

e
n
t 
to

 t
h
e
ir
 l
in

e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
r 

a
n
d
 t
o
 

F
e
lic

it
y 

B
u
d
g
e
n
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 b

y 
C

S
L
M

T
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 i
t 
h
a
s
 n

o
t 
ye

t 
b
e
e
n
 u

s
e
d
.

2
. 
M

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y 

C
o
re

 G
ro

u
p
 t
ra

in
in

g
 h

a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 o

f 
L
S

C
B

 s
h
o
u
ld

 m
e
e
t 
th

e
 C

h
ie

f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
.

3
. 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
L
S

C
B

's
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 C

o
re

 G
ro

u
p
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

M
u
c
h
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 C

o
re

 G
ro

u
p
 a

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

1
. 
H

e
a
d
 o

f 
S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 t
o
 c

a
rr

y 
o
u
t 
a
 m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y 

a
u
d
it
 o

f 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

re
p
o
rt

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 t
o
 L

S
C

B
 (

th
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 o

f 
th

e
 f
ir
s
t 
A

u
d
it
 w

e
re

 f
a
v
o
u
ra

b
le

) 
 

2
. 
C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

d
 t
o
 a

ll 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

.

• 
W

ri
te

 a
 l
e
tt
e
r 

to
 a

ll 
a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 r

e
m

in
d
in

g
 

a
n
d
 r

e
q
u
e
s
ti
n
g
 a

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e

• 
A

c
ti
o
n
s
 u

p
 t
o
 d

a
te

 a
n
d
 m

o
v
in

g
 t
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

c
o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
s
.

W
it
h
in

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

F
e
lic

it
y 

B
u
d
g
e
n

3
.3

A
u
d
it
 o

f 
C

h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
s
, 
m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y 

p
la

n
s
 a

n
d
 C

o
re

 G
ro

u
p
s
.

•C
o
re

 G
ro

u
p
 t
ra

in
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t
o
 a

ll 
s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 

a
n
d
 s

e
n
io

r 
p
ra

c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs

 o
n
 2

0
th

 a
n
d
 2

4
th

 S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
.

• 
C

o
re

 G
ro

u
p
 t
ra

in
in

g
  
d
e
liv

e
re

d
 t
o
 a

ll 
s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 s

o
c
ia

l 

w
o
rk

e
rs

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 a

n
d
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
.

• 
M

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y 

C
o
re

 g
ro

u
p
 t
ra

in
in

g
 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t
o
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

a
n
d
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r.

 

•R
e
g
u
la

r 
re

v
ie

w
 c

yc
le

 a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
n
g
 s

ix
-w

e
e
k
ly

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 C

o
re

 

G
ro

u
p
/C

P
 P

la
n
s
. 
H

T
 a

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 n

o
t 
s
ix

 w
e
e
k
ly

, 
a
u
d
it
 c

yc
le

 

s
ti
ll 

in
 p

la
c
e
 b

u
t 
H

T
 i
n
p
u
t.

•S
ix

-w
e
e
k
ly

 a
u
d
it
s
 t
a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
.

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 q

u
a
lit

y 
o
f 
c
o
re

 g
ro

u
p
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s

•D
e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

s
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 k

e
e
p
 i
ts

 i
m

p
a
c
t 
u
n
d
e
r 

re
v
ie

w

•M
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y 

a
u
d
it
s
 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 o

n
 a

 s
ix

-w
e
e
k
ly

 b
a
s
is

S
ix

-w
e
e
k
ly

 m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y 

a
u
d
it
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
. 
A

 

th
e
m

e
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 d

u
e
 b

y 
3
1
/3

/1
3
.

W
it
h
in

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

M
a
rk

 J
o
w

e
tt

W
it

h
in

 t
h

re
e
 m

o
n

th
s

4

4
.1

P
u
b
lic

is
e
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 p

a
th

w
a
ys

•C
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 l
e
a
fl
e
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 a

n
d
 r

e
-p

ri
n
te

d
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
 A

d
v
o
c
a
c
y 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 s

e
n
t 
to

 a
ll 

C
L
A

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

 

le
a
v
e
rs

 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
. 
 

•C
u
rr

e
n
t 
A

d
v
o
c
a
c
y 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 t
o
 r

a
is

e
 

p
ro

fi
le

 a
n
d
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s

C
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 a
re

 r
e
s
o
lv

e
d
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
ly

 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 b

y 
le

s
s
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
e
m

e
rg

e

•E
m

b
e
d
 t
h
e
 w

a
y 

in
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
 c

o
lla

te
 a

n
d
 l
e
a
rn

 l
e
s
s
o
n
s
 f
ro

m
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

, 

c
o
m

p
lim

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

•C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

a
d
v
o
c
a
c
y 

a
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 t
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 i
ts

 u
s
e
 i
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 t
h
e
 v

o
ic

e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

h
ild

.

L
e
a
fl
e
ts

 i
n
 p

la
c
e

A
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
 f
ro

m
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 i
n
fo

rm
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

W
it
h
in

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

G
ill

 H
o
rr

o
b
in

5

E
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 a
re

 m
a
d

e
 a

w
a
re

 o
f 

c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 

le
s
s
o

n
s
 l
e
a
rn

t 

fr
o

m
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 a
re

 u
s
e
d

 t
o

 i
n

fo
rm

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t.
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 s

ta
ff

in
g

 s
ta

b
il
it

y
, 
in

 p
a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

in
 t

h
e
 

p
ro

te
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
u

rt
 t

e
a
m

s
 (

P
A

C
T

s
),

 s
o

 t
h

a
t 

s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
s
o

c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 a
re

 i
n

 p
la

c
e
 w

h
o

 a
re

 

s
u

it
a
b

ly
 q

u
a
li
fi

e
d

, 
tr

a
in

e
d

 a
n

d
 e

x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e
d

 t
o

 

p
ro

v
id

e
 c

h
il
d

re
n

 a
t 

ri
s
k
 a

n
d

 t
h

o
s
e
 i
n

 n
e
e
d

 w
it

h
 

ti
m

e
ly

 a
n

d
 s

k
il
le

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

P
a

g
e

 3
O

S
M

C
 O

fS
T

E
D

 M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 R

e
p

o
rt

 v
2



N
o

.
R

e
c

.
A

c
ti

o
n

P
ro

g
re

s
s

Im
p

a
c

t
W

h
a

t 
d

o
 w

e
 s

ti
ll
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 d

o
W

h
e

re
 w

e
 a

im
 t

o
 b

e
 b

y
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0

1
3

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 R

A
G

 R
a

ti
n

g
)

C
o

s
t

L
e

a
d

 p
e

rs
o

n
 

re
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

5
.1

S
e
c
u
re

 a
 p

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 w

it
h
 s

u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 s

k
ill

s
 t
o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 t
h
e
 f
u
ll 

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 w

o
rk

F
u
n
d
in

g
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 f
o
r 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 

o
v
e
r 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
o
n
 a

 t
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 b

a
s
is

 t
o
 a

llo
w

 f
o
r 

s
a
fe

 

a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 w
h
ils

t 
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 a
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 s

ta
b
ili

s
e
 t
h
e
 

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
. 
R

e
te

n
ti
o
n
 P

o
lic

y 
a
n
d
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 f
in

a
n
c
e
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 

o
n
 2

1
/1

2
/1

2
. 
C

u
rr

e
n
tl
y 

o
n
e
-t

h
ir
d
 o

f 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 a

s
 a

g
e
n
c
y 

s
ta

ff
 

a
n
d
 a

n
o
th

e
r 

th
ir
d
 a

re
 n

e
w

ly
-q

u
a
lif

ie
d
.

A
ll 

c
h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 c

a
s
e
s
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 a

n
d
 r

o
b
u
s
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
v
e
rs

ig
h
t 
in

 p
la

c
e
 o

n
 t
h
e
 t
o
ta

lit
y 

o
f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

. 
 1

6
 s

o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 

a
p
p
o
in

te
d
 a

n
d
 i
n
 p

o
s
t 
b
y 

3
1
s
t 
O

c
to

b
e
r.

 A
ll 

N
Q

S
W

s
 p

lu
s
 o

n
e
 

S
P

.

1
. 
C

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 a

p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t 
to

 a
ll 

v
a
c
a
n
t 
p
o
s
ts

.

2
. 
R

e
d
u
c
e
 a

g
e
n
c
y 

s
ta

ff
. 
C

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 a

d
v
e
rt

is
e
 f
o
r 

fr
o
n
tl
in

e
 s

o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 a
n
d
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 r
e
te

n
ti
o
n
 p

o
lic

y.

3
. 
R

e
c
ru

it
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 f
ro

m
 o

v
e
rs

e
a
s
.

4
. 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 a

 r
e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
c
o
m

p
a
n
y 

to
 f
in

d
 f
ro

n
t-

lin
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

.

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
n
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
y 

u
p
o
n
 a

g
e
n
c
y 

s
ta

ff
 a

s
 a

 s
h
a
re

 o
f 

o
u
r 

fr
o
n
t 
lin

e
 C

h
ild

re
n
's

 S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
. 
T

h
e
 r

e
te

n
ti
o
n
 p

o
lic

y 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

a
g
re

e
d
 a

n
d
 i
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
in

g
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
. 

E
a
rl
y 

in
d
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
a
re

 n
o
t 
p
ro

m
is

in
g
.

• 
1
6
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
n
e
w

ly
-q

u
a
lif

ie
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 

w
o
rk

e
rs

 w
e
re

 r
e
c
ru

it
e
d
 a

n
d
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 b

y 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

E
x
is

ti
n
g
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 +

 

1
3
/1

4
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

s
e
tt
le

m
e
n
t

F
e
lic

it
y 

B
u
d
g
e
n

6

6
.1

T
h
e
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n
 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
:

W
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 (

M
a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
2
)

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 D

iv
is

io
n
 T

ra
in

in
g
 N

e
e
d
s
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

O
fs

te
d
 I
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 R

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n

S
C

R
/I
M

R
 R

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n

•R
e
v
is

e
d
 P

la
n
 f
in

a
lis

e
d
 1

0
th

 S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

•Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 L
e
a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a

re
 

h
e
ld

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 s

e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 f
ro

m
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

, 

In
s
p
ir
e
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 C

a
p
it
a
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 &

 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.
 T

h
is

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 t
ra

c
k
s
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
s
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

.

•M
o
n
th

ly
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a

re
 h

e
ld

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 p

la
n
 i
s
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
.

•T
h
e
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

a
re

 m
e
t.

•Q
u
a
lit

y 
a
u
d
it
s
 o

f 
S

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
, 
C

o
re

 G
ro

u
p
s
, 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 v

is
it
s
, 

C
h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

u
d
it
s
 o

f 
fi
le

s
, 
p
la

n
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o
rd

in
g
 s

h
o
w

 

m
e
a
s
u
ra

b
le

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 q

u
a
lit

y 
o
f 
fr

o
n
tl
in

e
 c

a
re

.

•C
o
u
rs

e
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

•D
e
v
e
lo

p
 f
o
re

c
a
s
ti
n
g
 m

o
d
e
l 
fo

r 
fu

tu
re

 s
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 s
u
p
p
ly

 a
n
d
 d

e
m

a
n
d
. 
A

p
p
ly

 

fo
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 o

n
 t
h
e
 'S

u
p
p
ly

 a
n
d
 D

e
m

a
n
d
' m

o
d
e
l 
h
o
s
te

d
 b

y 
th

e
 C

e
n
tr

e
 f
o
r 

W
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 I
n
te

lli
g
e
n
c
e
 (

C
fW

I)
.

T
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 b

e
tt
e
r 

p
la

c
e
d
 t
o
 

fo
re

c
a
s
t 
it
s
 f
u
tu

re
 t
ra

in
in

g
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 

b
a
s
is

 o
f 
th

e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

c
h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 b

y 
th

e
 e

n
d
 

o
f 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
. 
 

W
it
h
in

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

W
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

J
u
lia

 K
a
th

e
ri
n
e

6
.2

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
s
p
e
c
if
ic

 W
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 

th
e
 l
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 n
e
e
d
e
d
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 

n
e
w

ly
 q

u
a
lif

ie
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 f
ir
s
t 
ye

a
r 

p
o
s
t 
q
u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 d

e
m

a
n
d
s
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 

ro
le

 a
n
d
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
c
o
m

p
e
te

n
c
e
 i
n
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 

c
o
m

p
le

x
 c

a
s
e
s
.

•T
h
e
 A

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 Y

e
a
r 

o
f 
E

m
p
lo

ym
e
n
t 
(A

S
Y

E
) 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
s
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
. 
 S

C
C

 h
a
s
 t
o
 d

a
te

 1
4
 N

Q
S

W
s
 

w
h
o
 w

ill
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r 

(o
th

e
rs

 m
a
y 

fo
llo

w
).

•A
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 m

o
n
th

ly
 t
ra

in
in

g
 c

o
u
rs

e
 i
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 

S
e
p
t.
 –

 M
a
rc

h
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 s
u
b
-r

e
g
io

n
a
l 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
 i
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 H

a
m

p
s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il,

 P
o
rt

s
m

o
u
th

 C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
c
il,

 

Is
le

 o
f 
W

ig
h
t 
C

o
u
n
c
il,

 S
o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 C

it
y 

C
o
u
n
c
il.

•N
Q

S
W

s
 w

ill
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
 a

 p
o
rt

fo
lio

 o
f 
w

o
rk

 t
h
a
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 c

ro
s
s
-

m
a
rk

e
d
 b

y 
a
 r

e
g
io

n
a
l 
A

S
Y

E
 b

o
a
rd

 a
w

a
rd

in
g
 P

A
S

S
 o

r 
F

A
IL

. 
 

P
A

S
S

 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 f
o
rw

a
rd

e
d
 t
o
 T

h
e
 C

o
lle

g
e
 o

f 
S

o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

. 
 

N
Q

S
W

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
g
is

te
re

d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 B

U
 A

S
Y

E
 G

ra
d
u
a
te

 

C
e
rt

if
ic

a
te

 i
n
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 S

tu
d
ie

s
; 
th

e
ir
 A

S
Y

E
 

P
o
rt

fo
lio

 p
lu

s
 a

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 f
o
r 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 G

ra
d
. 
C

e
rt

.

•W
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
:

-F
a
c
ili

ta
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
, 
le

a
rn

in
g
 p

la
n
s
, 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

re
v
ie

w
s
.

-M
o
n
th

ly
 G

ro
u
p
 r

e
fl
e
c
ti
v
e
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 a

n
d
 p

o
rt

fo
lio

 w
o
rk

s
h
o
p
s

-S
o
m

e
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 p

o
rt

fo
lio

 m
a
rk

in
g

-O
b
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
.

N
Q

S
W

s
 p

a
s
s
 a

n
d
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 q

u
a
lit

y 
o
f 
w

o
rk

 (
d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 a

u
d
it
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 N

Q
S

W
s
' p

o
rt

fo
lio

s
, 

o
b
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
) 

s
h
o
w

s
 l
a
s
ti
n
g
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 
o
f 
lo

c
a
l 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 A

S
Y

E

A
ll 

1
6
 N

e
w

ly
 Q

u
a
lif

ie
d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

e
rs

 w
e
re

 i
n
 p

o
s
t 
b
y 

3
1
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
.

W
ill

 b
e
 f
u
lly

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 b

y 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
 f
o
r 

n
e
w

ly
 q

u
a
lif

ie
d
 w

o
rk

e
rs

, 
b
u
t 
n
o
t 
fo

r 
m

o
re

 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 s

ta
ff
 c

o
v
e
re

d
 b

y 
th

e
 r

e
te

n
ti
o
n
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y.

W
it
h
in

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

J
u
lia

 K
a
th

e
ri
n
e

6
.3

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n
 w

id
e
r 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

n
d
 d

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 t
h
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
.

A
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
d
e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 'P

e
o
p
le

' 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 i
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 

h
a
v
in

g
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 o
n
 1

1
th

 S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
. 
T

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il'

s
 C

h
a
n
g
e
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

ill
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
is

. 
Im

p
ro

v
in

g
 

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 i
s
 a

 r
e
c
o
g
n
is

e
d
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

.

S
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

, 
s
a
fe

 a
n
d
 s

e
c
u
re

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 c
h
ild

re
n

P
ri
c
e
 W

a
te

rh
o
u
s
e
 C

o
o
p
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 e

n
g
a
g
e
d
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 S

e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 

to
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 t
h
e
 s

h
a
p
e
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 P
e
o
p
le

 D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 t
h
a
t 
w

ill
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 h

o
w

 

th
is

 w
o
rk

s
 i
n
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 f
ro

m
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 o

n
g
o
in

g
; 
F

e
lc

ic
it
y 

B
u
d
g
e
n
  
a
n
d
 

D
o
n
n
a
 C

h
a
p
m

a
n
 (

A
s
s
is

ta
n
t 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
fo

r 
C

h
ild

 H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 M

a
te

rn
it
y 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
) 

w
ill

 r
e
p
o
rt

 b
a
c
k
.

F
in

a
l 
s
h
a
p
e
 a

n
d
 m

o
d
e
l 
s
ti
ll 

u
n
d
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 c
h
a
n
g
e
.

W
it
h
in

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 +

 

1
3
/1

4
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

s
e
tt
le

m
e
n
t 
+

 

C
h
a
n
g
e
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

B
o
a
rd

 (
T

B
A

)

F
e
lic

it
y 

B
u
d
g
e
n
 a

n
d
 

D
o
n
n
a
 C

h
a
p
m

a
n

7

7
.1

R
e
v
ie

w
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 a

n
d
 p

ro
to

c
o
ls

 i
n
 

c
o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 u

n
it
 a

n
d
 

v
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r 
p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 

g
a
p
s
 i
n
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 a

n
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 

T
h
e
 J

o
in

t 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y 

g
ro

u
p
 a

n
d
 a

 s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

' 

w
o
rk

s
h
o
p
 h

a
s
 p

ro
m

o
te

d
 m

u
tu

a
l 
u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

a
ro

u
n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

s
' h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

s
h
a
re

d
 g

o
a
ls

, 
o
b
s
ta

c
le

s
 a

n
d
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
. 
R

o
b
u
s
t 
s
yt

e
m

s
 

a
re

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 w

h
e
re

b
y 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 

yo
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 l
ia

is
e
 w

it
h
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 s
ta

ff
 a

s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 

a
n
d
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
yo

u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 

p
re

s
e
n
ti
n
g
. 
 A

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
a
c
c
o
m

o
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 

n
e
e
d
s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 e

m
e
rg

e
n
c
y 

a
c
c
o
m

o
d
a
ti
o
n

•H
e
a
d
 o

f 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 h

a
s
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 
th

e
 J

o
in

t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y 

g
ro

u
p
. 

• 
Y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

s
' n

e
e
d
s
 a

re
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 

a
c
c
o
m

o
d
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

1
. 
C

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 t
o
 b

e
 g

iv
e
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
/p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 

in
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
yo

u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 b

e
h
a
v
io

u
r.

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
. 
A

 w
o
rk

in
g
 g

ro
u
p
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 f
o
r 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 C

S
L
M

T
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
w

id
e
r 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 c

o
lla

b
o
a
ra

ti
o
n
.

R
e
g
u
la

r 
jo

in
t 
w

o
rk

in
g
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 w

e
lf
a
re

 r
e
fo

rm
s
. 
T

h
e
 I
m

p
a
c
t 

a
n
d
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 i
s
 u

n
k
n
o
w

n
.

W
it
h
in

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

G
ill

 H
o
rr

o
b
in

, 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y 
N

ic
k
 

C
ro

s
s

U
p

d
a
te

 t
h

e
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

li
g

h
t 

o
f 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 c

h
a
ll
e
n

g
e
s

T
h

e
 n

e
e
d

s
 o

f 
h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 c

h
il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 

a
re

 f
u

ll
y
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d

 a
n

d
 t

h
a
t 

s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
s
u

it
a
b

le
 

a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti

o
n

 i
s
 a

v
a
il
a
b

le
 f

o
r 

th
e
m

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

e
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 

P
a

g
e

 4
O

S
M

C
 O

fS
T

E
D

 M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 R

e
p

o
rt

 v
2



N
o

.
R

e
c

.
A

c
ti

o
n

P
ro

g
re

s
s

Im
p

a
c

t
W

h
a

t 
d

o
 w

e
 s

ti
ll
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 d

o
W

h
e

re
 w

e
 a

im
 t

o
 b

e
 b

y
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0

1
3

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 R

A
G

 R
a

ti
n

g
)

C
o

s
t

L
e

a
d

 p
e

rs
o

n
 

re
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

8

T
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 n

o
w

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 a

n
d
 f
u
lly

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d

T
h
is

 i
s
 n

o
w

 f
u
lly

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
.

8
.1

O
p
ti
o
n
s
 p

a
p
e
r 

p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 t
o
 m

a
te

rn
it
y 

a
n
d
 C

h
ild

 H
e
a
lt
h
 

(M
A

C
H

) 
C

Q
C

P
 B

o
a
rd

 o
n
 4

th
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
2
 a

n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

S
o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
, 
H

a
m

p
s
h
ir
e
, 
Is

le
 o

f 
W

ig
h
t 
a
n
d
 P

o
rt

s
m

o
u
th

 

(S
H

IP
) 

B
o
a
rd

 o
f 
C

lin
ic

a
l 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
rs

 (
B

O
C

C
) 

o
n
 1

8
th

 J
u
ly

. 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e
 t
o
 b

e
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 t
o
 C

C
G

 

C
lin

ic
a
l 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 G

ro
u
p
 a

n
d
 B

o
a
rd

 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

fo
r 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
o
f 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t.
 F

o
r 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 D

e
c
 2

0
1
2
. 
 L

in
d
s
e
y 

V
o
s
s
 

h
a
s
 w

o
rk

e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
p
ro

v
id

e
r 

a
n
d
 t
h
is

 i
s
 o

u
t 
fo

r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 
 I
f 
th

is
 i
s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
, 
N

H
S

 S
o
le

n
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f
o
r 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
. 
 A

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
o
th

e
r 

in
te

ri
m

 m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 

a
re

 b
e
in

g
 e

x
p
lo

re
d
. 
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 H
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
 l
o
o
k
in

g
 a

t 
a
 

H
a
m

p
s
h
ir
e
-w

id
e
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
.

R
e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ra

is
e
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 a

n
d
 n

e
e
d
 f
o
r 

w
e
e
k
e
n
d
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
m

e
d
ic

a
l 

e
x
a
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
. 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
R

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
.

L
in

d
s
e
y 

V
o
s
s

W
it

h
in

 s
ix

 m
o

n
th

s

9
F

e
lic

it
y 

B
u
d
g
e
n

9
.1

S
e
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 u

n
d
e
r 

'Im
m

e
d
ia

te
ly

' a
b
o
v
e
 -

 'Q
u
a
lit

y 

o
f 
s
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 t
o
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

 c
h
ild

re
n
 i
s
 o

f 
a
 

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y 

h
ig

h
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

'. 

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
 L

O
O

K
E

D
 A

F
T

E
R

1
0

1
0
.1

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

a
c
c
u
ra

te
 a

n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

t 
in

d
iv

id
u
a
l 
a
n
d
 t
e
a
m

 l
e
v
e
l.

•3
-w

e
e
k
ly

 r
e
p
o
rt

s
 n

o
w

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f
ro

m
 D

a
ta

 T
e
a
m

 i
n
d
ic

a
ti
n
g
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

t 
c
h
ild

 l
e
v
e
l 
b
y 

te
a
m

/s
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
r.

 

•A
 r

e
m

in
d
e
r 

s
ys

te
m

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
q
u
e
s
te

d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 D

a
ta

 T
e
a
m

, 

to
 e

n
a
b
le

 p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
. 
A

 

s
p
re

a
d
s
h
e
e
t 
is

 b
e
in

g
 t
ri
a
lle

d
 i
n
 P

a
th

w
a
ys

 a
n
d
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

O
u
tl
o
o
k
 w

o
rk

fl
o
w

 s
ys

te
m

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 t
ri
a
lle

d
 i
n
 P

A
C

T
. 

•S
e
rv

ic
e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

(C
L
A

) 
m

e
e
ts

  
w

it
h
 P

a
th

w
a
ys

 f
o
rt

n
ig

h
tl
y 

fo
r 

a
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

f 
re

m
e
d
ia

l 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 

in
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 C

L
A

 V
is

it
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

. 

•P
A

R
IS

 T
ra

in
e
r 

h
a
s
 a

g
re

e
d
  
to

 d
o
 u

rg
e
n
t 
tr

a
in

in
g
 f
o
r 

 I
A

T
 a

n
d
 

P
A

C
T

s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
ll 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 n

e
w

 s
ta

ff
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

g
e
n
c
y)

 

h
a
v
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 
s
k
ill

s
 a

n
d
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 o

f 
P

A
R

IS
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

. 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
M

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 t
a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
 o

n
 a

 

fo
rt

n
ig

h
tl
y 

b
a
s
is

 (
IA

T
/P

A
C

T
).

 T
h
is

 w
ill

 f
e
e
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 Q

A
F

.

•A
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 n

e
w

 s
p
re

a
d
s
h
e
e
t 
fo

r 
c
o
m

p
le

ti
n
g
 C

L
A

 d
a
ta

 

w
ill

 b
e
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 b

y 
3
1
s
t 
M

a
rc

h
.

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 w

h
ic

h
 t
o
 t
a
rg

e
t 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 a

n
d
 i
n
 a

 t
im

e
ly

 w
a
y

1
. 
T

o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

e
m

b
e
d
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
s

2
. 
T

ra
c
k
 C

a
re

 P
la

n
s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
y 

a
re

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 r

o
b
u
s
t.

3
. 
M

o
n
it
o
r 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 v
is

it
 a

t 
te

a
m

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a

n
d
 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
s
u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

4
. 
4
. 
C

a
rr

y 
o
u
t 
re

g
u
la

r 
c
a
s
e
 a

u
d
it
 a

c
ti
v
it
y 

it
 i
n
fo

rm
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
. 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

n
e
w

 r
e
p
o
rt

in
g
 t
o
o
l 
fo

r 
la

u
n
c
h
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
F

e
b
ru

a
ry

.

5
. 
U

s
e
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 s
p
re

a
d
s
h
e
e
t 
fo

r 
C

L
A

 t
o
 i
n
te

rr
o
g
a
te

 k
e
y 

a
re

a
s
 o

f 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 w

h
ic

h
 

a
ff
e
c
t 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
.

N
e
w

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 s

ys
te

m
s
 i
n
 

p
la

c
e
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 i
n
fo

rm
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 i
n
te

v
e
n
ti
o
n
 

to
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

W
it
h
in

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

G
ill

 H
o
rr

o
b
in

 a
n
d
 

M
a
rk

 J
o
w

e
tt

1
1

1
1
.1

R
a
is

e
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 
a
n
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 a
n
d
 

a
d
v
o
c
a
c
y 

s
e
rv

ic
e

•C
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 l
e
a
fl
e
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 u

p
d
a
te

d
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
 

A
d
v
o
c
a
c
y 

S
e
rv

ic
e
, 
a
n
d
 s

e
n
t 
to

 a
ll 

C
L
A

 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
. 
 I
n
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
, 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
A

d
v
o
c
a
c
y 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
 b

y 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 c

o
lle

a
g
u
e
s
.

•F
ro

m
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 a

ll 
p
ra

c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs

, 
a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 s
ta

ff
 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

is
tr

ib
u
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

p
lim

e
n
ts

, 
c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 a
n
d
 

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 l
e
a
fl
e
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 a

d
v
o
c
a
c
y 

le
a
fl
e
t 
to

 a
ll 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 

yo
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 i
n
 c

a
re

. 
 

C
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 a
re

 r
e
s
o
lv

e
d
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
ly

 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 b

y 
le

s
s
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
e
m

e
rg

e
•I

R
O

s
 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 w

it
h
 c

h
ild

re
n
/y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 

u
p
 a

d
v
o
c
a
c
y 

–
 a

t 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 r

e
v
ie

w
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
. 
 

T
h
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

n
d
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 i
s
 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
.

W
it
h
in

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

G
ill

 H
o
rr

o
b
in

C
h

il
d

re
n

 l
o

o
k
e
d

 a
ft

e
r 

a
re

 a
w

a
re

 o
f 

th
e
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 a

n
d

 a
re

 e
n

a
b

le
d

 t
o

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

h
e
 a

d
v
o

c
a
c
y
 

s
e
rv

ic
e

Im
m

e
d

ia
te

ly

T
h

re
e
 m

o
n

th
s

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
e
x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e
d

 s
o

c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 s
ta

ff
 

a
n

d
 m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

 t
o

 e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
ly

 c
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

th
e
 c

o
u

n
c
il
’s

 

s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 r
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

ie
s
. 

E
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 v

is
it

s
 t

o
 c

h
il
d

re
n

 l
o

o
k
e
d

 

a
ft

e
r 

a
re

 u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e
n

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 

ti
m

e
s
c
a
le

s

E
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

fa
c
il
it

ie
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 m

e
d

ic
a
l 
e
x
a
m

in
a
ti

o
n

 

o
f 

c
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 u
n

d
e
r 

1
3
 y

e
a
rs

 o
f 

a
g

e
 w

h
o

 a
re

 t
h

e
 v

ic
ti

m
s
 o

f 
a
b

u
s
e
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 s

e
x
u

a
l 

a
s
s
a
u

lt
, 
a
re

 a
v
a
il
a
b

le
 a

n
d

 a
re

 r
e
a
d

il
y
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 a

t 

w
e
e
k
e
n

d
s
.

P
a

g
e

 5
O

S
M

C
 O

fS
T

E
D

 M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 R

e
p

o
rt

 v
2



N
o

.
R

e
c

.
A

c
ti

o
n

P
ro

g
re

s
s

Im
p

a
c

t
W

h
a

t 
d

o
 w

e
 s

ti
ll
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 d

o
W

h
e

re
 w

e
 a

im
 t

o
 b

e
 b

y
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0

1
3

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 R

A
G

 R
a

ti
n

g
)

C
o

s
t

L
e

a
d

 p
e

rs
o

n
 

re
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

1
1
.2

•C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 a

d
v
o
c
a
c
y 

fo
r 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 

th
ro

u
g
h
 s

p
o
t 
p
u
rc

h
a
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 N

o
 L

im
it
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 

•A
d
v
e
rt

is
e
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 

le
a
fl
e
t 
a
n
d
 b

y 
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 N

o
 L

im
it
s
 l
e
a
fl
e
ts

 

a
re

 d
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 s

o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 t
e
a
m

s
. 

•C
la

ri
fy

 t
h
e
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 g

o
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 a

 

c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 t
e
n
d
e
r 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

a
n
 a

d
v
o
c
a
c
y 

s
e
rv

ic
e
. 
 

•S
c
o
p
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
.

•I
n
it
ia

te
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 t
e
n
d
e
r 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

s
e
c
u
re

 a
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
d
v
o
c
a
c
y 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 

lo
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

a
n
d
 c

a
re

 l
e
a
v
e
rs

. 

•T
h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
fu

n
d
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
.

•T
h
e
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

to
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 N

o
 L

im
it
s
 a

d
v
o
c
a
c
y 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 s

e
n
t 
o
u
t 
th

ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 l
e
a
fl
e
ts

. 

•T
h
e
 I
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
R

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

w
h
e
th

e
r 

a
ll 

c
h
ild

re
n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

w
o
u
ld

 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
fr

o
m

 a
n
 a

d
v
o
c
a
c
y 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

v
ia

 t
h
e
 c

h
ild

’s
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 r
e
v
ie

w
s
. 

•T
h
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 i
n
 d

ra
ft
 f
o
rm

 a
n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

h
a
re

d
 f
o
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 e

d
it
s
. 
 

A
ll 

C
L
A

 h
a
v
e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

b
o
u
t 
c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
.

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 t
o
 e

x
p
lo

re
 w

it
h
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 s
c
o
p
e
 a

n
d
 c

o
s
ts

 f
o
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 v

a
lu

e
 f
o
r 

m
o
n
e
y 

in
 a

 m
o
re

 a
tt
ra

c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 b

e
tt
e
r 

u
s
e
d
 a

d
v
o
c
a
c
y 

s
e
rv

ic
e
.

T
h
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

n
d
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 i
s
 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
.

£
1
1
k
 r

is
in

g
 t
o
 

£
2
2
k
 p

a
 b

a
s
e
d
 

o
n
 s

im
ila

r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

e
ls

e
w

h
e
re

. 
 T

o
 

b
e
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
d
 

fr
o
m

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

d
e
p
e
n
d
in

g
 o

n
 

fi
n
a
l 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
.

S
a
m

 R
a
y

1
1
.3

Im
p
ro

v
e
 o

n
lin

e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

b
o
u
t 
th

e
 C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 P
o
lic

y 
c
a
n
 b

e
 f
o
u
n
d
 o

n
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 S

o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 a

t 

h
tt
p
:/
/w

w
w

.y
o
u
n
g
s
o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
.o

rg
/p

a
re

n
ts

-a
n
d
-

c
a
re

rs
/c

yp
is

/p
o
lic

ie
s
/c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

-p
o
lic

y.
a
s
p
x
. 
 N

o
th

in
g
 y

e
t 

o
n
lin

e
 a

b
o
u
t 
A

d
v
o
c
a
c
y

A
d
v
o
c
a
c
y 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 i
s
 e

a
s
ily

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 a
n
d
 a

d
v
o
c
a
c
y 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

o
s
te

d
 o

n
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

 i
n
 C

a
re

 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

F
a
c
e
b
o
o
k
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
th

 S
o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
.

T
h
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

n
d
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 i
s
 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
.

W
it
h
in

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

T
im

 D
a
v
is

1
2

1
2
.1

A
u
d
it
 o

f 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f
o
llo

w
e
d
 b

y 

re
m

e
d
ia

l 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

s
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

.

 T
h
e
 P

a
th

w
a
ys

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
T

e
a
m

 i
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 P

a
th

w
a
ys

 

N
e
e
d
s
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 P

la
n
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
. 
T

w
o
 P

a
th

w
a
ys

 

a
u
d
it
s
 h

a
v
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 l
o
o
k
in

g
 a

t 
1
0
8
 c

a
s
e
s
.

G
o
o
d
 q

u
a
lit

y 
a
n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 p

a
th

w
a
ys

 p
la

n
s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

c
a
re

 l
e
a
v
e
rs

. 
A

u
d
it
s
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 a
n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 a

n
d
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 p

ic
tu

re
 i
n
 t
h
e
  
s
m

a
ll 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
a
s
e
s
 a

u
d
it
e
d
.

R
e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o
n
fi
g
u
re

 a
s
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 f
ro

n
t 
lin

e
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 s

ta
ff
 t
e
a
m

s
 a

n
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 u
s
in

g
 L

E
A

N
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

s
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 a
n
d
 m

a
k
in

g
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
q
u
a
lif

ie
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
e
a
m

s
. 

A
ll 

S
o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

e
rs

 w
ill

 b
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 w

it
h
 a

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
in

s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
, 
in

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 c

h
ild

re
n
, 
yo

u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
/c

a
re

rs
, 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

, 
h
ig

h
 q

u
a
lit

y 
p
a
th

w
a
y 

p
la

n
s
. 
A

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

a
u
d
it
 w

a
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
in

 D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
s
e
 a

u
d
it
s
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 e

m
b
e
d
d
e
d
 

re
g
u
la

rl
y 

in
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
.

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y 

a
u
d
it
s
a
re

 t
a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
 

a
n
d
 r

e
s
u
lt
in

g
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

re
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

d
.

W
it
h
in

 e
x
is

it
in

g
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

G
ill

 H
o
rr

o
b
in

E
m

b
e
d
 a

 r
e
g
u
la

r 
c
yc

le
 o

f 
a
u
d
it
s
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
u
d
it
s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 

n
e
e
d
s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
fo

rm
 p

a
th

w
a
y 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y 

a
re

 r
o
b
u
s
t 
a
n
d
 

a
n
a
ly

ti
c
a
l 
(n

o
t 
d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
v
e
).

 T
h
e
y 

m
u
s
t 
p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
, 
u
p
 t
o
 d

a
te

 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

a
re

 l
e
a
v
e
r.

 

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y 

a
u
d
it
s
a
re

 t
a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
 

a
n
d
 r

e
s
u
lt
in

g
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

re
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

d
..

O
n
 t
h
e
 t
e
a
m

 d
a
y,

 s
ta

ff
 g

ra
d
e
d
 w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

g
o
o
d
, 
a
d
e
q
u
a
te

 a
n
d
 

in
a
d
e
q
u
a
te

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e
.

C
o
lle

c
t 
a
n
d
 d

is
s
e
m

in
a
te

 g
o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 e

x
a
m

p
le

s
 f
o
r 

s
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
m

 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

re
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

yo
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
in

g
 t
o
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
liv

in
g
. 
E

n
s
u
re

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 i
s
 

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
a
te

 t
o
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
n
e
e
d
.

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y 

a
u
d
it
s
 a

re
 t
a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
 

a
n
d
 r

e
s
u
lt
in

g
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

re
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

d
..

T
h
is

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
.

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
 'i

n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 p

a
th

w
a
y'

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 

p
a
c
k
 o

f 
m

a
te

ri
a
ls

 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
b
o
u
t 
p
a
th

w
a
y 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 t
o
 g

u
id

e
 

th
e
m

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
.

T
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 e

v
a
lu

a
te

d
 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 

fu
tu

re
 p

la
n
n
in

g
.

1
3

1
3
.1

P
E

P
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 f
o
r 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 l
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 t
e
a
m

 

to
 b

e
 s

ig
n
e
d
 o

ff
 o

n
 1

7
th

 O
c
to

b
e
r.

P
E

P
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 w

it
h
 7

2
%

  
o
f 
C

L
A

 h
a
v
in

g
 a

 

P
E

P
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 i
n
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 f
ro

m
 6

7
%

 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 m

o
n
th

. 
T

h
e
 

a
tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 
o
f 
C

L
A

 i
s
  
im

p
ro

v
in

g
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 g

a
p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 

a
tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 
o
f 
C

L
A

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 p

e
e
rs

 n
a
rr

o
w

in
g

 O
n
g
o
in

g
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

  
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

C
L
A

 

a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
k
e
y 

s
ta

g
e
s
. 
 

•D
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
tr

a
in

in
g
 f
o
r 

s
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

, 
d
e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 t
e
a
c
h
e
rs

, 
s
e
n
io

r 

p
ra

c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 t
e
a
m

 m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 h
ig

h
 q

u
a
lit

y 
P

E
P

S
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
. 

E
x
te

n
d
 Q

u
a
lit

y 
A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 t
o
 c

o
v
e
r 

p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 

P
E

P
S

. 
•U

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 P

E
P

 a
u
d
it
s
, 
in

 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 Q

u
a
lit

y 
A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

. 
 

•D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
 V

ir
tu

a
l 
S

c
h
o
o
l 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
p
la

n
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

ti
m

e
lin

e
s
s
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
u
ra

c
y 

o
f 
o
v
e
rs

ig
h
t 
a
n
d
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 o

n
 C

L
A

 a
tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
. 
 

•D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 t
e
s
t 
p
ilo

t 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
e
s
 t
o
 w

a
ys

 o
f 
in

te
g
ra

ti
n
g
 P

E
P

 r
e
v
ie

w
 a

c
ti
v
it
y 

a
lo

n
g
s
id

e
 o

th
e
r 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
, 
s
u
c
h
 a

s
 C

h
ild

re
n
 L

o
o
k
e
d
 A

ft
e
r 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
. 
 

•A
s
c
e
rt

a
in

 w
h
ic

h
 c

h
ild

re
n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

d
o
 n

o
t 
h
a
v
e
 a

 P
E

P
 a

n
d
 s

e
t 
ta

rg
e
t 
d
a
te

 

fo
r 

a
ll 

th
e
s
e
 c

h
ild

re
n
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 t
h
e
ir
 P

E
P

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
. 
 

•S
e
t 
u
p
 a

 t
ra

c
k
in

g
 c

yc
le

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
ll 

c
h
ild

re
n
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 t
im

e
ly

 P
E

P
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 

a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
s
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 g
e
t 
re

m
in

d
e
rs

 w
h
e
n
 P

E
P

 d
a
te

s
 a

re
 i
m

m
in

e
n
t.

• 
P

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 f
o
r 

th
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 V

ir
tu

a
l 
H

e
a
d
 T

e
a
c
h
e
r 

in
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
e
d
.

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 t
h
a
t 
w

ill
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 

S
o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

e
rs

 a
n
d
 T

e
a
c
h
e
rs

 i
n
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 

th
e
 q

u
a
lit

y 
o
f 
P

E
P

s
 h

a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
, 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 w
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 a

n
d
 a

re
 

m
o
n
it
o
re

d
 b

y 
th

e
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e
.

W
it
h
in

 e
x
is

it
in

g
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

G
ill

 H
o
rr

o
b
in

H
ig

h
 q

u
a
li
ty

 p
e
rs

o
n

a
l 
e
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
s
 (

P
E

P
s
) 

a
re

 

in
 p

la
c
e
 f

o
r 

a
ll
 r

e
le

v
a
n

t 
c
h

il
d

re
n

 l
o

o
k
e
d

 a
ft

e
r

P
a
th

w
a
y
 p

la
n

s
 a

re
 i
n

 p
la

c
e
 f

o
r 

a
ll
 c

a
re

 l
e
a
v
e
rs

, 

th
a
t 

th
e
y
 a

re
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e
n

s
iv

e
 a

n
d

 s
p

e
c
if

ic
 a

n
d

 

e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
ly

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 c
a
re

 l
e
a
v
e
rs

 i
n

 a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 t

h
e
ir

 

o
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e
n

c
e
 s

k
il
ls

 a
n

d
 t

h
e
 t

ra
n

s
it

io
n

 t
o

 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e
n

c
e
.

P
a

g
e

 6
O

S
M

C
 O

fS
T

E
D

 M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 R

e
p

o
rt

 v
2



N
o

.
R

e
c

.
A

c
ti

o
n

P
ro

g
re

s
s

Im
p

a
c

t
W

h
a

t 
d

o
 w

e
 s

ti
ll
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 d

o
W

h
e

re
 w

e
 a

im
 t

o
 b

e
 b

y
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0

1
3

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 R

A
G

 R
a

ti
n

g
)

C
o

s
t

L
e

a
d

 p
e

rs
o

n
 

re
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

1
4

1
4
.1

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
.

P
ra

c
ti
c
e
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
is

e
d
 a

ro
u
n
d
 C

a
re

 P
la

n
n
in

g
 

a
n
d
 P

a
th

w
a
y 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 P

a
th

w
a
ys

 T
e
a
m

. 
A

 

w
o
rk

in
g
 g

ro
u
p
 w

a
s
 d

ra
w

n
 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

to
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

a
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
to

o
ls

 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 c

a
re

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 

a
n
d
 i
t 
w

a
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 t
h
a
t 
P

a
rt

 1
 o

f 
th

e
 R

e
v
ie

w
 D

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
w

o
u
ld

 

b
e
 t
h
e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t.
 T

h
is

 p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
s
e
ts

 

o
u
t 
th

e
 c

h
ild

’s
 n

e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 c

h
ild

’s
 S

M
A

R
T

 o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

C
a
re

 P
la

n
n
in

g
 G

ri
d
. 
A

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
a
u
d
it
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
in

 

A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
2
 a

n
d
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
3
 o

f 
C

a
re

 P
la

n
s
 a

n
d
 P

a
th

w
a
y 

P
la

n
s
. 
A

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

a
u
d
it
 d

a
y 

is
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 i
n
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
3
. 
C

a
re

 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 T

ra
in

in
g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
.

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 s

o
m

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
s
o
m

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 a

 r
e
c
e
n
t 

s
a
m

p
le

.

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y 

a
u
d
it
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 f
o
r 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

. 
In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
 t
o
 t
h
is

 

a
u
d
it
 w

h
ic

h
 d

ri
lls

 r
ig

h
t 
d
o
w

n
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y 
o
f 
in

d
iv

id
u
a
l 
p
la

n
s
, 
a
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

a
u
d
it
, 
im

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 b

y 
th

e
 I
R

O
s
, 
 t
o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 w

h
o
 

h
a
v
e
 a

 n
e
e
d
s
-l
e
d
 c

a
re

 p
la

n
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 u

p
-t

o
-d

a
te

 w
ill

 b
e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 n

e
x
t 
3
-6

 m
o
n
th

s
.

•R
e
v
is

e
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

c
a
p
tu

ri
n
g
 n

e
e
d
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 f
u
lly

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 b

y 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
 w

it
h
 t
ra

in
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t
o
 s

ta
ff
.

W
it
h
in

 e
x
is

it
in

g
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

G
ill

 H
o
rr

o
b
in

1
5

W
it
h
in

 e
x
is

it
in

g
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

G
ill

 H
o
rr

o
b
in

1
5
.1

A
u
d
it
 o

f 
c
a
re

 p
la

n
s
 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 r

e
m

e
d
ia

l 
a
c
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

s
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

.

T
h
e
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

a
n
d
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 a
u
d
it
s
 r

e
fl
e
c
te

d
 s

o
m

e
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e
. 
T

h
e
 e

le
c
tr

o
n
ic

 C
a
re

 P
la

n
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

is
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 P

A
R

IS
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 u

p
d
a
te

d
.

T
h
e
 h

ig
h
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
C

L
A

 w
it
h
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 C

a
re

 P
la

n
s
 

re
m

a
in

s
 h

ig
h
 (

9
0
%

 +
)

E
n
s
u
re

 a
ll 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 s
ta

ff
 a

tt
e
n
d
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 
tr

a
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 i
s
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 t
o
 

ta
rg

e
t 
n
e
w

 s
ta

ff

• 
E

m
b
e
d
 a

 r
e
g
u
la

r 
c
yc

le
 o

f 
a
u
d
it
 o

f 
c
a
re

 p
la

n
s
 o

n
 P

A
R

IS
 t
h
a
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
s
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y 
o
f 
th

e
 c

a
re

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 c

h
ild

 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
. 

•T
h
e
 n

e
w

 e
le

c
tr

o
n
ic

 c
a
re

 p
la

n
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 

p
la

c
e
 w

it
h
in

 P
a
ri
s
 b

y 
J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
3
 a

n
d
 

tr
a
in

in
g
 i
s
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 t
o
 t
a
rg

e
t 
n
e
w

 s
ta

ff
.

• 
A

u
d
it
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 a
n
d
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
3
.

T
ra

in
in

g
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

. 

P
A

R
IS

 c
o
s
ts

 t
o
 

b
e
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
. 
£
 

p
e
r 

s
o
c
ia

l 

w
o
rk

e
r=

 £
1
5
k
 

ye
a
r 

1
 t
h
e
n
 a

s
 

p
a
rt

 o
f 
in

d
u
c
ti
o
n
.

G
ill

 H
o
rr

o
b
in

B
o
th

 p
a
n
e
ls

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

re
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
. 
 A

u
d
it
in

g
 i
s
 

ta
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t.
 A

 s
p
re

a
d
s
h
e
e
t 
is

 i
n
 

p
la

c
e
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
c
o
rd

s
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 c

a
s
e
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 a

n
d
 

e
n
a
b
le

s
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 t
o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
. 
S

ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

c
o
lle

c
te

d
 a

n
d
 c

o
lla

te
d
 u

s
in

g
 t
h
is

 s
p
re

a
d
s
h
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
is

 w
ill

 

e
n
a
b
le

 r
e
p
o
rt

in
g
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e

•R
e
v
ie

w
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th

e
s
e
 p

a
n
e
ls

 o
n
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
; 
to

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 

in
p
u
t 
fr

o
m

 p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
ls

 a
n
d
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
.

R
e
v
ie

w
s
 o

f 
th

e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

a
re

 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 P

a
n
e
l 
a
n
d
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d
 

A
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
s
 t
o
 C

a
re

 P
a
n
e
l,
 w

it
h
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 

th
e
ir
 r

e
m

it
 a

n
d
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 w

e
ll 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 f
o
r 

c
a
re

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
. 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 c

a
re

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 

o
n
g
o
in

g
 a

n
d
 n

o
t 
fu

lly
 c

o
n
s
o
lid

a
te

d
 u

n
ti
l 
a
 

p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 i
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
is

 

c
o
m

p
e
te

n
t 
a
n
d
 a

b
le

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

h
ig

h
 q

u
a
lit

y 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 i
n
 a

 t
im

e
ly

 w
a
y.

W
it
h
in

 e
x
is

it
in

g
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

G
ill

 H
o
rr

o
b
in

1
6

1
6
.1

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
le

g
a
l 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 

o
n
 a

 r
e
g
u
la

r 
b
a
s
is

, 
a
n
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 

a
n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d

T
h
e
 C

a
re

 P
la

n
n
in

g
 P

a
n
e
l 
n
o
w

 m
e
e
ts

 w
e
e
k
ly

, 
c
h
a
ir
e
d
 b

y 

S
e
n
io

r 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

- 
S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

n
d
 i
s
 a

n
 e

m
b
e
d
d
e
d
 f
ix

tu
re

 i
n
 

e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 c

a
s
e
s
 i
n
 p

ro
c
e
e
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
d
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
. 
L
e
g
a
l 
G

a
te

w
a
y 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 t
a
k
e
 

p
la

c
e
 o

n
 a

 w
e
e
k
ly

 b
a
s
is

. 
T

h
e
 C

h
a
lle

n
g
e
 t
o
 C

a
re

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 h

a
s
 

n
o
w

 b
e
e
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
.

C
a
s
e
s
 a

re
 r

o
b
u
s
tl
y 

m
o
n
it
o
re

d
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 

p
ro

te
c
t 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

re
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 i
n
 a

 t
im

e
ly

 w
a
y.

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 u

s
e
 t
h
e
 s

ys
te

m
 t
o
 t
ra

c
k
 c

a
s
e
s
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 l
e
g
a
l 
g
a
te

w
a
y 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 t
o
 

e
n
a
b
le

 a
n
y 

d
e
la

y 
to

 b
e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
d
 a

t 
a
n
 e

a
rl
y 

s
ta

g
e
.

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w

it
h
 w

e
e
k
ly

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 l
e
g
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 c

yc
le

s
 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t
h
is

 a
re

 n
o
w

 i
n
 

p
la

c
e
.

W
it
h
in

 e
x
is

it
in

g
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

M
a
rk

 J
o
w

e
tt
 

1
7

S
ix

 M
o

n
th

s

C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 u

p
 t

o
 d

a
te

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 i
n

 

p
la

c
e
 f

o
r 

c
h

il
d

re
n

 l
o

o
k
e
d

 a
ft

e
r 

a
n

d
 c

a
re

 l
e
a
v
e
rs

 

w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 a
n

a
ly

ti
c
a
l 
a
n

d
 r

o
b

u
s
tl

y
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 r
is

k
s
, 

n
e
e
d

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

te
c
ti

v
e
 f

a
c
to

rs
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
ly

 

in
fo

rm
 c

a
re

 p
la

n
n

in
g

.

C
a
re

 p
la

n
s
 a

re
 s

p
e
c
if

ic
 w

it
h

 c
le

a
r 

in
te

n
d

e
d

 

o
u

tc
o

m
e
s
, 
th

a
t 

th
e
s
e
 a

re
 r

e
c
o

rd
e
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 

e
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
 r

e
c
o

rd
in

g
 s

y
s
te

m
 a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 c

a
re

 p
la

n
s
 i
s
 r

o
b

u
s
tl

y
 

m
o

n
it

o
re

d
.

L
e
g

a
l 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 m

e
e
ti

n
g

s
 a

re
 t

im
e
ly

 a
n

d
 t

h
a
t 

a
c
ti

o
n

s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
s
e
 m

e
e
ti

n
g

s
 a

re
 r

o
b

u
s
tl

y
 

m
o

n
it

o
re

d
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

.

R
o

b
u

s
t 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 a

re
 i
n

 p
la

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

e
n

a
b

le
 c

h
il
d

re
n

 

lo
o

k
e
d

 a
ft

e
r 

a
n

d
 c

a
re

 l
e
a
v
e
rs

 t
o

 e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
ly

 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 p
la

n
n

in
g

, 

p
o

li
c
y
 a

n
d

 p
ra

c
ti

c
e

P
a

g
e

 7
O

S
M

C
 O

fS
T

E
D

 M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 R

e
p

o
rt

 v
2



N
o

.
R

e
c

.
A

c
ti

o
n

P
ro

g
re

s
s

Im
p

a
c

t
W

h
a

t 
d

o
 w

e
 s

ti
ll
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 d

o
W

h
e

re
 w

e
 a

im
 t

o
 b

e
 b

y
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0

1
3

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 R

A
G

 R
a

ti
n

g
)

C
o

s
t

L
e

a
d

 p
e

rs
o

n
 

re
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

1
7
.1

T
o
 b

u
ild

 o
n
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 
th

e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 C

a
re

 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

a
re

n
ti
n
g
 G

ro
u
p
 

a
n
d
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 o

u
r 

a
b
ili

ty
 t
o
 l
is

te
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 v

o
ic

e
 

o
f 
th

e
 c

h
ild

 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
.

•T
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 C

a
re

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 i
ts

 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
to

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

o
v
e
r 

th
e
ir
 c

a
re

; 
e
.g

. 
P

a
th

w
a
ys

 t
e
a
m

 h
e
ld

 a
 B

B
Q

 f
o
r 

lo
o
k
e
d
 

a
ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r.

  
T

h
e
 v

ie
w

s
 o

f 
C

L
A

 w
e
re

 

c
a
n
v
a
s
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
yo

u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 h
a
v
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 

p
a
rt

 i
n
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
to

 a
 r

e
g
u
la

r 

a
c
ti
v
it
y.

 Y
o
u
th

 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

th
is

. 
A

 s
tr

a
te

g
y 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 

C
a
re

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

is
 m

o
re

 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
.

•T
h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

a
re

n
ti
n
g
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 a

 

re
g
io

n
a
l 
e
v
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 i
ts

 r
e
m

it
.

•A
 s

tr
a
te

g
y 

fo
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
is

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
. 

C
h
ild

re
n
 f
e
e
l 
th

e
y 

a
re

 l
is

te
n
e
d
 t
o
 a

n
d
 c

a
n
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

.

•I
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
ro

b
u
s
t 
s
ys

te
m

s
 w

h
ic

h
 e

n
a
b
le

 c
h
ild

re
n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

a
n
d
 c

a
re

 

le
a
v
e
rs

 t
o
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 p
la

n
n
in

g
, 
p
o
lic

y 

a
n
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
. 

•S
o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

e
rs

 a
n
d
  
fo

s
te

rs
 c

a
re

rs
 c

o
lle

c
t 
a
n
d
 r

e
c
o
rd

 c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

’s
 v

ie
w

s
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
d
e
s
ig

n
. 

•F
a
c
ili

ta
te

 a
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
re

g
u
la

r 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

to
 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n
 f
o
ru

m
s
 i
n
 w

h
ic

h
 t
h
e
y 

a
re

 a
b
le

 t
o
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 o
r 

to
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 p

o
lic

y 

a
n
d
 p

la
n
n
in

g
. 
E

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 g

a
in

s
 t
h
e
 w

id
e
r 

v
ie

w
s
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 

yo
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

.

•A
ll 

c
h
ild

re
n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

to
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 a

w
a
re

 o
f 
th

e
 P

ro
m

is
e
 a

n
d
 t
o
 b

e
 k

e
p
t 

in
fo

rm
e
d
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 p

ro
m

is
e
s
 -

 l
e
tt
e
r 

to
 g

o
 f
ro

m
 l
e
a
d
 m

e
m

b
e
r 

to
 a

ll 
C

L
A

.

•D
e
v
e
lo

p
  
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

a
re

n
ti
n
g
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 t
o
 e

n
e
rg

is
e
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

a
re

n
ti
n
g
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
.

•A
 n

e
w

 C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

a
re

n
ti
n
g
 P

la
n
 P

a
n
e
l 
h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 b

y 
J
u
n
e
 

2
0
1
3
.

W
it
h
in

 e
x
is

it
in

g
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

G
ill

 H
o
rr

o
b
in

1
8

1
8
.1

S
e
e
 a

b
o
v
e
 o

n
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
n
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 a

 S
o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 S

ta
yi

n
g
 P

u
t 
p
o
lic

y 
to

 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
o
 r

e
m

a
in

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
ir
 f
o
s
te

r 
c
a
re

rs
 p

o
s
t 

1
8
.

C
a
re

 l
e
a
v
e
rs

 r
e
p
o
rt

 c
o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y 

th
a
t 
th

e
ir
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 n

e
e
d
s
 a

re
 

b
e
in

g
 m

e
t 
w

it
h
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
tl
y 

h
ig

h
 q

u
a
lit

y

•E
v
a
lu

a
te

 t
h
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 S

ta
yi

n
g
 P

u
t 
p
o
lic

y.
 

•A
n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 
c
o
h
o
rt

 d
a
ta

 t
o
 p

re
d
ic

t 
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
c
a
re

 l
e
a
v
e
rs

.

•I
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 “

C
h
ild

re
n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

a
n
d
 c

a
re

 l
e
a
v
e
rs

 p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 s

tr
a
te

g
y 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
-2

0
1
5
”.

C
S

L
 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 P

e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 t
o
 l
o
o
k
 a

t 
th

e
 

w
id

e
r 

n
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t
h
e
 c

it
y 

s
tr

a
te

g
y 

fo
r 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

yo
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 

a
lo

n
g
 w

it
h
 c

o
lle

a
g
u
e
s
 f
ro

m
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 P

e
o
p
le

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 i
t 
m

e
e
ts

 

th
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
e
o
p
le

 a
g
e
d
 1

6
-2

5
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 c

a
re

 l
e
a
v
e
rs

. 
 

•C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

iv
e
 l
o
d
g
in

g
s
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 c
a
re

 

le
a
v
e
rs

.

•C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
a
l 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

c
a
re

 l
e
a
v
e
rs

 e
.g

. 
s
e
tt
in

g
 u

p
 t
ri
a
l 
b
e
d
s
 f
o
r 

yo
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
o
 

s
ta

rt
 p

re
p
a
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
 f
o
r 

m
o
re

 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
liv

in
g
. 
 

•D
e
v
e
lo

p
 f
le

x
ib

le
 b

e
s
p
o
k
e
 p

a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 c
a
re

 l
e
a
v
e
rs

 a
re

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

t 

th
e
 l
e
v
e
ls

 t
h
e
y 

n
e
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 

•N
o
 L

im
it
s
 s

ta
ff
 c

o
-l
o
c
a
te

d
 w

it
h
 P

a
th

w
a
ys

 w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 i
n
te

n
s
iv

e
 p

a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 o

f 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

c
a
re

 l
e
a
v
e
rs

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

 l
e
a
v
e
rs

 c
o
m

in
g
 o

u
t 
o
f 
c
u
s
to

d
y.

T
h
e
re

 w
ill

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
n
 

th
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il'

s
 S

ta
yi

n
g
 P

u
t 
p
o
lic

y.
 T

h
e
 p

la
c
e
m

e
n
t 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 s

tr
a
te

g
y 

w
ill

 b
e
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
, 

th
o
u
g
h
 s

ti
ll 

in
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

s
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
.

W
it
h
in

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

G
ill

 H
o
rr

o
b
in

1
9

1
9
.1

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 h
e
a
lt
h
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r.

 

K
e
y 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 s

u
s
ta

in
e
d
 a

n
d
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
d

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y 
o
f 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 i
s
 g

o
o
d
, 
in

e
ff
ic

ie
n
t 

a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 h

ig
h
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
h
ild

re
n
 c

o
m

in
g
 i
n
to

 c
a
re

 h
a
s
 i
m

p
a
c
te

d
 o

n
 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

s
 a

n
d
 

th
e
re

 i
s
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 a
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
b
a
c
k
lo

g
 o

f 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 

a
c
c
ru

in
g
. 
S

o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 C

C
G

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 t
e
a
m

 a
n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

fu
n
d
in

g
 f
o
r 

n
u
rs

in
g
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
. 
 T

h
e
re

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y 

a
 p

ie
c
e
 o

f 

w
o
rk

 b
e
in

g
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 t
o
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
m

e
d
ic

a
l 

s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
. 

A
 n

e
w

 p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 w

it
h
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 w
e
 r

e
a
c
h
 1

0
0
%

 b
y 

J
u
n
e
.

2
0

2
0
.1

H
e
a
lt
h
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 o

f 
c
a
re

 l
e
a
v
e
rs

 a
re

 s
u
s
ta

in
e
d
 

a
n
d
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
.

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

a
llo

c
a
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 L

A
C

 h
e
a
lt
h
 t
e
a
m

. 
 H

e
a
lt
h
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
c
a
re

 

le
a
v
e
rs

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 o

n
 a

n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 i
n
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 b

y 
S

C
C

, 

S
o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 C

it
y 

C
C

G
 a

n
d
 S

o
le

n
t 
N

H
S

 T
ru

s
t.

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 t
e
a
m

 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 c
u
rr

e
n
t 

n
e
e
d
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y 

to
 m

a
x
im

iz
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
 a

n
d
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 n

e
e
d
s
. 
R

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e
 t
o
 b

e
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 

to
 C

C
G

 a
n
d
 M

A
C

H
 C

Q
C

P
 b

o
a
rd

 i
n
 e

a
rl
y 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
. 
R

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e
 t
o
 b

e
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 t
o
 C

C
G

 C
lin

ic
a
l 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 G

ro
u
p
 a

n
d
 

B
o
a
rd

 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

fo
r 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
fo

r 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t.
 F

o
r 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
.

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

m
a
d
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y 

o
f 
th

e
 C

L
A

 H
e
a
lt
h
 

T
e
a
m

 b
y 

S
C

P
C

T
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 b

e
fo

re
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
.

T
B

C
L
in

d
s
a
y 

V
o
s
s

S
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
h

ig
h

 q
u

a
li
ty

 a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti

o
n

 i
s
 a

v
a
il
a
b

le
 

to
 e

ff
e
c
ti

v
e
ly

 m
e
e
t 

th
e
 n

e
e
d

s
 o

f 
c
a
re

 l
e
a
v
e
rs

N
H

S
 S

o
u

th
a
m

p
to

n
 P

C
T

 s
h

o
u

ld
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
re

 

is
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

c
a
p

a
c
it

y
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 c

h
il
d

re
n

 l
o

o
k
e
d

 

a
ft

e
r 

h
e
a
lt

h
 t

e
a
m

 t
o

 m
e
e
t 

th
e
 h

e
a
lt

h
 n

e
e
d

s
 o

f 

c
h

il
d

re
n

 l
o

o
k
e
d

 a
ft

e
r

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 c

h
il
d

re
n

 

lo
o

k
e
d

 a
ft

e
r 

h
e
a
lt

h
 t

e
a
m

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 h

e
a
lt

h
 

n
e
e
d

s
 o

f 
c
a
re

 l
e
a
v
e
rs

 a
re

 a
d

e
q

u
a
te

ly
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e
d

.

P
a

g
e

 8
O

S
M

C
 O

fS
T

E
D

 M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 R

e
p

o
rt

 v
2



 

 1

DECISION-MAKER:  OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE 

SUBJECT: FORWARD PLAN 

DATE OF DECISION: 14 MARCH 2013 

REPORT OF: HEAD OF COMMUNITIES, CHANGE AND 
PARTNERSHIPS 

CONTACT DETAILS 

AUTHOR: Name:  Mark Pirnie Tel: 023 8083 3886 

 E-mail: mark.pirnie@southampton.gov.uk 

Director Name:  Dawn Baxendale Tel: 023 8091 7713 

 E-mail: Dawn.baxendale@southampton.gov.uk 

 

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 

None 

BRIEF SUMMARY 

This item enables the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee to examine the 
content of the Forward Plan and to discuss issues of interest or concern with the 
Executive to ensure that forthcoming decisions made by the Executive benefit local 
residents.   

RECOMMENDATION: 

 (i) That the Committee discuss the Forward Plan items listed in paragraph 
3 of the report to highlight any matters which Members feel should be 
taken into account by the Executive when reaching a decision. 

REASON FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. To enable Members to identify any matters which they feel the Cabinet should 
take into account when reaching a decision. 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

2.  None. 

DETAIL (Including consultation carried out) 

3. The Forward Plan for the period March 2013 – June 2013 has been circulated 
to members of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee.  The 
following issue was identified for discussion with the Decision Maker: 
 

Portfolio Decision Requested By 

Resources City Centre Action Plan and City Centre 
Master Plan 

Cllr Moulton  

 

4. Briefing papers responding to the Forward Plan item identified by members of 
the Committee are appended to this report.  Members are invited to use the 
paper to explore the issues with the decision maker. 

Agenda Item 10



 

 2

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Capital/Revenue  

5. The details for the items on the Forward Plan will be set out in the Executive 
decision making report issued prior to the decision being taken. 

Property/Other 

6. The details for the items on the Forward Plan will be set out in the Executive 
decision making report issued prior to the decision being taken. 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:  

7. The details for the items on the Forward Plan will be set out in the Executive 
decision making report issued prior to the decision being taken. 

8. The duty to undertake overview and scrutiny is set out in Section 21 of the 
Local Government Act 2000 and the Local Government and Public 
Involvement in Health Act 2007. 

Other Legal Implications:  

9. None 

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS 

10. The details for the items on the Forward Plan will be set out in the Executive 
decision making report issued prior to the decision being taken. 

 

KEY DECISION?  No 

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: None directly as a result of this report 

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Appendices  

1. Briefing Paper – City Centre Action Plan and Master Plan 

Documents In Members’ Rooms 

1. None 

Equality Impact Assessment  

Do the implications/subject of the report require an Equality Impact 
Assessment (EIA) to be carried out. 

Dependent upon 
forward plan item 

Other Background Documents 

Equality Impact Assessment and Other Background documents available for 
inspection at: 

Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules / Schedule 12A allowing document 
to be Exempt/Confidential (if applicable) 

1. None  

 



 1

  

SUBJECT: City Centre Action Plan and Master Plan 

DATE: 14th March 2013 

RECIPIENT: Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 
  

 

THIS IS NOT A DECISION PAPER 

SUMMARY: 

1. The City Centre Action Plan and Master Plan (the “Plans”) set out a development 
strategy for how the city centre will evolve as a place to 2026 and beyond.  The 
Action Plan will form part of the development plan against which planning 
applications will be determined.  The Master Plan sets out a more detailed design 
strategy illustrating how the city centre could develop in the longer term, through a 
series of visual images.  It is a vehicle to raise the profile of the city centre nationally, 
illustrating its investment potential.   

BACKGROUND and BRIEFING DETAILS: 

 Context:  The Core Strategy 

2. The City Centre Action Plan is consistent with the city wide Core Strategy which sets 
out both the strategic approach and the overall development targets.  A Partial 
Review of the Core Strategy is reducing the office and retail targets in the light of the 
recession, changing office working practices and internet retailing.  However the 
reduced targets still represent major growth in office and retail sectors. 

3. The Plans set out the approach for different topics as follows. 

 A Great Place for Business 

4. Aim:  To focus economic growth and jobs on the city centre. 

5. Offices:  Major office development is promoted, particularly by the Central Station and 
at Royal Pier.  Change in existing office areas is managed. 

6. Industry:  Protect some industrial areas whilst redeveloping others to promote 
regeneration.  Protect the mineral wharves but recognise the strong regeneration 
opportunities should they be relocated. 

7. Port:  Manage the relationship between the city centre and the port, particularly in 
terms of traffic and adjacent residential development. 

 A Great Place to Visit 

8. Aim:  To enhance Southampton as a vibrant shopping and leisure centre. 

9. Retail:  Protect and enhance the existing shopping area, and in the longer term 
promote an expansion of this area when appropriate. 

10 Bars / restaurants / casinos / night clubs:  Where planning permission is required, 
premises open beyond 11pm  should be focussed in ‘evening zones’ or ‘late night 
hubs’.  (Any large casino proposal will be subject to a separate licensing process).  

 A Great Place to Live 

11. Aim:  To encourage a greater range of people to live in the city centre. 

12. Housing:  Identify sites to accommodate 5,450 homes as part of mixed use 
developments.  Encourage the provision of some family homes and promote purpose 
built student accommodation. 

Agenda Item 10a



 2

13. Education:  Support the provision of new schools in the city centre.  In the longer term 
there is likely to be a need for a new secondary school in the city.  Protect further and 
higher education sites. 

 A Greener Centre 

14. Aim:  To create an attractive and environmentally sustainable centre. 

15. Parks:  Protect existing open spaces, allowing some reconfiguration where the 
quantity and quality of open space is retained.  Identify the potential for new open 
spaces.  Promote the ‘greening’ of connecting streets. 

16. Renewable and Low Carbon Energy:  Support appropriate new energy plants and 
encourage connections to the district energy network. 

17. Flood Resilience:  Facilitate the provision of a flood defence to protect the city centre 
as sea levels rise in the longer term;  and ensure that development is appropriately 
designed (eg residential on upper floors). 

 Attractive and Distinctive 

18. Aim:  To create distinctive buildings and places. 

19. Design:  Promote high standards of design (eg respecting the city’s heritage and 
surrounding areas, enhancing the public realm, protecting key views). 

20. Tall Buildings:  Promote high quality tall buildings which respect their surroundings;  
enhance the skyline;  and are focussed on the Station Quarter, Charlotte Place, 
Marsh Lane / Terminus Terrace, adjacent to the Central Parks, along the waterfront / 
Western Gateway, or on other appropriate sites. 

 Easy to Get About 

21. Aim:  To minimise congestion and enhance the environment by promoting a shift from 
car use to public transport, walking and cycling. 

22. Transport:  Ongoing enhancements to the Central Station and surrounding public 
realm;  to key bus stops;  cycle routes;  taxi provision;  and the ferry terminal.   
Enhanced pedestrian links, including ‘strategic links’ connecting  the Central Station, 
waterfront, shopping area and other key destinations.  Remodelling major roads to 
create more pedestrian friendly ‘city streets’.  Green travel plans.  Ensuring 
appropriate provision for cars, managing new car parking, encouraging a shift in ‘non 
shopper’ parking to the edge of the centre. 

 Quarters and Development Sites 

23. The Plans set out the approach for each quarter of the city centre, and for likely 
development sites.  In general they promote a mix of uses, including residential, 
office, retail, leisure and restaurant / bar uses.  Some of the sites are likely to be 
developed over the next few years, others in the longer term. 

24. Station Quarter:  Major development by an enhanced Central Station.  New offices 
and a mix of other uses. 

25. Western Gateway:  A comprehensive redevelopment is only likely to occur in the 
longer term.  In the short to medium term the Plan continues to support the existing or 
similar leisure / industrial uses.  However the Plan also promotes a comprehensive 
redevelopment to provide a ‘landmark’ entrance to the city centre.  This could include 
new office / leisure uses;  and residential / hotel uses where appropriate.  The Plan 
does not restrict such redevelopment to the longer term should a developer wish to 
bring this forward at an earlier date.   



 3

26. Royal Pier Waterfront:  High quality waterfront destination.  Leisure, bar /  
restaurants, casino (subject to licence), speciality retail, office, residential, and hotel 
uses. 

27. Heart of the City:  Enhance the shopping area and in the longer term promote its 
expansion: 
East Street Centre / Queens Buildings:  Retail led uses including a superstore, with a 
mix of uses on upper floors.  Improve links to St. Mary’s. 
Watermark West Quay:  Visitor destination by town walls, including retail, leisure, bar 
/ restaurant, offices, hotel and residential uses. 
West Quay Western Site B:  offices. 
Asda / Marlands:  Maintain a major retail / leisure destination to anchor the northern 
end of the shopping area, and create links through to the west. 
West Quay Retail Park:  Long term expansion of the shopping area. 

28. Itchen Riverside:  create new waterfront destinations.   
Town Depot:  Residential, leisure, bar / restaurant, marine employment, education 
and other uses. 

29. Old Town: Protect and enhance the Old Town.   
Fruit and Vegetable Market:  Residential led mixed use development, linking the 
shopping area with the waterfront. 
Bargate Shopping Centre and East of Castle Way:  Retail led development which 
enhances the setting of the Bargate and Town Walls. 
Albion Place / Castle Way car parks:  new public open space, and new retail / 
residential development provided the Town Walls are respected. 
144 – 164 High Street:  Retail led mixed use.   

30. Cultural Quarter:   
Northern Above Bar: create link from Guildhall Square to the Central Parks.  A new 
arts complex, leisure, restaurants / bars, and other uses on upper floors. 
Mayflower Plaza:  Tall building, with residential or student and mixed uses. 

31. University Quarter:   
East Park Terrace:  University led expansion with a mix of uses, and a positive 
relationship with the Central Parks. 
St Mary’s Road:  Residential, student, leisure, community or other uses. 

32. Holyrood / Queens Park:  Protect the park and enhance Oxford Street. 
Duke / Richmond / College Street:  Residential, office, and employment uses. 

33. Ocean Village:  Continue to enhance the quarter as a waterfront destination. 

34. St. Mary’s:  Ground floor premises of St Mary’s Road (part) and Old Northam Road 
protected for shops and similar uses.   

35. Bedford Place:  Maintain existing bars, restaurants, shops and offices. 

36. Delivery 
The plan sets out a range of:  

• Actions the Council should take (eg working with developers, marketing) or 
consider (use of its land, compulsory purchase powers, investment in 
infrastructure);   

• Local people, developers and public agencies  who will aid delivery; 

• Potential funding sources (including the Community Infrastructure Levy). 



 4

37. Public Consultation 
The Plans were published as drafts for public consultation early in 2012.  
Approximately 700 comments were made from 61 organisations (developers, 
landowners, public agencies, business and community groups).  All these comments 
have been considered.  A summary of the key responses is included in Appendix 1, 
and a full schedule of responses has been placed in the members’ room.  The main 
changes from the draft to the latest plan, as a result of these comments or internal 
discussions, are to introduce: 

• A recognition that the Plans look not only to 2026 but beyond; 

• More flexibility regarding the provision of office development; 

• A policy on the Port; 

• A policy on education provision; 

• More emphasis on considering connections to the district energy network; 

• More reference to water infrastructure; 

• More clarity on controlling bars / restaurants / nightclubs and an 
acknowledgement that any casino on the southern end of Royal Pier may need 
to open for 24 hours; 

• More protection for Town Quay Park as designated open space. 

RESOURCE/POLICY/FINANCIAL/LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: 

38. Resources 
Property:  The Council owns an interest in a wide range of the sites allocated for 
development in this Plan.   

39. Policy 

The City Centre Action Plan will form part of the development plan.  Planning 
applications will be determined in accordance with the Plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise.  The Master Plan will be a material consideration 
in the determination of planning applications where it is consistent with the Action 
Plan. 

40. Financial 
Capital:     

Delivery of the Plans will mainly be achieved through private sector investment.  
However some projects, for example flood defence work, may be achieved in part 
through Council investment.  Any requests for Council funding will be progressed 
through the normal approval process in line with the Financial Procedure Rules.  
This report does not commit the Council to any capital spending. 

Revenue:  The Plans are prepared within the existing planning policy budget. 

41. Legal 

Blight Notices: 

Some of the provisions of the Plan, for example the safeguarding of land for a flood 
defence, may require the Council to purchase land through the blight notice 
procedure.  However, given the way this procedure is framed, the extent of this is 
likely to be limited for flood risk.     



 5

OPTIONS and TIMESCALES: 

42. Options 

Not to prepare the Plans.  This would fail to provide clear guidance.  The Council 
has a statutory duty to prepare a development plan. 

43. Timescales and Decision Making 

Cabinet approval is being sought on 19th March 2013 for the final City Centre Master 
Plan and the “proposed submission” City Centre Action Plan.  The Action Plan must 
follow a statutory process before it is adopted.  The anticipated programme following 
Cabinet approval is: 

• June / July 2013 – formal consultation on the “proposed submission” Action Plan, 
supported by evidence (eg on the economy, retailing, open space, flood risk, 
transport and delivery).   

• October 2013 – submission of the Action Plan. 

• January 2014 – public examination of the Action Plan held by an independent 
planning inspector who will consider the representations made in June / July 
2013. 

• Summer 2014 – adoption of the Action Plan by full Council.  Legally, the Council 
can only adopt the Plan if it follows the main changes made by the inspector.  
Therefore the decision sought in this report represents the last opportunity for 
the Council to shape the main aspects of the Plan. 

44. Delegated Powers 

The Cabinet will be requested to give delegated powers to the Head of Service for 
Planning, Transport and Sustainability, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for 
Resources, to make changes to the Plan provided these do not affect its main policy 
direction.  Initially these changes will be made to finalise the Plan prior to publication 
in June.  The following types of change are anticipated: 

• Address the results of the Sustainability Appraisal and Habitat Regulations, for 
example to acknowledge the Council will ensure that appropriate measures are 
put in place to mitigate effects on ecology designations (eg improving open space, 
managing traffic); 

• Incorporate and update the results of further studies on deliverability; 

• Include a section on monitoring the Plan. 

• The proposals map (checking site boundaries). 

After this, further changes are likely to be made to react to comments made during 
the formal consultation;  or to discussion during the examination.   

Appendices/Supporting Information: 

45. Summary of Main Comments and Council’s Response 

Further Information Available From: Name: Graham Tuck 

 Tel:  023 8083 4602 

E-mail:  graham.tuck@southampton.gov.uk 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1:  Brief summary of some of the main comments received and the 

proposed response 

 

61 organisations made a total of approximately 700 comments.  The brief summary 

below is intended to give an indication of some of the main comments.  It is not 

comprehensive, and a full schedule of all comments made together with the proposed 

response has been placed in the members room. 

 

 Comment Officer Response 

1 HSE / MoD – identify hazardous sites. Agree – make reference to 

consultation requirements. 

2 Business Solent / Future Southampton – a wide 

range of generally supportive comments and a 

request for more detailed discussions. 

Welcome support and agree 

with the need for more 

detailed discussions on 

individual projects as they 

move forward.  Following a 

further meeting some 

detailed amendments are 

being considered. 

3 Chamber of Commerce – a wide range of 

comments, for example:  focus on the existing 

shopping area first before westward expansion;  

there needs to be a full transport plan;  marketing 

will be important;  more specific forecasts 

needed for growth. 

Broadly agree, more 

information is contained in 

the background evidence. 

4 A range of developers – further evidence on 

deliverability is needed 

Agree – this is in preparation 

and has informed the Plan as 

it evolves. 

5 English Heritage – need to refer to heritage in 

vision 

Agree 

6 Southampton Action for Access – needs to be a 

reference to improving access for those with 

reduced mobility 

Agree – amendments 

proposed 

7 Southern Water / Environment Agency – include 

reference to the need for developers to fund local 

improvements to water infrastructure, to protect 

easements and to the Water Framework 

Directive. 

Agree – amendments 

proposed 

8 Southampton Solent University – the approach to 

offices on East Park Terrace and other sites is 

inconsistent. 

Disagree – there is already 

flexibility, and offices are not 

sought if the site is 

predominately used for the 

University 

9 LaSalle (City Industrial Estate) and Aviva (West 

Quay and Mountbatten retail parks) – more 

flexibility needed on the requirement to provide 

offices 

Agree – amendments 

proposed 

10 La Salle (Central Trading Estate) – more 

flexibility to promote the redevelopment of this 

estate 

Disagree – Although the Plan 

doesn’t phase 

redevelopment, it does 

Agenda Item 10a
Appendix 1



recognise it is more likely to 

occur in the longer term.  In 

the meantime, the site is in 

an appropriate location for 

industrial uses and provides a 

wider range of jobs. 

11 ABP – need a policy to prioritise traffic access to 

the Port, prevent residential development on the 

Western Gateway. 

Partially agree – policy 

proposed, but this needs to 

strike the right balance 

between the port and city 

centre interests, recognising 

the national importance of 

the port and the regional 

importance of the city centre 

12 ABP – should recognise port uses can change 

and direct links / views to the City Cruise 

Terminal are inappropriate 

Partially agree – amendments 

proposed 

13 Tarmac / Hanson / Cemex – the mineral wharves 

should be protected 

The mineral wharves are 

protected and clear 

references to the Minerals 

and Waste Plan are proposed.  

However if the wharves are 

relocated this will enable 

their redevelopment 

14 ABP – should plan positively for the 

regeneration of the wharves 

The Plan does set out a 

positive vision for the 

regeneration of wharves but 

it is important it recognises 

this is likely to be in the 

longer term and in the 

meantime it is important to 

protect the wharves for 

mineral use 

15 Hammersons / John Lewis – concern over the 

scale and phasing of retail expansion 

Detailed changes proposed 

although the principle of 

expansion at the right time is 

appropriate 

16 Aviva – support retail expansion but there should 

be more certainty about where this can occur, the 

Mountbatten retail park should be included, and 

there should be more flexibility on phasing 

The Mountbatten retail park 

is too detached from the 

main shopping area.  The 

Plan promotes expansion 

adjacent to the main 

shopping area at the 

appropriate time.  It is 

important to phase expansion 

to protect the existing 

shopping area. 

17 LaSalle (City Industrial Estate) – this site is 

suitable for retail use. 

The site is separated from the 

main shopping area.  The 

standard edge / out of centre 



tests for retail development 

should apply 

18 EBRA / SFRA – concern about late night uses 

and welcome the policy which controls them 

Support welcome 

19 Various – there should be more control of 

student accommodation, promotion of family 

housing, consideration of need for a secondary 

school 

The Plan promotes purpose 

built student accommodation 

and the Council has 

introduced extra controls on 

HMOs.  Family housing is 

supported in the city centre 

where possible.  A new 

policy is introduced to 

support and help plan for 

new schools. 

20 SCAPPS – the existing and new open space is 

not sufficient for the scale of new development;  

s106 / CIL money should be used to invest in 

open spaces. 

Recent audits have shown 

sufficient park space, but 

deficient amenity green 

space. Policy approach 

protects existing spaces, 

proposes new open spaces, 

and seeks developer 

contributions. 

 

21 Environment Agency – strongly support the 

approach to flood defences 

Welcome support. 

22 SCAPPS – there needs to be greater protection of 

views from the old town 

Agree though some 

flexibility is needed – add 

protection for views from 

Bugle Street and / or French 

Street 

23 SCAPPS / SFRA – various concerns about tall 

buildings, including adjacent to the Central Parks 

Add reference to managing 

the relationship of tall 

buildings to the parks 

24 Aviva – concerns about downgrading Western 

Esplanade 

Added emphasis to transport 

modelling.  The proposal will 

significantly enhance 

pedestrian access to the 

station whilst still enabling 

traffic to flow. 

25 Southampton Cycling Campaign – various 

suggestions for improving cycling 

Most of these measures are 

too detailed for the Plan but 

have been passed to the 

Council’s transport policy 

team. 

26 Business Solent - Underplays role of smaller 

sites 

The Plan sets out general 

policies which will help 

guide smaller sites. 

27 SCAPPS – object to replacement of Blychenden 

Terrace green space with new public squares in 

the absence of more detail 

Add reference that new 

spaces should be green where 

possible 



 Hammersons – object to retail at Station Clearer reference to retail 

tests and ancillary retail 

28 Friends of Town Quay Park / SCAPPS – object 

to any loss of the park 

Strengthen protection of the 

park as designated open 

space 

29 Southampton Solent University – more flexibility 

on uses at East Park Terrace, including scope for 

joint ventures 

Agree 

30 Old Northam Road Traders Association – object 

to flexibility to enable loss of retail premises;  

doesn’t reflect the progress made 

Agree - Amendments 

proposed to policy and 

supporting text.    

 

 



 

 1

DECISION-MAKER:  OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE 

SUBJECT: MONITORING SCRUTINY RECOMMENDATIONS TO 
THE EXECUTIVE 

DATE OF DECISION: 14 MARCH 2013 

REPORT OF: HEAD OF COMMUNITIES, CHANGE AND 
PARTNERSHIPS 

CONTACT DETAILS 

AUTHOR: Name:  Mark Pirnie Tel: 023 8083 3886 

 E-mail: mark.pirnie@southampton.gov.uk 

Director Name:  Dawn Baxendale Tel: 023 8091 7713 

 E-mail: Dawn.baxendale@southampton.gov.uk 

 

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 

None 

BRIEF SUMMARY 

This item enables the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee to monitor and 
track progress on recommendations made to the Executive at previous meetings.   

RECOMMENDATION: 

 (i) That the Committee considers the responses from Cabinet Members to 
recommendations from previous meetings and provides feedback. 

REASON FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. To assist the Committee in assessing the impact and consequence of 
recommendations made at previous meetings. 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

2.  None. 

DETAIL (Including consultation carried out) 

3. Appendix 1 of the report sets out the recommendations made to Cabinet 
Members at previous meetings of the Overview and Scrutiny Management 
Committee.  It also contains summaries of any action taken by Cabinet 
Members in response to the recommendations. 

4. The progress status for each recommendation is indicated and if the 
Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee confirms acceptance of the 
items marked as completed they will be removed from the list.  In cases 
where action on the recommendation is outstanding or the Committee does 
not accept the matter has been adequately completed, it will be kept on the 
list and reported back to the next meeting.  It will remain on the list until such 
time as the Committee accepts the recommendation as completed.  
Rejected recommendations will only be removed from the list after being 
reported to the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee.   

Agenda Item 11



 

 2

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Capital/Revenue  

5. None. 

Property/Other 

6. None. 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:  

7. The duty to undertake overview and scrutiny is set out in Section 21 of the 
Local Government Act 2000 and the Local Government and Public 
Involvement in Health Act 2007. 

Other Legal Implications:  

8. None 

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS 

9. None. 

 

KEY DECISION?  No 

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: None directly as a result of this report 

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 

Appendices  

1. Monitoring Scrutiny Recommendations – 14th March 2013 

Documents In Members’ Rooms 

1. None 

Equality Impact Assessment  

Do the implications/subject of the report require an Equality Impact 
Assessment (EIA) to be carried out. 

No 

Other Background Documents 

Equality Impact Assessment and Other Background documents available for 
inspection at: 

Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the Access to 
Information Procedure Rules / Schedule 
12A allowing document to be 
Exempt/Confidential (if applicable) 

1. None  

 



APPENDIX 1 

 1

Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee: Holding the Executive to Account 
Scrutiny Monitoring – 14th March 2013 

 

Date Portfolio  Title Action proposed Action Taken Progress Status 

12:07:12 Resources Changes to 
existing 
revenue and 
capital 
budgets 

That the Cabinet Member requests 
details of the Capita Partnership’s Senior 
Managers pay levels and circulates to 
OSMC  
 

Follow up 16th August: 

That the Cabinet Member requests 
details of the Capita Partnership’s Senior 
Managers pay bands and the number of 
managers in each band and circulates to 
OSMC  

This has not been requested at the current time. 
The Council is working positively with Capita to 
deliver savings, and this would only serve as a 
distraction. 

 
 

Officers have requested the information from 
Capita. 

 

 

 

13:09:12 Efficiency & 
Improvement 

 That relevant SCC departments 
collaborate to agree an approach to 
service planning such that all use the 
same set of data sources, analyse and 
interpret the information derived in a 
consistent way and share information in 
order to produce the most effective and 
efficient results 

 

The Policy, Performance Management and 
Systems review completed in December 2011 
recommended: 

• The establishment of a data warehouse 
or a central point of access to information 
on policies, performance and systems 
including an agreed (reduced) list of 
policies, performance indicators and 
systems in use 

• Within this exercise, to identify the top 
high level strategies and policies and PIs 
that link to them (to form the core), setting 
out clearly the golden thread from 
strategy to practice and a council wide 
gateway process for reviewing and 
developing these in the future  

• Identify ways in which officers can shift 
resources and focus from scanning data 
to analysis and problem solving to 
improve the overall product and 
outcomes from data.  

The implementation of the review is about to 
commence and will take on board this OSMC 
recommendation.  

A verbal update 
will be provided 
to OSMC at the 
14th March 
meeting. 

A
g
e
n

d
a
 Ite

m
 1

1
A

p
p
e
n

d
ix

 1



APPENDIX 1 

 2

Date Portfolio  Title Action proposed Action Taken Progress Status 

18:02:13 Efficiency 
and 
Improvement 

Grants i) Cabinet assure themselves that 
adequate funding has been allocated to 
those organisations that:  

•  protect and support the most 
vulnerable and provide advice for 
those in need at a time of acute 
pressures; 

• compliment the Council’s substantial 
investment in promoting 
Southampton’s cultural offering and 
the related economic development 
opportunities; and 

• have the capacity to lever in 
additional investment into the city. 

 

Following the OSMC meeting, representations 
from organisations were considered, together 
with the impact of the welfare reforms along with 
how existing advice organisations work together. 
This resulted in a revised recommendation to 
offer funding to the EU Welcome Project, in 
recognition that the organisation would close 
without it and also that this would have a knock-
on effect on other agencies such as CAB and 
SARC. The review of recommendations also 
took into account the potential for organisations 
to lever in other funds, which resulted in a 
changed recommendation for the Saints 
Foundation. The Cabinet considered OSMC’s 
recommendation in relation to the city’s cultural 
offering and its contribution to economic 
development, but with limited funds available the 
decision was taken to focus on maintaining a 
level of advice provision in the city. 

 

Completed 

   ii) That the Cabinet Member for Efficiency 
and Improvement circulates to the 
Committee details of the cost of the grant 
assessment process 
 

The grants appraisal process for 2013/14 to 
2015/16 involved 23 officers from across the 
council.  The average amount of time officers 
spent was 2 weeks, though this varied according 
to the number of applications for their specialist 
area.  The rough cost of the appraisal process 
was £19,350, which equates to £6,450 for each 
year of the scheme.  The £19,350 cost is 
approximately 0.4% of the total 3 year budget of 
£4,977,756. 

 

Completed 

   iii) That the Cabinet Member for Efficiency 
and Improvement reconsiders proposed 
funding awards for those organisations 
that are able to fund initiatives from their 
own resources. 
 

In submitting revised recommendations to 
Cabinet, the issues under recommendation (i) 
were also taken into account. Taking OSMC 
recommendations (i) and (iii) into account led to 
the changed recommendations as highlighted 
above. 

 

Completed 



APPENDIX 1 

 3

Date Portfolio  Title Action proposed Action Taken Progress Status 

18:02:13 Housing and 
Leisure 
Services 

Licensing 
Scheme for 
HMO’s 

i) That the Cabinet Member for Housing 
and Leisure Services involves all wards 
where the 10% threshold of Houses of 
Multiple Occupation has been reached  
(including the Bassett ward) in the initial 
role out of the scheme 

Following an evaluation of the evidence and 
legal advice it has been decided to implement 
the HMO additional licensing scheme initially in 
Bevois, Bargate, Portswood and Swaythling 
wards only. Mandatory licensing of the larger 
HMO’s and existing enforcement powers will 
continue to be used outside of these wards. If 
there is significant evidence of market distortion 
the situation will be reviewed. 

Completed 

   ii) That the Cabinet Member for Housing 
and Leisure Services ensures that the 
Council’s default position, subject to 
evaluation, is to roll out the scheme 
Citywide by 2016, and earlier if market 
distortion is detected. 

The OSMC recommendation in support of rolling 
out the HMO Additional Licensing scheme 
Citywide will be taken into account when this is 
considered prior to 2016. 

Completed 

 
 



T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k


	Agenda
	6 Minutes of the Previous Meeting (including matters arising)
	7 City Deal
	City Deal-Appendix 1

	8 Southampton Local Safeguarding Children™s Board Annual Report 2011-12
	LSCB-Appendix - 2011-12 Annual Report Final

	9 Progress Report on Post Ofsted Announced Inspection Plan
	Safeguarding-APP -OSMC OfSTED Monitoring Report v14 (05-03-13)

	10 Forward Plan
	10a City Centre Action Plan and Master Plan
	CCAP-Appendix 1

	11 Monitoring Scrutiny Recommendations to the Executive
	Monitoring-Appendix March 14th


